
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

Central & South 
Planning 
Committee 

 

   

Date: TUESDAY, 12 MAY 2009 
 

Time: 7.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5, 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 
To Councillors on the Committee 
 
John Hensley (Chairman)  
Judith Cooper (Vice Chairman) 

Michael Bull 
Janet Duncan 
John Oswell 

Brian Stead 
 

  
Published: Friday, 1 May 2009 

 
 
This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in braille, 
large print or on audio tape on 
request.  Please contact us for 
further information.  
 

 Contact: Gill Brice 
Tel: 01895 250693 
Fax: 01895 277373 
gbrice@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  
http://lbh-modgov:9071/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=123&Year=2009 

Public Document Pack



Useful information 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for 
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information.  
 
Please switch off any mobile telephones and 
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any 
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either 
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
 
If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will 
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT 
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.    
 

 



 

A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings 
 

Security and Safety information 
Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the 
fire alarm will sound continuously.  If there is a 
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.  
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.  
Recording of meetings – This is not allowed, 
either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
Mobile telephones – Please switch off any mobile 
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.  
 

Petitions and Councillors 
Petitions – Those who have organised a petition of 
20 or more borough residents can speak at a 
Planning Committee in support of or against an 
application.  Petitions must be submitted in 
writing to the Council in advance of the meeting.  
Where there is a petition opposing a planning 
application there is also the right for the 
applicant or their agent to address the meeting 
for up to 5 minutes.   
Ward Councillors – There is a right for local 
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about 
applications in their Ward.  
Committee Members – The planning committee is 
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet 
in public every three weeks to make decisions on 
applications. 
 
Representatives of Conservation Area Advisory 
Panels are also members of the Committees and 
they advise on applications in their conservation 
area.  They do not vote at Committee meetings 
 

How the Committee meeting works 
The Planning Committees consider the most 
complex and controversial proposals for 
development or enforcement action.  
Applications for smaller developments such as 
householder extensions are generally dealt with 
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated 
powers.  
An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which 
comprises reports on each application 
Reports with petitions will normally be taken at 
the beginning of the meeting.   
The procedure will be as follows:-  
1. The Chairman will announce the report;  
2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a 
presentation of plans and photographs;  

 

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser 
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant 
followed by any Ward Councillors; 

4. The Committee may ask questions of the 
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;  

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek 
clarification from officers;  

6. The Committee will vote on the 
recommendation in the report, or on an 
alternative recommendation put forward by a 
Member of the Committee, which has been 
seconded. 

 

About the Committee’s decision 
The Committee must make its decisions by 
having regard to legislation, policies laid down 
by National Government, by the Greater London 
Authority – under ‘The London Plan’ and 
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained 
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and 
supporting guidance.  The Committee must also 
make its decision based on material planning 
considerations and case law and material 
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s 
report and any representations received.  
Guidance on how Members of the Committee 
must conduct themselves when dealing with 
planning matters and when making their 
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of 
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s 
Constitution.  
When making their decision, the Committee 
cannot take into account issues which are not 
planning considerations such a the effect of a 
development upon the value of surrounding 
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself 
is not sufficient ground for refusal of 
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to 
the design of the property.  When making a 
decision to refuse an application, the Committee 
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for 
refusal  based on material planning 
considerations.   
If a decision is made to refuse an application, 
the applicant has the right of appeal against the 
decision.  A Planning Inspector appointed by the 
Government will then consider the appeal.  
There is no third party right of appeal, although 
a third party can apply to the High Court for 
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3 
months of the date of the decision.  
 



 

 

Agenda 
 

 

1 Apologies for absence 

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting 

3 To sign and receive the minutes of the meetings held on 31 March 

4 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent 

5 To confirm that the items of business marked Part I will be considered in Public and 
that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private 

Reports - Part 1 - Members, Public and the Press 
 
Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the 
Chairman may vary this. Reports are split into ‘major’ and ‘minor’ applications. The 
name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the address of the premises or 
land concerned. 

 
Major Applications without a Petition 
6 Heathrow Park Thistle Hotel, Bath Road, Longford - 3063/APP/2009/415  

 Demolition of existing hotel and erection of two hotels: one 4-star hotel 
with 250 bedrooms, and one budget hotel with 353 bedrooms, together 
with associated parking and landscaping. 
 
Recommendation: Refer application to the Mayor of London 
 

Page 1 

7 Land at Sipson Farm, Sipson Road, Sipson - 45408/APP/2009/340 

 Extraction of sand and gravel as an extension to existing quarry at Wall 
Garden Farm backfilling with inert waste and restoration to agricultural 
land 
 
Recommendation: Delegated powers be given to Director of 
Planning and Community Services subject to the objection from 
the Environment Agency being withdrawn  
 

Page 39 

8 Unit B, Prologis Park, Stockley Road, West Drayton - 18399/APP/2009/423 

 Reserved Matters (details of siting, design, external appearance and 
landscaping) of Unit B (employment component) in compliance with 
Condition 3 of planning permission ref. 18399/APP/2005/3415 dated 
27/012006: Variation of conditions (to allow separate phased 
submissions of details relating to residential and employment 
components of the development) of outline planning permission ref. 
18399/APP/2004/2284 dated 19/08/2005: Redevelopment of the site 
for a mixed use development comprising Uses Classes B1 (a) & (c). B2 

Page 66 



 

and B8 employment uses and C3 residential use (up to a maximum of 
101 units) with associated access, parking and landscaping 
 
Recommendation: Approval  
 

 
Non Major Application with a Petition 
9 Land adjacent & forming part of 19 Tanglewood Close, Hillingdon - 

63470/APP/2009/238 

 Two storey attached one-bedroom dwelling 
 

Recommendation: Refusal  
 

Page 87 

10 134 Sipson Road, West Drayton - 64649/APP/2009/341 

 Conversion of dwelling to 2x1 bed flats with elevational alterations at 
front and associated parking 
 

Recommendation: Refusal 
 

Page 95 

11 8 Pastures Mead, Hillingdon - 63559/APP/2008/3504 

 Erection of a single storey rear extension (involving the replacement of 
a side door with a window in main house) 
 

Deferred from 10th March C&S Committee 
 

Recommendation: Refusal  

Page 105 

 
Non Major Application without a Petition 
12 Brook House Football Club, Kingshill Avenue, Hayes - 29439/APP/2009/411 

 Alterations and extension to existing football clubhouse to provide new 
youth centre facilities 
 

Recommendation: Approval 
 

Page 115 

13 The Grange, Pine Place, Hayes - 51065/APP/2009/546 

 Construction of community centre and 9 residential units, comprising of 
5 flats and 4 houses 
 

Recommendation: Approval  
 

Page 134 

14 6 Hillman Close, Uxbridge - 22424/APP/2008/2100 

 Installation of a first floor extension, front and rear gables, front porch 
and the erection of a pitched roof over the existing detached garage 
 

Deferred from 25th November 2008 C&S Committee meeting 
 

Recommendation: Approval 
 

Page 161 



 

15 Redford House, Redford Way, Uxbridge - 46340/APP/2009/250 

 Change of use from Class A1 Shops (Pet shop suppliers) to Class D2 
Assembly and Leisure (for use as women's health and fitness centre) 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
 

Page 174 

16 Redford House, Redford Way, Uxbridge - 46340/APP/2009/336 

 Change of use from Class A1 (Shops) to Class D1 (Non-residential 
institutions) with ancillary office accommodation 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
 

Page 184 

17 Former Cape Boards Site, Iver Lane, Cowley - 751/APP/2009/402 

 Temporary change of use to provide cleaning/servicing yard for 
bins/skips (sui-generis), together with temporary skip holding area 
(B8), ancillary workshop and portacabin 
 
Recommendation: Approval  
 

Page 195 

 
PART II - MEMBERS ONLY 
 
ENFORCEMENT 
18 103 Central Avenue, Hayes - ENF/64/09  

 Erection of an outbuilding  Page 216 

  

 
Plans for Central & South Planning Committee - 12 May 2009 



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

 HEATHROW PARK THISTLE HOTEL  BATH ROAD LONGFORD 

Demolition of existing hotel and erection of two hotels: one 4-star hotel with
250 bedrooms, and one budget hotel with 353 bedrooms, together with
associated parking and landscaping.

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 3063/APP/2009/415

Drawing Nos: Site Location: 9847/T/00/001/Z00
Site Location Plan: 9847/T/00/0002/Z00
Proposed Demolition Plan: 9847/T/00/0003/Z00
Elevations Existing Building A: 9847/T/00/0010/ZXX
Elevations Exsiting Building A: 9847/T/00/0011/ZXX
Elevations Exsiting Building A: 9847/T/00/0012/ZXX
Elevations Exsiting Building B: 9847/T/00/0013/ZXX
Elevations Exsiting Building C: 9847/T/00/0014/ZXX
Almo Right of Way - Proposed Relocation Plan: 9847/T/00/0020/Z00
Budget Hotel First Floor Plan: 9847/T/01/0101/Z01
Budget Hotel Second Floor Plan: 9847/T/01/0102/Z02
Budget Hotel Third Floor Plan: 9847/T/01/0103/Z03
Budget Hotel Fourth Floor Plan: 9847/T/01/0104/Z04
Budget Hotel Roof Plan: 9847/T/01/0105/Z05
Budget Hotel Ground Floor Plan: 9847/T/01/0100/Z00
Budget Hotel Section AA/BB: 9847/T/01/0200/ZXX
Guoman Hotel Ground Floor Plan: 9847/T/02/0150/Z00
Budget Hotel Section CC: 9847/T/01/201/ZCC
Budget Hotel North & East Elevations: 9847/T/01/0300/ZXX
Budget Hotel Perspective: 9847/T/01/0500/Z00
Budget Hotel South & West Elevations: 9847/T/01/301/ZXX
Buget Hotel East Elevation & Section
Guoman Hotel First Floor Plan: 9847/T/02/0151/Z01
Guoman Hotel Second Floor Plan: 9847/T/02/0152/Z02
Guoman Hotel Margaret Cassidy House Sections Between Existing and
Proposed: 9847/T/00/0600/ZXX
Budget Hotel Detail East Elevation and Section
Guoman Hotel Third Floor Plan: 9847/T/02/0153/Z03
Guoman Hotel Fourth Floor Plan: 9847/T/02/0154/Z04
Guoman Hotel Roof Floor Plan: 9847/T/02/0155/Z05
Guoman Hotel Section AA/BB: 9847/T/02/0250/ZXX
Guoman Hotel North & East Elevations: 9847/T/02/0350/ZXX
Guoman Hotel South & West Elevations: 9847/T/02/0351/ZXX
Guoman Hotel Entrance Detail Elevation & Section: 9847/T/02/0450/ZXX
Guoman Hotel Detail East Elevation & Section: 9847/T/02/0451/ZXX
Guoman Hotel Perspective: 9847/T/02/0550/ZXX
Guoman Hotel SHP & Compactor Enclosures Plans and Elevations:
9847/T/03/0601/ZXX
Guoman & Budget Hotel Site Ground Floor Plan: 9847/T/00/0030/Z00
Guoman & Budget Hotel Material Plan: C365D101
Guoman & Budget Hotel Landscape Master Plan: C365D102 Rev B
Guoman & Budget Hotel Indicative Planting Proposals: C365D501 Rev A
Transport Assessment by Waterman Boreham with ref. B/208313 dated

Item No.1

Page 1

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

27/02/2009

24/2/09
Travel Plan by Waterman Boreham with ref. B208313 dated 24/2/09
Building Services Energy Assessment by Me Engineers with reference
8041/10/PA Rev 1 dated Feb 2009
Design and Access Statement by EPR Architects dated Feb 2009
Environmental Noise Survey Report by Hann Tucker Associates with ref.
14992/ENS1 dated 31 October 2008, revised 17/12/08
Air Quality Assessment by URS Corportation Ltd with ref KD/MM dated
February 2009
Arboricultural Implication Study and Tree Protection Strategy by Michael
Honey with ref. MPH0156/RHB dated 9/12/08
Archaeological Desk-based Assessment by Museum of London
Archaeology dated December 2009
Daylight and Sunlight Report by Waterslade with ref 516/PL2/200209
Flood Risk Assessment by URS Corporation Ltd with ref LERP0002 dated
25 February 2009
Planning Statement by DTZ dated February 2008
Sustainability Statement by URS Corporation Ltd with ref.
GHHSS_49316031_004 dated 19/02/09
Aviation Report by Donald Butler Associates
Guoman & Budget Hotel Landscape Elevations: C365D902
Access Statement by Access for People dated 5th Feb 2009

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

This application seeks full planning permission for the erection of two hotels, a four star
hotel comprising 250 bedrooms and a budget hotel comprising 353 bedrooms(incl udi ng
demolition of the existing Thistle Hotel). 

The scheme is of a high quality modern design whilst respecting the character and
appearance of the surrounding area.

The proposal is considered to comply with relevant planning policies andappr oval  i s
recommended subject to the applicant entering into an agreement with theCo unci l under
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended to secure
contributions towards highway improvements, air quality monitoring, public realm
improvements and construction and hospitality training initiatives.

The GLA has raised matters of objection in their Stage 1 comments relating to inclusive
design, climate change mitigation and adaptation, and transport. It is anticipated that
these matters can be resolved through planning conditions, but delegatedpowe r s ar e
sought to determine the application as appropriate following Stage 2 consideration by the
Mayor.

2. RECOMMENDATION

27/02/2009Date Application Valid:

2.1. That the application is referred to the Mayor of London under the provisions of

Page 2
Page 2



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

the Town & Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2008.

2.2. That, should the Mayor of London not intervene delegated powers be given to
the Director of Planning and Community Services to grant planning permission
subject to the following:
a. That the Council enters into an Agreement with the applicant under S106 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of the
Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/or other appropriate legislation tosecur e:

i) a financial contribution of £30,133 for Hospitality Training.
ii) a financial contribution of £75,000 for Construction Training.
iii) a financial contribution of £70,000 for Public Realm Improvements
iv) a financial contribution of £40,000 towards air quality monitoring and
improvements.
v) a financial contribution of £30,000 towards public transport improvements
vi) a financial contribution equal to 5% of the total cash contributions for project
management and monitoring.
vii) A sustainable transport measure in the form of a Green Travel Plan( wh i ch
includes car park management plan) in accordance with TfL guidance and be
implemented for the hotels.

b. That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of the Section 106 agreement
and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed.

c. That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree detailed terms of the
proposed agreement.

2.3. That subject to the above, the application be referred for determination to the
Director of Planning and Community Services under delegated powers to approve
the application, subject to the satisfactory completion of the legal agreement(s)
under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended and
subject to the conditions set out below, and any others required as a result of the
Stage 2 referral.

2.4. That if by 27th May 2009, the S106 Agreement has not been finalised,
delegated powers be given to the Director of Planning and Community Services to
refuse planning permission for the following reasons:

1. The development is not considered to have made adequate provision through
planning obligations, for contributions towards construction training, hospitality
training, public realm improvements, monitoring and a Green Travel Plan.Gi ven
that a legal agreement or unilateral undertaking has not been secured toaddr ess
this issue, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policies Pt1.39, R7 and
R17 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document for Planning Obligations
(Adopted July 2008).

2. The development is not considered to have provided appropriate mitigation
measures, which in this case would be a travel plan to TfL guidelines, to ensure
that there would be no detrimental impact on air quality within a designated Air
Quality Management Area contrary to policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary

Page 3
Page 3



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

T8

OM1

M1

TL1

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

Details/Samples to be Submitted

Existing Trees - Survey

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration ofthr ee year s
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

No development shall take place until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

Prior to any work commencing on site, an accurate survey plan at a scaleof  not  less than
1:200 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
plan must show:-
 (i) Species, position, height, condition, vigour, age-class, branch spread and stem
diameter of all existing trees, shrubs and hedges on and immediately adjoining the site.
 (ii) A clear indication of trees, hedges and shrubs to be retained and removed.
 (iii) Existing and proposed site levels.
 (iv) Routes of any existing or proposed underground works and overhead lines including
their manner of construction.
 (v) Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees and other vegetation to be retained during construction
work.

REASON
To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the amenity value of existing trees,

1

2

3

4

Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), Hillingdon's Air Quality
Supplementary Planning Guidance (Adopted 2002) and Policies 3C.3 and 4A.3 of
the London Plan (February 2008).

2.5 That if the planning application is approved, the following conditions be
attached:

Page 4
Page 4



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL2

TL3

Trees to be retained

Protection of trees during site clearance and development

hedges and shrubs and the impact of the proposed development on them andto ensur e
that the development conforms with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon UnitaryDe vel opme nt
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shallnot  be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. 

If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during construction,
or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall be
planted at the same place and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first planting season following the
completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the
earlier.

Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the
effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery
Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial work shouldbe car ried out
to BS 3998 (1989)  'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS 4428 (1989)' Co de of
Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work
shall be completed in the first planting season following the completiono f  t he
development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the HillingdonUn i tar y
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Prior to the commencement of any site clearance or construction work, detailed drawings
showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root areas/crown spread of
trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall be
commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected
in accordance with the details approved.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing
shall be retained in position until development is completed. The area within the
approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course of the works and
in particular in these areas: 
1. There shall be no changes in ground levels; 
2. No materials or plant shall be stored; 
3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed. 
4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and. 
5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damageddur ing
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the

5

6

Page 5
Page 5



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL21

TL5

TL6

Tree Protection, Building & Demolition Method Statement

Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

Landscaping Scheme - implementation

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Prior to development commencing on site, a method statement outlining the sequence of
development on the site including demolition, building works and tree protection shall be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, and the scheme thereafter
implemented in accordance with the approved method statement.

REASON
To ensure that trees can be satisfactorily retained on the site in accordance with Policy
BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme providing full details of hard
and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writingby the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. Thescheme  shal l
include: -
- Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
- Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
- Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities and
spacing of trees and shrubs.
- Implementation programme.
The scheme shall also include details of the following: -
- Proposed finishing levels or contours,
- Means of enclosure (including a detailed brick front boundary wall with panelling and
coping details)
- Car parking layouts,
- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,
- Hard surfacing materials proposed,
- Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage, signs,
or lighting),
- Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),
- Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON
a) To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual
amenities of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).
b) To avoid endangering the safe movement of aircraft and the operationof  He at hr ow
Airport through the attraction of birds and an increase in bird hazard risk of the
application site.

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding
seasons following the completion of the development or the occupation ofthe bui ldi ngs,
whichever is the earlier period. 

The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirements
specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'

7

8

9

Page 6
Page 6



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL7

NONSC

Maintenance of Landscaped Areas

Construction Strategy

and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding
Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be permanently
retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or
in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damagedor  di seased
shall be replaced in the same place in the next planting season with another such tree,
shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local Planning
Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON
To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.  The scheme shall include details of the arrangements for its
implementation.  Maintenance shall be carried out in accordance with theappr oved
schedule.

REASON
To ensure that the approved landscaping is properly maintained in accordance with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (September 2007).

Development shall not commence until a construction management strategy has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority covering the
application site and any adjoining land which will be used during the construction period.
Such strategy shall include the following;
a) Details of area(s) subject to construction activity and the storage of materials and
equipment
b) Details of cranes and other tall construction equipment (including the details of
obstacle lighting)
c) Control of activities likely to produce dust and smoke etc
d) Details of temporary lighting
e) Height of storage areas for materials or equipment
f) Control and disposal of putrescible waste to prevent attraction of birds
g) Site restoration
The approved strategy (or any variation approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority) shall be implemented for the duration of the construction period.

REASON
To ensure that construction woks and construction equipment on site and adjoining land
does not breech the Obstacle Limitation Surface (OLS) surrounding Heathrow Airport
and endanger aircraft movements and the safe operation of the aerodrome and to
ensure that the development does not endanger the safe movement of aircraft or the
operation of Heathrow Airport through interference with communication, navigation aids
and surveillance equipment, in accordance with Policy A6 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

10

11

Page 7
Page 7



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

H8

DIS1

DIS4

NONSC

Lighting schemes near aerodome

Surfacing and marking out of access/parking/servicing areas

Facilities for People with Disabilities

Signposting for People with Disabilities

Secured by Design

The development is close to the aerodrome and/or aircraft taking off from or landing at
the aerodrome. Lighting schemes required during construction and for thecomp l et ed
development shall be a flat glass, full cut off design, mounted horizontally, and shall
ensure that there is no light spill above the horizontal.

REASON
To avoid endangering the safe operation of aircraft and in compliance with Policy A6 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

The roads/turning/servicing facilities/sight lines and parking areas (including the marking
out of parking spaces) shown on the approved plans shall be constructedpr ior  t o
occupation of the development, thereafter permanently retained and used for no other
purpose.

REASON
To ensure that the vehicular access, servicing and parking areas are  satisfactorily laid
out on site in accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C of theLondon
Plan. (February 2008).

All the facilities designed specifically to meet the needs of people with disabilities that are
shown on the approved plans shall be provided prior to the occupation oft he
development and thereafter permanently retained.

REASON
To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with Policies AM13 and R16 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and London Plan (February 2008) Policies 3A.13, 3A.17 and 4B.5.

Signplates, incorporating a representation of the Universal Wheelchair Symbol, should
be displayed to indicate the location of convenient facilities to meet the needs of people
with disabilities.  Such signplates should identify or advertise accessible entrances to
buildings, reserved parking spaces, accessible lifts and lavatory accommodation,
manageable routes through buildings and availability of additional services.  Signs for
direction and location should have large characters or numerals and clearly contrast with
the background colour.

REASON
To ensure that people with disabilities are aware of the location of convenient facilities in
accordance with Policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

The development hereby approved shall incorporate measures to minimise the risk of
crime and to meet the specific security needs of the application site and the
development. No development shall be commenced until details of securityme asur es to

12

13

14

15

16

Page 8
Page 8



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Soil Contamination

Delivery and Service Management

Wheelchair Users

Electrical Charging Points for Vehicles

meet the standards necessary to achieve the 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded
by the Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser on behalf of the Chief Police
Officers has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The development shall not be occupied until such measures have been implemented.

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safeand secur e
environment in accordance with policies 4B.1 and 4B.6 of the London Plan.'

All imported soils used for the construction shall be clean and free of contamination.
These soils shall be tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this testing
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the users of the development are not subject to any risksf rom soi l
contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

No development shall take place until a Delivery and Service Management Plan has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for each of the
two hotels. The development shall not be serviced otherwise than in accordance with the
approved plan unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure adequate servicing and delivery arrangement are in place to prevent
disruption to the Terminal 5 road system in compliance with Policy AM7 of Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

Both of the hotels hereby approved shall provide 10% of the total parking provision for
disabled users and be permanently marked out to prevent misuse and more than 5% of
the bedrooms shall be wheelchair accessible. Furthermore all measures indicated in the
Access Statement dated 5 February 2009 and as outlined in Guoman response to Julie
Fleck's email dated 26/03/09 shall be implemented in full before the hotel is brought into
use and shall thereafter be permanently retained and maintained unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with Policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) and London Plan (February 2008) Policies 3A.13, 3A.17 and 4B.5.

17

18

19

20

Page 9
Page 9



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Archaeology

Contamination

Landfill gas survey

Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved, details of thei nst al lat ion
(including location and type) of at least two secure electric vehicle charger for each of the
two hotels within the car park must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.  The electric vehicle charger points shall be installed prior to
occupation of the development and retained for the lifetime of the building.
 
REASON
To comply with London Plan Policy 4A.3 and to encourage sustainable travel.

No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a
programme of archaeological work, in accordance with a written scheme ofinvest igat ion
which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
The site is of archaeological interest and it is considered that all evidence of the remains
should be recorded in accordance with Policy BE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Before any part of this development is commenced a site survey to assesst he l and
contamination levels shall be carried out to the satisfaction of the Council and a
remediation scheme for removing or rendering innocuous all contaminates from the site
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
remediation scheme shall include an assessment of the extent of site contamination and
provide in detail the remedial measures to be taken to avoid risk to theoccupi er s and
users of the public building when the site is developed. All works whichfor m par t of  thi s
remediation scheme shall be completed before any part of the developmenti s occupi ed
(unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority).

REASON
To ensure that occupants of the development are not subjected to any risks from land
contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies September 2007.

The applicant shall carry out a landfill gas survey in the ground at thedevel opme nt  si te.
Some of the landfill gas tests within the survey shall be taken below the proposed
footprint of the new hotel buildings. If landfill gas is found to be a hazard then the
applicant shall install remediation measures to prevent gas ingress to the buildings on the
development site to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
There may have been filled ground on this site from historic ponds. The condition is
required to clarify whether or not there is any hazard due to gas migration from any filled
ground to the buildings, and if there is a hazard to ensure any necessary gas remediation
work is completed, in accordance with policies OE11 and MIN20 of Hillingdon's Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies 2007.

21

22

23

Page 10
Page 10



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

H15

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Cycle Storage - In accordance with approved plans

Pedestrian access

Noise levels

Ventilation & Noise

The development hereby permitted, shall not be occupied until 112 covered and secure
cycle storage for cyclists have been provided on site in accordance witht he appr oved
plans. Thereafter, these facilities shall be permanently retained on site and be kept
available for the use of cyclists.

REASON
To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and
hence the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with
Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

Notwithstanding hereby submitted, further details showing a formal crossing facility over
the two access points which provides dropped kerbs and tactile paving shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter implemented
and retained in accordance with the approval.

REASON
To ensure safe levelled pedestrian access in accordance with policy AM8 of Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies.

No plant and/or machinery shall be used on the premises until a scheme which specifies
the provisions to be made for the control of noise emanating from the site or to other
parts of the building, has been submitted to, and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall be included such combination of measures as may be
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The said scheme shall be included such
secure provision as will ensure that the said scheme and all of it endures for use and that
any and all constituent parts are repaired and maintained and replaced in whole or in part
so often as occasion may require.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with policy OE3 of the
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies.

No air extraction system shall be used on the premise until a scheme which specifies the
provisions to be made for the control of noise and odour emanating from the site or to
other parts of the building, has been submitted to, and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of measures as may be approved
by the Local Planning Authority. The said scheme shall include such secure provision as
will ensure that the said scheme and all of its endures for use and thatany and al l
constituent parts are repaired and maintained and replaced in whole or in par so often as
occasion may require.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding area in accordance with Policy OE3 of the
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies.

24

25

26

27

Page 11
Page 11



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

OM19

OM5

Noise levels

Site Runoff

Construction Management Plan

Provision of Bin Stores

No music and/or other amplified sound shall be audible from the premisesi nsi de
surrounding or adjacent premises between 2300 and 0700 hours.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with policy OE3 of the
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies.

Development shall not begin until a surface water drainage scheme for the site, based on
sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological and hydro
geological context of the development, has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in
accordance with the approved details before the development is completed. 

The scheme shall also demonstrate:
* Surface water run-off rates restricted to 8 l/s/ha. 
* Permeable paving utilised throughout the car parking areas. 
* Details of how the scheme shall be maintained and managed after completion 

REASON
To prevent the increased risk of flooding, to improve and protect water quality, and
ensure future maintenance of these, in accordance with policies OE7 and OE8 of
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a demolitiona nd
construction management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its written approval.
The plan shall detail:
(i) The phasing of development works
(ii) The hours during which development works will occur.
(iii) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentiallycont ami nat ing
materials and fittings can be removed safety and intact for later re-useor  pr ocessi ng.
(iv) Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto adjoining roads (wheel
cleaning/washing).
(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and
parking provisions for contractors during the development process.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of
the demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies 2007).

No development shall take place until details of facilities to be provided for the screened
storage of refuse bins within the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. No part of the development shall be occupied until the

28

29

30

31

Page 12
Page 12



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

SUS1 Energy Efficiency Major Applications (full)

facilities have been provided in accordance with the approved details and thereafter the
facilities shall be permanently retained. 

REASON
To ensure a satisfactory appearance and in the interests of the amenities of the
occupiers and adjoining residents, in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The measures to reduce the energy demand and carbon dioxide emissions oft he
development and to provide sites energy needs through renewable energy generation
contained within the submitted report entitled 'Building Services EnergyAs sessme nt  wi th
reference 8041/10/PA by ME Engineers and Addendum document A - response to GLA
Energy Comments received by email on 28/4/09 from ME Engineers shall be integrated
into the development and thereafter permanently retained and maintained.

REASON
To ensure that the development incorporates appropriate energy efficiency measures in
accordance with policies 4A.1, 4A.3, 4A.4, 4A.6, 4A.7, 4A.9, and 4A.10 of the London
Plan (February 2008).

32

I1

I52

I53

Building to Approved Drawing

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

3

INFORMATIVES

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to afai r hear ing) ; Ar ticl e 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the FirstPr ot ocol  (pr ot ect ion of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

BE13
BE18
BE21
BE35

BE38

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Major development proposals adjacent to or visible from major road
and rail connections to Heathrow and central London
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of

Page 13
Page 13



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I60

I61

I62

Cranes

Lighting Near Aerodromes.

Potential Bird Hazards from Buildings

4

5

6

Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a cranema y be requi red
during its construction.  The applicant's attention is drawn to the requirement within the
British Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to
consult the aerodrome before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome.  This
is explained further in Advice Note 4, 'Cranes and Other Construction Issues' (available
at www.aoa.org.uk/publications/safeguarding.asp)

The development is close to the aerodrome and the approach to the runway. The
applicant is advised that there is a need to carefully design any lighting proposals. This is
further explained in Advice Note 2, 'Lighting near Aerodromes' (available at
www.aoa.org.uk/publications/safeguarding.asp). Please note that the AirNa vi gat ion
Order 2005, Article 135 grants the Civil Aviation Authority power to serve notice to
extinguish or screen lighting which may endanger aircraft.

The applicant is advised that any flat/shallow pitched or green roof on buildings have the
potential to attract gulls for nesting, roosting and loafing and loafingpur poses.  The

OE1

OE5
OE7

OE8

OL12
OL13

T1
T2
T3
T4

AM2

AM7
AM9

AM13

AM14
AM15

new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Siting of noise-sensitive developments
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Development of agricultural land
Development associated with agricultural or forestry uses within or
affecting conservation areas, archaeological priority areas etc.
New tourism facilities
Location of tourist accommodation and conference facilities
Safeguarding of existing hotel accommodation
Hotels, guest houses and other tourist accommodation - location,
amenity and parking requirements
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities
AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through
(where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes
New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Page 14
Page 14



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I3

I34

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

7

8

owners/occupiers of the building must ensure that all flat/shallow pitched roofs be
constructed to allow access to all areas by foot using permanent fixed access stairs
ladders or similar.

The owner/occupier must not allow gulls, to nest, roost or loaf on the building. Checks
must be made weekly or sooner if bird activity dictates, during the breeding season.
Outside of the breeding season gull activity must be monitored and the roof checked
regularly to ensure that gulls do not utilise the roof.  Any gulls foundnest ing,  roost ing or
loafing must be dispersed by the owner/occupier when detected or when requested by
BAA Airside Operations staff. In some instances it may be necessary to contact BAA
Airside Operations staff before bird dispersal takes place. The contact would be Gary
Hudson, The Development Assurance Deliverer for Heathrow Airport on 020 8745 6459. 

The owner/occupier must remove any nests or eggs found on the roof. The breeding
season for gulls typically runs from March to June. The owner/occupier must obtain the
appropriate licences where applicable from Natural England before the removal of nests
and eggs. For further information please see the attached Advice Note 8 - 'Potential Bird
Hazards From Building Design'

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development. 

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

· The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with
· BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice.  AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005. 

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995.  The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments.  This
duty can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it

Page 15
Page 15



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work9

10

is reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance.  For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

· The Disability Discrimination Act 1995.  Available to download fromwww. opsi .gov. uk

· Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements.  Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

· Code of practice.  Rights of access.  Goods, facilities, services and premises.  Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002.  ISBN 0 11702 860 6.  Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

· Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you.  A guide for
service providers, 2003.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation.  For further
information you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation.In par ticul ar , you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out betweenthe hour s of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays orBank
Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create apubl ic heal th
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

The developer is requested to maximise the opportunities to provide highqual ity wo r k
experience for young people (particularly the 14 - 19 age group) from the London
Borough of Hillingdon, in such areas as bricklaying, plastering, painting and decorating,
electrical installation, carpentry and landscaping in conjunction with the Hillingdon
Training Ltd. 

Page 16
Page 16



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I38

I38

I38

Conditions - Further Advice

Conditions - Further Advice

Conditions - Further Advice

11

12

13

14

15

Hillingdon Training Limited, 2nd Floor, Unit A, Eagle Office Centre, TheRu nwa y,  Sout h
Ruislip, HA4 6SE. Phone: 01895 671976 
Fax: 020 8581 8084
Email: info@hillingdontraining.co.uk

The developer is requested to maximise the use of local suppliers and labour from the
London Borough of Hillingdon, where possible.

The development of this site is likely to damage archaeological remains.The appl icant
should therefore submit detailed proposals in the form of an archaeological project
design. This design should be in accordance with the appropriate EnglishHe r i tage
guidelines to comply with condition 20.

You should contact Environmental Protection Unit on 01895 277 440 for further advice on
the measures necessary to comply with condition 22.

Pursuant to the Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Act 1993, the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 and any other relevant legislation, you are advised as follows:

i) Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary should ONLY
be carried out between the hours of;
-0800 and 1800 on Monday to Friday
-0800 and 1300 on Saturday
-No such work must be carried out on Sundays and Bank Holidays. All noise generated
during such works must be controlled in compliance with British Standard5228;

ii) Measures must be taken to eliminate the release of dust caused by the works that may
create a statutory nuisance (a useful reference is the Best Practice Guidance - The
control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition, Greater London
Authority, November 2006);

iii) No bonfires on the site shall be allowed to take place at any time.

The applicant should be advised that details for Condition 18 should include no access
through Longford Village by construction vehicles associated with the development of the
site.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 17
Page 17



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is approximately 2.96 hectares and is currently occupied by the
Thistle Heathrow Hotel. The existing hotel is 2 storeys in height and the buildings are
linear and in a disorganised site arrangement. The existing site layout arises from
extensions to the hotel building since its original development and has not been planned
in a coherent manner. Hence, the existing site and building layout provides no direct
pedestrian link between the main hotel reception/accommodation and the restaurant/bar
area. The remainder of the site is predominately hard surfaced parking areas with very
limited landscaping onsite.

The site is located on the southern side of Bath Road and is accessed from it.  The
application site is within close proximity to the junction with Colnbrook bypass and this part
of Bath Road is characterised by both commercial developments to the east (towards the
junction) and residential to the west, leading into Longford Village.  Adjacent to the site on
the northern west corner is a three storey hostel, known as Margaret Cassidy House
which recently had planning consent granted for a 127 bed hotel.  Adjacent to Margaret
Cassidy House is a Grade II listed building, known as the Longford Cottage.  There are
further listed building in the general locality. Longford Village Conservation Area is further
to the west, within Longford Village

The application site is predominately bounded by car parks associated with the Heathrow
Airport.  To the east and south west are large areas of surface car parking under the
control of BAA.  The land directly to the south of the site, is currently occupied by Alamo
car hire and is used as a depot for the cleaning and maintenance of their fleet of car hire
vehicles. Alamo's vehicle access is from Bath Road, but that site also benefits from
access to the Western Perimeter Road.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application proposes the demolition of existing hotel buildings and the erection of two
new hotels providing a total of 603 new hotel bedrooms. A four star 250 bedroom hotel will
be located on the east of the site and would be part 5 and part 4 storeys in height and a
353 bedroom budget hotel will be located to the west of the site and would be 4 storeys in
height. A total of 302 car parking spaces are proposed with 112 secured cycle parking
spaces for the use by the staff and guests of both hotels.

The four star hotel is an H shaped building and will include;
- A large bar and dining area on the ground floor level. 
- A leisure/gym and spa facilities for use by hotel patrons, located on the ground floor.
- A total of 375sq.m of meeting room facilities provided within 8 meeting rooms of various
sizes
- Hotel bedrooms will be accommodated on the upper three floors of the hotel.
- An executive lounge/bar area will be provided on the fourth floor of the hotel with access
onto a roof terrace overlooking the airport runway.

The budget hotel will include;
- New dining and bar facilities on the ground floor
- A total of 267sq.m of meeting room facilities within 6 meeting rooms of various sizes.
- Hotel bedrooms will occupy the western wing of the hotel at ground floor level and the
upper three levels of the hotel.

The applicant has also submitted a number of technical documents in support of the

Page 18
Page 18



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

proposal. These are detailed below.

DESIGN AND ACCESS STATEMENT
This document sets out the background to the proposal. The statement hasbeen
prepared by EPR Architects, and provides a thorough context evaluation, which highlights
the factors which have influenced the design.

PLANNING STATEMENT
This statement is prepared by DTZ and sets out the planning issues for the proposed
development. It describes the site context, the proposal, planning history, pre-application
consultations and planning policy context for the proposal.

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
This statement is prepared by URS Corporation Ltd and this report demonstrates how the
proposed development would take into account sustainable design issues, balancing
social, economic and environmental factors. It concludes that the development will seek to
comply with all of the essential standards and some of the Mayor's Preferred Standards of
the SPG 'Sustainable Design and Construction' and with the sustainability requirements of
Hillingdon Council.

FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT
This statement is prepared by URS Corporation Ltd and has been prepared in line with
Planning Policy Statement 25 - Flood Risk Development. It has identifiedthat  the si te i s
within Flood Zone 1 and 2.  The statement demonstrates that the Environment Agency
supplied flood levels for the 1 in 100 year event would not lead to out of bank flow on the
Duke of Northumberland watercourse and therefore the site is only at risk during extreme
event.  During such event, flooding is not expected to be significant onsi te.  The pr ima r y
escape route utilises the highest part of the site, onto Bath Road and there is safe refuse
available in the upper floors of the hotel. 

ARCHAEOLOGICAL DESK BASED ASSESSMENT
This statement is prepared by Museum of London Archaeology states that the site does
not contain any nationally designated sites, such as Scheduled Monuments, Listed
Buildings etc, and it is not within a Conservation Area or Archaeological Priority Area as
defined in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.  The report has found that the site
has a variable potential for the recovery of archaeological remains and recommends that
in light of mixed archaeological potential for the site, a further investigation of
archaeological potential be carried out.

ENERGY STATEMENT 
The statement has been prepared by Me Engineers and explains the three key principles -
Be Lean, Be Clean, and Be Green and addressed with more detailed analysis. The
proposal show significant savings in energy and reductions in carbon emissions of 41.4%
for the 4 star Hotel and 41.7% for the budget hotel.

AIR QUALITY ASSESSMENT 
This statement has been prepared by URS Corporation Ltd and provides an appraisal of
the suitability of the proposed hotel development on the application site and subsequent
assessment of the potential impacts on local air quality. It concludes that although NO2
concentrations exceed the Air Quality Standard objectives at the site, the operational
proposed development is anticipated to have a beneficial impact on localai r qual ity and as
such it is not expected that air quality will be a material planning consideration.

Page 19
Page 19



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NOISE ASSESSMENT
The noise survey report has been carried out by Hann Tucker Associates for plant and
traffic noise impact on the surrounding residential premises. The assessment indicates
that with the use of appropriate mitigation measures, where necessary, the impact would
be minimal. The likely noise impact from future flows of traffic would be reduced due to
the reduction in the car park spaces and therefore there will be no elevation of noise
levels from the current state.

TRANSPORT ASSESSMENT
This assessment has been carried out by Waterman Boreham Ltd and compares the
current site with the proposed uses. It finds that the net change in traffic generation is
negative and therefore removing vehicular trips from the network. A robust traffic impact
analysis of the local highway network has been undertaken and was demonstrated that
the existing highway network in the vicinity of the site, including the site accesses will
continue to operate within desirable levels of operational capacity withthe devel opme nt s
in place. Furthermore the analysis suggests an overall improvement in capacity due to the
reduction in vehicular trips. 

GREEN TRAVEL PLAN
The green travel plan is prepared by Waterman Boreham Ltd and sets out travel plan
aims and approach and assesses the existing transportation environment and conditions.
It states that a travel plan is evolving document that need to remain adaptable to changing
working practices and local conditions. A Final Travel Plan, after its approval by the Local
Planning Authority will be adopted and implemented by the hotel.

AVIATION STATEMENT
This report is prepared by Donald Butler Associates and examines aviation safeguarding
criteria and concludes that construction methodology will be submitted to BAA and the
Local Planning Authority for approval prior to work commencing. It further comments that
the proposed development will have no adverse effect on the safety and regularity of the
established aviation operations and that no mitigation measures will be required.

DAYLIGHT AND SUNLIGHT REPORT
This report is prepared by Waterslade Ltd and examines the daylight and sunlight to the
residential properties surrounding the site as well as the nursery school at 501 Bath Road.
 It concludes that all properties comfortably comply with the BRE daylight, sunlight and
overshadowing guidelines and will continue to receive very good levels of both daylight
and sunlight after the proposal is implemented. 

3063/APP/2001/1496

3063/AR/78/0305

Thistle Heathrow Park  Bath Road Longford 

Heathrow Park Hotel  Bath Road Longford 

EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS TO THE APPEARANCE OF THE RESTAURANT AREA AND
REPOSITIONING OF EXISTING EXTRACTOR DUCT

Extension/Alterations to Hotel (P) of 242 sq.m.

27-09-2001

10-05-1978

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

Approved

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Page 20
Page 20



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

It would appear that the existing hotel is of a 1970s construction however, the Council's
planning records do not go back as far as when the hotel was built. There have been
applications for extensions to the hotel which are mentioned above.

The decision type 'WD' above, refers to the application being Withdrawn.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007
The London Plan February 2008
PPS1 - Delivering Sustainable Development
PPS13 - Transport
PPG15 - Planning and Historic Environment
PPG21 - Tourism
PPS22 - Renewable Energy
PPG24 - Planning and Noise
Planning Policy Statement - Planning and Climate Change
Council's Parking Standards
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Noise
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Access Hillingdon

PT1.28

PT1.30

PT1.39

To encourage the provision of a range of hotel and conference facilitiespr ovi ded
development does not harm the environment.

To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in
particular women, elderly people, people with disabilities and ethnic minorities.

To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Part 2 Policies:

3063/CL/98/1943 Heathrow Park Hotel Bath Road Longford 

Erection of a 572-bedroom hotel, incorporating a part 3 storey, part 4 storey, part 5 storey, part
6 storey building with provision for 328 parking spaces, new leisure club and related facilities
and landscaping (involving demolition of most of existing buildings except for conference block
which is to be refurbished)

25-10-1999Decision: WD

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 21
Page 21



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE18

BE21

BE35

BE38

OE1

OE5

OE7

OE8

OL12

OL13

T1

T2

T3

T4

AM2

AM7

AM9

AM13

AM14

AM15

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Major development proposals adjacent to or visible from major road and rail
connections to Heathrow and central London

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection
measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Development of agricultural land

Development associated with agricultural or forestry uses within or affecting
conservation areas, archaeological priority areas etc.

New tourism facilities

Location of tourist accommodation and conference facilities

Safeguarding of existing hotel accommodation

Hotels, guest houses and other tourist accommodation - location, amenityand
parking requirements

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design ofhi ghwa y
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Not applicable15th April 2009

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

The application was advertised as a major development by means of press and site notices. 312
consultation letters were sent to residents and occupiers of the dwellings at Longford Village,

Page 22
Page 22



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

nearby neighbouring properties and Longford Residents' Association. Two site notices were also
placed in prominent locations near the application site.

1 letter was received from a resident and raised one issue in relation to the proposal;
- not against the building of two new hotels however the lorries should only use the A4 and not
come through the village to enter the site during construction.

BAA SAFEGUARDING
No objection subject to conditions and/or informatives relating to construction strategy, a bird
hazard management plan, landscaping and control of lighting.

NATIONAL AIR TRAFFIC SERVICES (NATS)
No objections.

ENGLISH HERITAGE
No objections subject to a planning condition requiring implementation of a programme of
archaeological works, in accordance with a written scheme of investigation.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY
Initially, the Environment Agency made objections on the grounds that there is insufficient evidence
to indicate that the surface water will be managed in a sustainable manner in line with Planning
Policy Statement 25 (PPS25). However, the applicant has addressed the Environment Agency's
concerns and now the Environment Agency raises no objections to the proposal subject to a
planning condition.

TRANSPORT FOR LONDON
TfL does not expect the development to have an adverse impact on the operation of the Transport
for London Road Network however more work is required to develop a satisfactory travel plan that
complies with TfL guidance. A Construction Logistics Plan and Delivery and Servicing Plan should
also be submitted as part of planning conditions. The need for improvements to pedestrian access
and bus stops should be assessed and measures put forward to remedy any deficiencies which
can also be addressed in a planning condition.

GLA (STAGE 1 RESPONSE)
The Mayor considers that the application does not comply with the LondonPl an,  but  that  possi bl e
remedies could address any deficiencies as outlined in the detailed response.

Conclusion: London Plan policies on hotel use and tourism, urban and inclusive design, climate
change mitigation and adaptation, noise, air quality, flooding, employment and training, and
transport are relevant to this application. The application complies with some of these policies but
not with others, for the following reason.

Hotel Use: The proposed hotel use on this site is acceptable and it complies with policy 3D.7 of the
London Plan.

Urban Design: The rational for the layout is not currently supported, asa resul t, the pr oposal  does
not fully comply with the London Plan polices relating to design, including 4B.1 'Design principles
for a compact city.'

Initially, concerns to the proposed site layout were raised as it was felt that the proposal resulted in
poor spatial relationship between the two hotel buildings and the Bath Road frontage. This is due to
the deep set back on the buildings. However, the GLA officers are no longer objecting to the site
layout after discussions on local character. 

Page 23
Page 23



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

POLICY
The principle for a hotel on the site has been established and the key issue is the need for an
additional hotel, the suitability of the proposal in flood zone 2 and intensification of the site. 

PPS6 would seek hotel type development to be located in town centres, Heathrow Airport is a
destination in its own right. Consequently the principle for additional hotel accommodation can be
established provided site specific issues are addressed including the criteria of policy T4. The
proposed hotels would help ensure that the quality of Hillingdon hotel offer is enhanced meeting the
needs of both the budget and business traveller and would be welcomed provided the proposal
meets other site specific issues.

Policy has no objection in principle to this proposal provided site specific issues are addressed.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT
This application is for a hotel and therefore EPU are not concerned witht he noi se l evel s f or  i ts
residents as they are temporary. EPU are however concerned with any noise or air quality impact
the hotel development may have on the local residents in the nearby houses. This area already
suffers from a number of noise issues, the airport, the busy road and other large businesses in the
local vicinity. The noise issues can be dealt with by an appropriate worded condition.

With regards to air quality, an air quality assessment was submitted with the application. The report
indicates that the concentrations of NO2 at the worst case locations arepr edi ct ed to exceed the ai r
quality objectives in 2012 whether the scheme is brought forward or not and the resulting impact
has been classified negligible to minor beneficial. However, as the existing levels are already
exceeding the national objectives, mitigation measures should be put in place to address this.

Inclusive Design: the concerns raised need to be addressed and conditioned.

Climate change mitigation and adaptation: the proposed energy strategy is acceptable but further
information should be provided.

Noise: There are no strategic noise concerns.

Air Quality: There are no strategic air quality concerns.

Flooding: The provision of underground rainwater storage needs to be conditioned.

Transport: More work is required on the travel plan. A construction logistics plan and delivery and
servicing plan should be submitted. Improvements to pedestrian access and bus stops are
required.

The following changes might, however, remedy the above mentioned deficiencies, and could
possibly lead to the application becoming compliant with the London Plan:-
Urban Design: revisit layout
Inclusive Design: conditions are required to address the concerns
Climate change mitigation and adaptation: provide further information.
Transport: revisit the travel plan, submit a construction logistics planand del iver y and ser vi ng pl an,
improve pedestrian access and nearby bus stops.

Following the formal issue of the Stage 1 comments, GLA officers have now confirmed that they
will no longer object to the site layout (Urban Design) and this information will be reported to the
Mayor when the application is referred to him at Stage II.

Page 24
Page 24



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

In terms of mitigation following conditions should be imposed. A Green Travel Plan for staff and
guests and construction management scheme that includes minimising emission to air through the
demolition and construction phase of the development should be submitted.

In addition, if improvements to the air quality cannot be identified as part of the development then
consideration should be given to seeking a section 106 contribution towards the implementation of
measures.

TRANSPORTATION
No objections to the proposal as the proposal would result in net reduction of vehicle trips to the
site due to significant reduction of car parking spaces. A suitable number of cycle parking areas for
staff and guests, and number of parking spaces are appropriate for the proposal. The internal
layout of the site would also allow ease of movement of Hopper Buses andser vi ci ng vehi cl es.  A
construction management plan should address construction vehicle movements to address the
resident's valid concern.

URBAN DESIGN
No objections.
The proposed layout, with the buildings positioned towards the rear of the site and the car parking
area at the front, adjacent to Bath Road, provides an opportunity to retain the rural green character
of the streetscene, and avoids the buildings to be visually prominent when viewed from Bath Road.

The proposed scale, height, position or massing of the proposed development are considered to be
well balanced and in tune with the existing built context at the southern end of the site. The
development is not considered to have any detrimental effects on the Longford Cottage, Grade II
Listed Buildings. There are further listed buildings in the general locality.

With regards to boundary treatment, a traditional, detailed brick boundary wall, with some panelling
and proper coping would be advisable.

TREES AND LANDSCAPE
The application site contains a number of trees on the north and east boundaries, with smaller
formal planting within the centre of the site.  The western boundary is defined by (off-site) trees
which provide visual screening and physical separation.  These trees are not protected by Tree
Preservation Order or Conservation Area designation, but do constitute a significant landscape
feature.   The application includes a Tree Report to BS5837: 2005 by HB tree consultants, which
cross refers to a site plan, drawing No 0002-Z00.  (T2 appears to have been omitted from this
drawing, but is shown in Appendix 2 of the Report).  The report includes an Arboricultural
Implications Assessment and Tree Protection Strategy. 
 
The report assesses the quality, condition and landscape value of 17No. individual trees and
considers that there are no grade 'A' (good) specimens.  7No. trees are considered to be 'B' grade
(fair, and worthy of retention on a development site).  The remaining trees are considered to be
'B/C' - 'C' quality and would not normally be considered a constraint ondevel opme nt  - par ticul ar ly
if tree replacement is included within a comprehensive landscape scheme.  One tree is assessed to
be 'C/R' rated which justifies removal as part of sound arboricultural management.
 
The tree report confirms that a Tree Protection Method Statement will berequi red wi th a det ai led
specification for special methods and operations. This information should be submitted for approval
prior to demolition or construction activities on site.

The tree report also confirms that the better / retained trees are situated along the north and east
boundary with most of the tree losses confined to the weaker specimens within the site which will
be removed to facilitate the development.  Both EPR drawing Nos. 0003-Z00 (Preliminary

Page 25
Page 25



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

The principle for hotel/s on the site has been established and the key issue is therefore
the need for an additional hotel beds, suitability of the proposal in Flood Zone 1 and 2 and
intensification of the site.

HOTEL NEED
Part 1.28 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Saved Policies 2007 and Policy T4
establishes the principle for hotel and conference facility provision. With the move towards
the 'Plan, Monitor and Manage' approach to planning, the recent GLA Hotel Demand
Study (2006) identifies an indicative need for additional 3,800 new hotel rooms in
Hillingdon (of which 800 would replace older accommodation) during theper iod 2007-
2026. It is further predicted that the majority of this estimate will berequi red by 2012.
Since the study, 733 rooms have been completed and 120 have been lost. There is a
current pipeline of c.1,328 rooms in Hillingdon, mainly in the Heathrow area with a further
259 under construction. Whilst Planning Policy Statement 6: Planning fort own  cent res,
would seek hotel type development to be located in town centres, Heathrow Airport is a
destination in its own right. Consequently the principle of additional hotel accommodation
can be established provided site specific issues are addressed includingt he cr i ter ia of
Policy T4. The proposed hotels would help ensure that the quality of Hillingdon's hotel
offer is enhanced meeting the needs of both the budget and business traveller and would
be welcomed provided the proposal met other specific issues.

FLOOD ZONE

Demolition) and 0030-Z00 (Site Ground Floor Plan) shows indicate thatt rees T1 and T3 on t he
Bath Road frontage will be retained as part of the scheme. There is a discrepancy
between these drawings and the conclusion of the tree report whichassume s that  T1 wi ll have to
be removed and possibly T3.  Notwithstanding this, the extensive new tree planting which forms
part of the landscape masterplan will mitigate the loss of existing trees.   

It is noted that level changes are referred to within the tree reportand wi thi n cr oss- sect ions thr ough
the site. Although the site appears to be generally flat within the centre, there is a distinct ramp
down into the site from the Bath Road and changes of level across the site are indicated on various
cross-sections.  However, there is no topographic survey showing the existing levels, and no details
of proposed levels for the sake of comparison.  This information needs to be provided by condition
and will be essential to assist the tree retention strategy. It will also influence the views into the site
and the perceived height/mass of the building.   Details will be required to ensure that tree
protection measures and the landscape proposals take into account the local topography and any
level changes.

In conclusion, the Landscape and trees have no objection and consider that the proposal satisfies
policy BE38, subject to planning conditions.

ACCESS
The proposed facility will be subject to the Disability Discrimination Act 1995 (amended 2005)
because it will provide a service to the public. It should be noted thatreasonabl e adj ust me nt s to
practices, policies and procedures, auxiliary aids, and physical features should be fully considered
and specified as part of the design to ensure that disabled people receive the same level of service.

Whilst the design of this development application demonstrates a commitment to the principles of
access and inclusion, more detail is needed. The Design & Access Statement and accompanying
plans is considered to lack the necessary detail.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 26
Page 26



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The applicant has submitted a flood risk study. The assessment indicatesthat  ther e wo ul d
be a low risk to users of the site. 

Environment Agency has also confirmed that they are satisfied with the proposal subject
to a planning condition.

INTENSIFICATION
The proposal would result in number of hotel bedroom increase from 264 bedrooms to a
total of 603 bedrooms. These bedrooms will also be spread across two hotels on the
application site. Whilst it can be seen that the intensity of the site will be doubled, the
current existing Thistle Hotel is not maximising the site usability and the site is currently
not in sustainable land use. The existing hotel's numerous extensions over time have
resulted in an ad hoc and poorly laid out site. The dated building also meant that the much
of the site is predominately covered with extensions as the building could not be extended
upwards. Therefore, the relatively large application site of 2.96ha is predominately
covered with the poorly laid out hotel and its extensions, resulting in limited onsite
landscaping and poorly arranged parking areas. 

The proposed hotels have been designed in a more sustainable manner and the site is
used to its maximum effective capacity. The buildings have been designedi n a ma nner
that will not compromise the character and appearance of the area or negatively impact
upon the occupiers of the surrounding buildings. The proposed hotels will ensure that the
quality of Hillingdon's Hotel offer is enhanced and would maximise the use of the existing
brownfield land, therefore the proposed intensification of the site is satisfactorily justified. 

Planning Policy Statement 1 emphasise the use of the existing brownfieldl and and i ts
effective use and The London Plan's policies also refer to maximising the site's potential.
Therefore, proposal would fully accords with the above mentioned policies.

Not applicable to this development.

ARCHAEOLOGY
The site lies in an area where archaeological remains may be anticipated. This is due to
the extensive prehistoric and later landscape identified in the Heathrowar ea,  wh i ch
includes settlement and ritual activity dating from 10,000 BC onwards. Of particular note is
the number of ring ditches, which often represent ploughed out Bronze Age cremation
burial sites, in the immediate vicinity, and also the proximity of the site to the Saxon
settlement at Longford.

The applicant has submitted a very thorough archaeological desk based assessment.
English Heritage commented that no further work would be require prior to determination
of the subject planning application, however a planning condition requiring implementation
of a programme of archaeological work be submitted and approved by the Local Planning
Authority.

LISTED BUILDING
There are two Grade II listed buildings nearby and are located on Bath Road, west of the
application site.  The Longford Cottage, c. 16th Century, which is adjacent to Margaret
Cassidy House, is a two storey building in a residential use. The Stables and its

Page 27
Page 27



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.04

7.05

7.07

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

outbuildings are directly opposite to Longford Cottage and the main building is part 16th
Century and the outbuilding is 17th or early 18th Century. These listed buildings are
encircled with existing large mature trees and shrubs and much of the site is not clearly
visible from the streetscene. The mature landscaping and trees add valueto the char act er
and appearance of these listed buildings and indeed the streetscene.

The Cottage is some 52 metres away from nearest corner of the proposed budget hotel
and the hotel buildings are well set back into the application site fromt he st reet  t hat  i t
does not compete with the architectural integrity of the adjacent listedbui ldi ngs.  The
proposed site layout has been adopted to ensure that the proposal would not undermine
the 'rural character' of the existing streetscene. 

The front boundary treatment for the proposal is consistent with the existing streetscape
and therefore the proposal does little to impact on the character and appearance of the
Listed Buildings located within the vicinity.  The proposal does not seta back dr op to any
of the listed buildings located within the vicinity due to the proposed siting and layout of
the hotels. Therefore impact to the setting of these listed buildings isnegl igi bl e.

The BAA Aerodrome Safeguarding team commented that the proposal could conflict with
safeguarding criteria unless planning conditions are imposed. Such conditions would
require a submission and approval of a Construction Management Strategy,a Bi rd Ha zar d
Management Plan, a Landscaping scheme and a scheme for the permanent lighting of
the development. These suggested conditions are proposed to be included as part of the
decision and therefore the proposal would not conflict with aerodrome safeguarding
criteria.

Policy OL5 of the UDP Saved Policies 2007 seeks to protect the Green Belt from nearby
developments which may prejudice its visual amenity. The proposed hotel would not be
visible from the Green Belt to the north west of Colnbrook bypass. The proposed hotels
would be seen in context with other buildings along Bath Road, and Heathrow Airport
beyond, therefore it is not considered that the proposed development would have any
significant visual impact on the Green Belt.

Policy BE13 of the Saved Policies UDP requires that the layout and appearance of new
developments harmonise with the existing streetscene and other features of the area.

The existing streetscene is uniquely rural in character, even though there are commercial
buildings and large areas of surface car parking and airport activity within the proximity.
The eastern end of this part of Bath Road (after Junction with Colnbrook bypass in
westerly direction), is characterised by mix of uses including surfacedcar  par ki ng ar eas,
office buildings which are two and three storeys high, existing hotel site, three storey
hostel building, and a petrol filling station. These buildings are well set back from the
street with low walls and landscaped front boundary treatment, setting the streetscene of
Bath Road. Further beyond the application site in a westerly direction, are domestic scale
residential dwellings, leading into Longford Village.

The existing pattern of the streetscape with buildings set back, abundant vegetation, low
front walls and landscape front boundary treatment allows the continued co-existence of
the commercial buildings in rural, leafy country road. Therefore, it would be important for

Page 28
Page 28



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08 Impact on neighbours

any new developments along this end of Bath Road to adopt an approach which includes
sufficient forecourt landscaping and landscape buffer with appropriate setback that is
prevailing character of Bath Road. The proposed site layout and front boundary treatment
of the application site harmonise with the existing Bath Road streetscene, whilst the bulk
and scale of the buildings integrate with the existing airport activity to the south of the
application site. It is important to note that the proposed setback of the hotels is totally
appropriate and necessary in the context and the spatial relationship with Bath Road is
strengthened through proposed strong landscape features, front boundary treatment and
open character of Bath Road.

In conclusion, the proposed hotel buildings would not appear overbearingal ong t he
streetscene and the scheme will not have a detrimental impact upon the character and
appearance of the streetscene along Bath Road. The buildings are positioned to the rear
of the site to respect the existing rural character of the existing streetscene. 

Issues relating to the potential impact of noise on the neighbouring properties have been
addressed in the Noise and Air Quality Issues section below.

Policy BE24 of the Saved Policies UDP protects privacy of the occupiers and adjoining
neighbours from new buildings and policy BE21 of the UDP requires that proposals for
new buildings would not result in a significant loss of residential amenity by reason of
their, siting, bulk or proximity. 

The nearest neighbouring building is Margaret Cassidy House which is currently in hostel
use. The site had a planning permission for a 124 bed hotel in 2008 however this consent
has not yet been implemented. Currently Margaret Cassidy House enjoys good aspects to
the east and south over the existing Thistle Hotel site. This will continue to be the case
with the new proposals. The nearest building to Margaret Cassidy House would be the
proposed budget hotel which is a H shaped block with three fingers aligned north-south.
The elevation facing Margaret Cassidy House has no bedroom windows and therefore
privacy impact to the both occupiers of Margaret Cassidy House and the proposed budget
hotel are not undermined. The separation gap between the two buildings will be 31m
which is an increase from the current 22m separation gap.

The amenity of the listed Longford Cottage will not be adversely affected by the new
hotels. The cottage is some 52 metres away from the nearest corner of the budget hotel.
The proposal will also not create any overshadowing to the garden of Longford Cottage.
Currently the cottage garden is encircled with large mature trees which provide screening
and they cast a shadow over much of the garden.

The applicant has supplied a Daylight and Sunlight Study accompanying this application.
The study shows that Margaret Cassidy House, Longford Cottage and the nursery school
at 501 Bath Road comfortably comply with the BRE daylight, sunlight and overshadowing
guidelines and will continue to receive very good levels of daylight andsunl ight  i f t he
proposed hotels were to be implemented.

In summary, it is considered that the proposed development would have a satisfactory
relationship with, and maintain an appropriate level of residential amenity to, neighbouring
residential properties, in accordance policies with BE21 and BE24 of Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies.

Page 29
Page 29



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Issues relating to the potential impact of noise on the future occupiershave been
addressed in the 'Noise and Air Quality Issues' section below.

Policy BE24 the Saved Policies UDP require that the design of new buildings protects the
privacy of occupiers and their neighbours. However, unlike for a residential scheme
proposal, there is no minimum design guidance that can be applied for hotel development
proposals.  It is worthwhile to note that the level of overlooking and privacy impacts to the
occupiers of the hotel is significantly different to the level of impactt o occupi er s of  a
residential dwelling. This is primarily due to the nature of the hotel use and that it is not for
long term/permanent occupancy. 

The proposed hotels would provide a degree of privacy and limited overlooking to the
occupiers in each room.  The minimum separation gap between facing windows is 12m
and the majority of the windows have privacy screens where it is considered necessary.
These privacy screens are asymmetrical 'eyelid' shading devices which provides
screening from upper floor levels and adjacent to the subject windows. The screening is
also primarily to articulate the facades which give modelling and movement to the
elevations.

The design and layout of buildings is such that there are no instances of direct
overlooking to bedroom windows internal to the scheme which would be a cause of
concern with regard to privacy.

The site is accessed from the Bath Road off the A4 Colnbrook bypass and the site has a
Public Transport Accessibility Level of 1 (on a scale where 6 is high and 1 is low).

The current level of on site parking is 600 spaces for the current hoteland the pr oposal
will see a reduction in parking to a total of 302 spaces for the new hotels. This is a
considerable reduction in parking spaces.  The accompanying Transport assessment
indicates a forecast of a net decrease of 55 two-way vehicles in the AM peak hour, a net
decrease of 48 two-way movement in PM peak hour with the reduced parkingl evel s.
Due to the location of the proposal, the hotel will mainly provide service to those travelling
in and out of Heathrow Airport and therefore the main mode of travel is expected to be
public transport - Hopper Bus and taxis. Therefore, the reduction in parking spaces is
welcomed and this is also supported by TfL and the Council's Highway Engineers subject
to the implementation of a Green Travel Plan.

The access arrangement allows Hopper Buses to enter and exit in a forward gear and
also retains the vehicle access to Alamo car park through the site. The site layout is clear
and legible to pedestrians with clear entrances to both hotels. 

The proposal will also make financial contribution towards public transport improvements
which will include upgrading of bus stops and therefore the proposal is considered
contribute positively to the improvements towards local transport infrastructure.

The Council's Cycle Parking Standards require the provision of 1 cycle parking space per
20 bedrooms and 1 cycle parking space 3 staff. This equates to 77 securecover ed cycl e
parking spaces for the proposed development. A total of 112 secure covered cycle
parking spaces are proposed which exceeds the minim requirement.  Therefore, the level
of provision is in accordance with the Council's guideline, however a condition is

Page 30
Page 30



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

suggested to ensure the detailed design of these stores is appropriate in terms of security.

In summary, the proposed development will not have an adverse impact on the highway
network and appropriate on site provisions have been provided therefore,t he pr oposal
complies with policies AM2, AM14 and AM15 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies September 2007.

Good design is central to all objectives of the London Plan and the Hillingdon's Unitary
Development Plan. The application presents a high quality scheme and raised the
standard of design.

The built elements are characterised by a simplistic, contemporary design, neutral
materials and colour effects to provide legibility and character. The splayed frontages to
the hotels visually link the two hotels together. The four star hotel has a full height glazed
entrance screen, which will enhance the elevation and create an airy interior. The
elevational treatment with a continuous chequer board pattern in a metallic finish,
matched by natural stone enhances the visual quality of the building.

The budget hotel is proposed to be white rendered, combined with grey panelling within
signature colour panels, in cool green shades to match the copper of theadj acent  4 st ar
hotel building. 

In terms of layout, the proposed buildings are positioned towards the rear of the site, away
from Bath Road. This is considered to be a positive design element in the context of the
surrounding streetscene. This part of Bath Road, being mainly residential and the
prevailing country road character, the proposed buildings would not dominate or be
visually intrusive along the streetscene. The site layout allows the contemporary and high
quality development to co-exist with the existing setting of the area ina posi tive wa y.

It is important for developments not to undermine the spatial relationship with the
adjoining highway to provide clear, defined frontage and presence. Due to the large set
back from Bath Road frontage the proposed development reinforced a strong boundary
treatment and landscaping to ensure that the spatial relationship with Bath Road is
maintained.

The overall design rational is supported and is considered to present a high quality
development within the Borough. Overall, the proposal accords with policies within London
Plan and Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

The proposed facility will be subject to the Disability Discrimination Act 1995 (amended
2005) because it will provide a service to the public. 

Both hotels provide just above 5% of the rooms to full wheelchair accessible standards
with adjoining room for carers which is the minimum level of requirementunder  t he
Building Regulations. In addition to 5% rooms which are required to be designed to the
Part M wheelchair accessible standards, the British Standard code advises that 5% of
bedrooms should have a ceiling track hoist and 5% of bedrooms should be designed to be
easily adaptable. There are few rooms within the budget hotel that are larger than the

Page 31
Page 31



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

standard room which can lend themselves to be adaptable, however more information on
how this will be achieved will be required. Further detailed design willbe requi red for  the 4
star hotel as the bedrooms which are larger than the standard sized rooms can be easily
adaptable.

The Council's access officer also noted that reasonable adjustments to practices, policies
and procedures, auxiliary aids, and physical features should be fully considered and
specified as part of the design to ensure that disabled people receive the same level of
service.

The adjustments are detailed design and the proposal can adapt to complywi th the sai d
Act and appropriately worded condition will be included to ensure inclusive development.

The applicant has also positively responded to suggestions and comments from both the
Council's access officer and the GLA access officer and agree to planning conditions to
be imposed to address the detailed internal room design of the proposal.

Not applicable to this development.

Policy BE38 of the Unitary Development Plan requires that existing topographical features
and landscaping be taken into account in the design of new development and that
opportunities for additional landscaping be explored. The Council's Trees and Landscape
Officer has reviewed the proposal and raises no objection to the overalllandscape desi gn
of the scheme.

The application site contains a number of trees on the north and east boundaries, with
smaller formal plating within the centre of the site. The western boundary is defined by
(off-site) trees which provide visual screening and physical separation. 

The proposal includes extensive new planting and landscaping on site. The site frontage
will have a minimum depth of 5 metres, increasing to 9 metres at each end. The eastern
boundary will have a landscaped buffer of approximately 10 metres in width and will
incorporate retained and new trees, with ground-cover planting. The westboundar y
ranges in width from 2 to 8 metres and will be defined by new tree planting with ground
cover shrubs. There are also extensive planting of avenues of trees, with hedges and
ornamental shrub planting is proposed within the centre of the site and car park. This
planting combined with the curved building frontages which are set back from Bath Road
should provide a significant spatial buffer between the public domain and the hotel
frontage.

Appropriately worded conditions will be in place to ensure retention of trees can be
achieved where possible which can also influence the views into the siteand t he
perceived high and massing of the building. Details will be required to ensure that tree
protection measures and the landscape proposal take into account the local topography
and any level changes.

The proposal accords with policy BE38 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
and therefore the proposed landscape masterplan strategy is acceptable subject to further
details being reviewed through planning conditions.

Page 32
Page 32



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15

7.16

7.17

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Isssues

Policy 4A.22 of the London Plan sets out the Spatial Policy for Waste Management in
London and states that all developments should provided adequate storagefaci lities for
waste and recycling.

The service areas for both hotels for waste collection and deliveries will be located to the
rear of each hotel buildings. The refuse and recycling areas and the main back of house
and storage areas will be easily accessible from delivery and pick up points. Delivery and
refuse vehicles can access the site using the main vehicular access points will access the
rear of the hotel through the central access route. All servicing and refuse collections will
be accommodated on site and no servicing will occur on street. This can also be secured
through a recommended condition. 

Each hotel will provide a compactor to the rear of the service area which will be used to
consolidate general waste. Each hotel will also have four large recycling bins with a
capacity of 1,100 litres.

The proposal would adequately provide acceptable waste and recycling provision and
accord with policies set out in the London Plan. 

Policies 4A.1, 4A.3, 4A.4, 4A.6 and 4A.7 of the London Plan require all developments to
make the fullest contribution to achieving sustainable design and reducing carbon dioxide
emissions. Specifically with reference to Major Developments, developments are required
to identify energy efficiency savings and the provision of 20% reductioni n the bui ldi ngs
carbon dioxide emissions through renewable technology.

The application is accompanied by a Building Services Energy Assessment and assesses
each key principle of Be Lean, Be Clean and Be Green within the Framework of the
London Plan.

The applicant has explored different energy technologies for the proposed development
and has favoured option for the proposed scheme is a Combined Heat and Power (CHP)
with Photovoltaic cells for low and zero carbon technologies. This can meet the 20%
policy requirement.

The GLA, in their stage one response is satisfied with the overall energy strategy subject
to further information on the central air-handling units supplied by theCHP net wo r k wh i ch
should heat the ventilation air to the hotel rooms and update saving figures when
emissions have been updated to take all energy use into consideration. It is considered
that this can be conditioned at this stage.

The applicant site is within Flood Zone 1 and 2 areas and the applicant has carried out a
flood risk assessment which is in accordance with Planning Policy Statement 25.

The Flood Risk Assessment accompanying the application concludes that flood levels for
the 1 in 100 y ear event would not lead to out of bank flow on the Duke of Northumberland
watercourse and therefore the site is only at risk during an extreme event. During such
events, flooding is not expected to be significant on site and the primary escape route
utilises the highest part of the site, onto Bath Road and there is safe refuge available in

Page 33
Page 33



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

the upper floors of the hotel. In addition, the flood risk to the proposed development from
groundwater and overland flow is considered to be low. The proposed development will
incorporate a drainage scheme which attenuates water to at least 50% of 100 year
existing rate and stores up to the 1 in 100 year event with an allowancef or  cl ima t e
change.

Following Environment Agency's comments requiring implementation of sustainable
drainage techniques, reducing surface water discharges to not exceed thegr eenf iel d
runoff rate and the drainage system being able to accommodate any storm event up to
the critical duration 1 in 100 year storm event, the applicant has confirmed that a
permeable paving in car parks will be used to reduce the runoff rate andwh i ch al so for ms
part of sustainable drainage technique. A planning condition as suggested by the
Environment Agency that would also ensure that the runoff from the site is minimal. 

The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable and the Environment Agency is
also satisfied with the proposed mitigation measures. 

AIR QUALITY
The development site is within an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) where areas of
Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) exceed the level above 40ugm3 of the National Air Quality
Objectives set by the Government. In accordance with the objectives of the National Air
Quality Strategy, the London Plan Policy 4A.19 Improving Air Quality andthe Co unci l's Ai r
Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance (2002) proposals should seek to minimise the
emissions of key pollutants and to reduce concentrations to levels at which no, or minimal,
effects on human health are likely to occur.

An air quality study has been undertaken by the applicant and concludes that the potential
impacts arising from road traffic associated with the completed Development are
anticipated to have a 'small' beneficial effect of 'Minor' beneficial significance, due to a
reduction in road traffic attributed to the Proposed Development. The maximum offsite
impact associated with heating plant attributed to the completed development was shown
to be 'Minor' adverse offsite, however, taking into account that the Development will
replace an existing hotel use within its own older heating plant, it is likely that the net
impact will be of 'Negligible' significance.

The Council's EPU officer commented that a Green Travel Plan for staff and guests
should be provided as part of development to aid offsetting any impacts of the
development on air quality. In addition, the developer will make financial contribution
towards air quality improvements in the area and therefore the impact from this
development will be minimal.

NOISE
Policy OE3 of the UDP states that buildings which have the potential to cause noise
annoyance will only be permitted if the impact is mitigated within acceptable levels. Policy
OE5 states that proposals for noise sensitive developments will not be permitted where
they would be subject to unacceptable levels of noise or vibration. Given the proposed
application is for a hotel development both policies are considered relevant.

The submission has been accompanied by a noise report prepared by an acoustic
consultant, which concludes:

Page 34
Page 34



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

- The preliminary assessment indicates that the noise from plant and traffic noise impact
to the surrounding residential premises should be attainable with the use of appropriate
mitigation measures.
- A detailed plant assessment will be carried out once the building service design is
developed further. This assessment will include the specifications of appropriate mitigation
measures where necessary.
- The proposed hotel scheme holds significantly less car park spaces than the current
scheme. Therefore it is likely that there will be no elevation from the current state of traffic
flow.

Accordingly, it is considered that the development would result in an appropriate noise
environment for both neighbouring and future occupiers, subject to the conditions
requiring mitigation measures specified in the recommendation.

A resident from Longford Village raised concerns to the construction traffic potentially
accessing the application site through Longford Village. The site is accessible through
Longford Village from A3044 and M25 further beyond. An appropriate worded condition
will be imposed for the submission and approval of a construction management strategy
which will restrict construction vehicle movement. It would be more suitable for large
construction vehicles to access the site from A4 and Colnbrook bypass into Bath Road,
east of the application site and not through the village.

Policies Pt1.39, R7 and R17 of the Council's Unitary Development Plan states that the
Local Planning Authority will, where appropriate, seek to planning obligations to achieve
benefits to the community related to the scale and type of the development proposed.

Approximately 226 full time equivalent hotel staff (for both hotels) would be employed as a
result of the proposed developments and the construction budget would beappr oxi ma t el y
£30m. In accordance with the Council's Planning Obligations SPD the following is sought;
a) A sustainable transport measure in the form of a Green Travel Plan (which includes car
park management plan) in accordance with TfL guidance and be implemented for the
hotels;
b) £30,133 for hospitality training; 
c) £75,000 for construction training;
d) £70,000 towards public realm improvements to the area in general;
e) £30,000 towards public transport improvements;
f) £40,000 towards improvements to and monitoring of air quality;
g) 5% of the total cash contributions towards administration costs, in accordance with
Hillingdon's Supplementary Planning Document on Planning Obligations.

The applicant has agreed to these Heads of Terms, which will be secured through the
completion of an appropriate legal agreement. No objection is raised to the proposal
subject to receipt of a finalised legal agreement.

Not applicable to this development.

Page 35
Page 35



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

There are no other issues to consider.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need tobe awa r e
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and thepr ivat e i nt er est
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

The report indicates that the costs of the development will be fully metby the appl icant ,
and the applicant will make a contribution to the Council towards the associated public
facilities. The developer will also meet all reasonable costs of the Council in the
preparation of the Section 106 agreement and any abortive work as a result of the
agreement not being completed. Consequently, there are no financial implications for this
Planning Committee or the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed scheme for two hotels is a high quality scheme will improvethe qual ity of
Hillingdon's hotel offer by enhancing the needs for both budget and business traveller.
The hotels have been design to respect the character of the locality whilst raising the level
of design within the area. 

Traffic generation is likely to be reduced due to the reduced level of on site parking, cycle
parking provision for staff and guests will be made available and a Green Travel Plan will
be in place to ensure that the development does not impact the adjacent highway and the

Page 36
Page 36



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

road network.

The proposal will also make significant financial contributions towards improvements to
the local area and therefore it is considered that the development will be a positive
contribution to the borough's built environment.

No objections have been received, other than the GLA's comments, and thepr oposal
complies with Hillingdon's Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (2007).

It is necessary to refer any recommendations to the Mayor of London as aSt age I I
referral. Accordingly, approval is recommended and delegated powers sought to approve
the application subject to Mayor Stage II referral, Section 106 Agreement and
recommended conditions.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies 2007
The London Plan
PPS1 - Delivering Sustainable Development
PPS13 - Transport
PPG21 - Tourism
PPS22 - Renewable Energy
PPG24 - Planning and Noise
Planning Policy Statement - Planning and Climate Change
Council's Parking Standards
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Noise
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Access Hillingdon

Jane Jin 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 37
Page 37



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

E
R

R

E
E R

E

ER ROAD

460

(WE
ST)

El Sub

B
A
Y
S
F
A
R
M
C
O
U
R
T

Longford

476

468

BATH ROAD

NORTHER
N PERIME

TER ROAD

a

Cottage
Longford

485

Hotel

24.1m

Pump

BATH R
OAD472

Lorcan

470

24.4m

Mast

65

5 to 9

Court

24.1m

s River

501

El Sub Sta

Club

MS

418

Sta

64

476

24.1m

1to4

Longford Bridge Shelter

420

El Sub Sta

COLNBROOK BY-PASS

B
A
Y
S
FA
R
M
C
O
U
R
T

Heathrow Airport - London

456

420

Shelter

400

450

420

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Heathrow Park Thistle Hotel
Bath Road
Longford

3063/APP/2009/415

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:2,500

Page 38

Page 38



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LAND AT SIPSON FARM  SIPSON ROAD SIPSON 

Extraction of sand and gravel as an extension to existing quarry at Wall
Garden Farm backfilling with inert waste and restoration to agriculturalland.

19/02/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 45408/APP/2009/340

Drawing Nos: 1107/11C: Site context plan
1107/12E: Method of working plan
1107/13D: Final restoration plan
Archaeological Evaluation Report withr eference 60960 dated January
2006 by Wessex Archaeology
Arboricultural Impact Appraisal and Method Statement with reference 8048-
AIA-AS dated 7 March 2008 by Barrell Tree Consultancy
Statement in supporting of planning application dated February 2009 by
Consultant Planning Group
Environmental Statement Non Technical Summary dated February 2009 by
Consultant Planning Group
Environmental Statement Volume 1 dated January 2009 by Consultant
Planning Group
Environmental Statement Volume 2 dated January 2009 by Consultant
Planning Group
Site Location Plan 1107/10B
Flood Risk Assessment and Surface Water Management Scheme dated
April 2009 by Hydrogeological and Landfill Consutlant

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission to extract sand and gravel from an area of 16
hectares on the south side of Sipson Lane, as an extension to the existing Wall Garden
Farm Pit.  This application is a resubmission of an application which was refused in 2007
due to the Environment Agency raising objection on the basis that the applicant failed to
provide sufficient information in the form of a detailed risk assessmentfor  the pot ent ial
ground water pollution.

The application is now accompanied by a Hydrogeological Report and a revised Flood
Risk Assessment which the Environment Agency is satisfied with and they no longer
object to the proposal with respect to groundwater pollution risks.

The proposed net working area of the site is 13.4ha. It is estimated that the site has a
total mineral content of 600,000 tonnes, which indicates a yield of justl ess than 45, 000
tonnes per hectare. 

There is a national importance to safeguard sand and gravel reserves from sterilization,
and given the mitigation measures of the proposal in relation to the surrounding land-
uses, it is considered that the development would not result in an unacceptable level of
harm in terms of air quality, noise and vibration, visual impact and ground water

19/02/2009Date Application Valid:

Item No.2

Page 39

Agenda Item 7

Page 39



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

contamination.

This proposal would make a modest contribution towards meeting an established and
immediate need for the release of additional mineral sites in London in general and in
West London in particular.  Subject to conditions the application is therefore
recommended for approval.

T8

NONSC

NONSC

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Time Limit

Site drainage management

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration ofthr ee year s
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and to ensure
that the commencement of operations is not delayed, to minimise potential blight and to
secure an orderly continuation of extraction and restoration.

All operations hereby authorised by this consent (excluding the 5 year statutory aftercare
requirements) shall be completed within 5 years of the date of this consent. The site
preparation, working and restoration of the site shall be carried out only in accordance
with the details set out in the submitted application form, supporting planning statement,
mitigation strategies as contained in the Environmental Statement dated January 2009,
drawing numbered 1107/10B, 1107/11C, 1107/12E and 1107/13D. No part of the
operations specified therein shall be amended or omitted prior written approval from the
Minerals Planning Authority.

REASON
To enable the Minerals Planning Authority to control the development andto mi ni mi se i ts
impacts on the amenities of the local areas and to ensure the site is restored within the
time scale envisaged in the application, in accordance with policy MIN4 of Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and the Mineral Planning
Statement 1 - Planning and Minerals.

The construction of the site drainage system and surface water management system
shall be carried out in accordance with the details contained in Section6 and Appendi x 6
of the Environmental Statement, dated September 2007 and drawing numbered
1107/12E, 1107/13D and 1107/11C.

REASON
To prevent pollution of the water environment in accordance with MIN21 of the Hillingdon

1

2

3

2. RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Director of Planning and Community
Services to grant Planning Permission subject to the objection from the
Environmental Agency being withdrawn as the Mayor does not need to be
consulted again. If the application is approved, the following conditions be
attached:

Page 40
Page 40



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Control of hours

In accordance with approved plans

Limit for site noise level

Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

i) Except with the prior written agreement of the Minerals Planning Authority, no
operations authorised or required by this permission shall be carried out, and plant shall
not be operated, other than during the following hours:- 
0700 to 1800 hours on Mondays to Fridays and 0700 to 1300 hours on Saturdays.

ii) The formation and subsequent removal of material from any screen banks and
soil/overburden storage areas shall not be carried out except between the following
times:-
0800 to 1800 hours on Mondays to Fridays and 0800 to 1300hours on Saturdays and no
such operations shall take place on Sundays or Bank or Public Holidays. This condition
shall not, however, operate so as to prevent carrying out, outside thesewo r ki ng hour s,  of
essential maintenance to the plant and machinery used on the site.

REASON
For the reasonable protection of residential amenity in accordance with Minerals Planning
Policy 1 - Planning and Minerals and Policy OE3 of Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies.

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Minerals Planning Authority, no operation
hereby permitted by this consent shall commence until the lands is fenced in accordance
with the approved plans. The fencing shall be maintained in a secure condition
throughout the duration of the permitted operations.

REASON
To deter trespass, especially by children or by persons fly tipping, in the interest of public
safety and amenity, in accordance with BE18 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies September 2007.

Noise levels resultant from the development except the stripping and transportation of
soils and construction and removal of screen bunds hereby permitted, shall not exceed
70dB during construction and removal of the bunds and 55dB during the extraction of
minerals, as measured at the boundary of the following noise sensitive sites as identified
in the Figure 1 of the Noise report dated January 2007:
1. Footpath at Field Close
2. Parking area Raywood Close
3. Parking area to south
4. Corner of Chestnut Close
5. Rear of Kenwood Close
6. End of Vincent Drive
7. Additional - the above shall also apply to Sipson House, Sipson Road (dependant
upon use of Sipson House at the time of nearest operations)

REASON
For the protection of residential amenity in accordance with OE3 of the Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies.

4

5

6

Page 41
Page 41



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Noise Monitoring Scheme

No buildings or structure

Control of Soil used

Restoration of land

Before the development hereby permitted commences a noise monitoring scheme shall
be agreed with the Minerals Planning Authority which specifies the provisions to be made
for monitoring of noise levels is accordance with Condition 6.

REASON
For protection of residential amenity, in accordance with OE3 of UnitaryDe vel opme nt
Plan Saved Policies.

Notwithstanding the provision of Part 19 of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, no buildings, structures, fixed or mobile
machinery other than that approved by this consent, shall be erected or placed or
installed on the site without the prior written approval of the MineralsPl anni ng Aut hor i ty.

REASON
For the protection of residential amenity, in accordance with Minerals Planning Statement
1 - Planning and Minerals and BE19 of Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies.

Prior to any excavation of sand and gravel, the screen banks shown on the approved
plans shall be formed of stripped topsoil, subsoil and overburden in theposi tions
indicated on drawing numbered 1107/12E.

Bunds for the storage of agriculture soils shall conform to the following criteria:
a) Topsoils, subsoils and subsoil substitutes shall be stored separately.
b) Where continuous bunds are used dissimilar soils shall be separated by a third
material, previously approved in writing by the Minerals Planning Authority.
c) Topsoils, subsoils and subsoil substitutes shall not exceed 3 metresin hei ght .
d) Materials shall be stored like upon like, so that topsoil shall be stripped from beneath
subsoil bunds and subsoil from beneath overburden bunds.
e) All work of soil stripping, stockpiling and reinstatement should be carried out when the
topsoil and subsoil shall be transported and not bladed.
f) All bunds shall be such that the outward facing slopes shall not exceed a gradient of 1
in 3 and the tops of the bunds shall be undulating to void and 'engineered' appearance.
g) Bunds shall be seeded with a suitable low maintenance grass seed mixture in the first
available planting season following their placement and maintained in a tidy condition
free of weed infestation.

REASON
To ensure the retention of the existing soils on the site for retention purpose and
minimise the impact of the development on the locality, in accordance with Mineral
Planning Statement 1 - Planning and Minerals and policy MIN6 of Hillingdon's Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

a) The uppermost layer of the waste material shall be graded to 1.2m below those
contours shown by approved plan No. 1107/13D, making due allowance for settlement of
the waste, replacement of subsoil and topsoil. Level markers shall be provided for
guidance of machine operators, and must adequately identify the level ofthe final  wa st e

7

8

9

10

Page 42
Page 42



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Restoration of land

Restoration of land for agricultural use

Site management

and soil restoration horizons.

b) The uppermost layer of the waste shall be ripped to a minimum depth of 250mm to
deal with any extensive compaction likely to impede free drainage of therest or at ion soi ls
prior to their replacement. Any objects or foreign bodies in excess of 150mm in diameter
lying on the surface after ripping shall be removed from the site.

REASON
To ensure the satisfactory restoration of the land, in accordance with MIN6 of Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

On completion of works required of Condition 9 above, clean subsoil and topsoil shall be
spread in their natural occurring sequence, to minimum depths of 87cm and 33cm
respectively. All clean materials shall be free from objects greater than 150mm in
diameter or other objects and foreign bodies considered likely to impedethe sat isf act or y
restoration and aftercare of the land.

REASON
To ensure the satisfactory restoration of the land, in accordance with policy MIN6 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

a) Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Minerals Planning Authority, following the
replacement of subsoil and topsoil as required by Condition 10 above, the site shall be
subject to 5 year of controlled aftercare in accordance with an initial aftercare strategy
previously approved in writing by the Minerals Planning Authority. Such an aftercare
strategy shall be submitted within twelve months of the date of this permission an shall
make provision for planting, seeding, (control of weeds) cultivating, fertilising, watering,
drainage, failure of planting or seeding and settlement.

b) Agreement of an initial aftercare scheme shall not preclude its subsequent
modification or replacement in the light of subsequent annual assessments showing this
to be necessary within the 5 year period.

c) In the event of remedial restoration works becoming necessary and negating aftercare
already carried out, then a new aftercare scheme shall be carried out onthe par t of  the
site for a 5 year period commencing with the date of completion of the remedial work and
replacement of restoration soils in accordance with details agreed in writing by the
Minerals Planning Authority.

REASON
To provide the best prospect of the land being reasonably fit for agriculture use within the
statutory aftercare period after stable restoration has been achieved, in accordance with
policy MIN6 of Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

Site operations shall at all times be conducted so as to minimise dust generation,
including the use of water sprinklers or other means. Regard shall be paid to the strength
and direction of winds; especially during formation and removal of screen banks. In the

11

12

13

Page 43
Page 43



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Restrict stockpiling

Watercourse

Highway protection

Archaeology

Habitat Protection

event of it not being possible to conduct operations without significantspr eadi ng of  dust
beyond the site boundaries, operations on that part of the site shall cease promptly.

REASON
The Minerals Planning Authority consider that careful site management should contain
any problems but that it is essential to safeguard the amenities of residents, in
accordance with Mineral Planning Statement 1 - Planning and Minerals.

There shall be no long term stockpiling of materials, and any materials shall not be stored
in stockpiles exceeding 3 metres in height.

REASON
To minimise the visual impact of operations, in accordance with Policy OL2 of Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

No excavation shall take place within 5m of public sewer and watercourses.

REASON
So as not to affect the public drainage system, in accordance with Policy MIN21 of
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

No excavation shall take place within 6 metres of the public highway.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed works do not affect the stability of the public highway in
accordance with Policy MIN3 of Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies.

No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a
programme of archaeological work, in accordance with a written scheme ofinvest igat ion
which has been submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by theMi ner al s
Planning Authority.

REASON
The site is within an area of archaeological importance where ground works may result in
the destruction of archaeological remains, in accordance with policy MIN14 of Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007. 

Existing ponds, lakes and bodies of standing water shall be safeguarded during mineral
extraction, along with any natural buffer habitat, and integrated into the final
restoration/landscaping of the area. Planting adjacent to, or as of a buffer strip to, a
water body/feature shall be locally native species of UK generic stock, as far as possible.

14

15

16

17

18

Page 44
Page 44



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Landscaping

Monitoring

Construction Vehicle

REASON
To protect, restore or replace the natural features of importance withinor  adj oi ni ng the
watercourse, in accordance with Policy MIN4 of Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies September 2007.

No development shall take place until a detailed scheme for the landscaping of the site
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Minerals Planning Authority. Such a
scheme shall include details of;
a) The positions of all existing trees and shrubs and hedgerows to be retained, and the
proposal for their protection throughout the operations.
b) The positions, species and density and initial sizes of all new trees and shrubs.
c) Any hard landscaping proposed.
d) The programme and implementation of the scheme.
e) The arrangement for subsequent maintenance.

The scheme as approved shall be carried out in full.

REASON
The provision and maintenance of a satisfactory degree of landscaping isconsi der ed
essential in the interest of visual amenity, in accordance with policy OL2 of Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and to avoid endangering the
safe movement of aircraft and operation of Heathrow Airport through the attraction of
birds and an increase in the bird hazard risk of the application site.

The operator shall notify the Minerals Planning Authority in writing within one month of
the dates of commencement/completion of the following:
a) implementing this planning permission;
b) soil stripping;
c) entering each phase of mineral extraction;
d) completion of each tipping phase;
e) completion of restoration of each phase;
f) completion of the landscaping/planting scheme;
g) completion of final restoration under his planning permission;
h) estimated date for completion of aftercare.

REASON
To enable the Mineral Planning Authority to control the development and to monitor the
site to ensure compliance with the planning permission, in accordance with Policies
MIN4, MIN5 and MIN6 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
September 2007.

Best practicable means shall be taken at all times to ensure that all vehicles leaving the
site are in a condition such as not to emit dust or deposit mud, slurry or other debris on
the highway. In particular, without prejudice to foregoing, efficient means shall be
installed, maintained and employed the cleaning of wheels of all lorriesleavi ng the si te.

REASON

19

20

21

Page 45
Page 45



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Habitat Protection

Site Restoration

Control of waste materials

Habitat Management Plan

Habitat Management

In the interest of highway safety and to prevent mud and dust getting onthe hi ghwa y in
accordance with Policy OE1 of Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies.

No clearing of vegetation or building demolition shall be permitted to take place during
the bird nesting season (15th March - 31st August inclusive).

REASON
To minimise disturbance to breeding birds in the interest of nature conservation and in
accordance with Policies EC2, EC3 and EC5 of Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies September 2007.

No later than six months from the cessation of all tipping or within such further period as
the Minerals Planning Authority may agree in writing, all plants, machinery, access roads,
buildings, foundations, hard standings and any other site facilities no longer required in
connection with the workings/landfill operations, restoration or approved afteruse shall be
removed from the site.

REASON
In the interest of the amenities of the area and to ensure that proper restoration of the
site, in accordance with Policies MIN4, MIN5 and MIN6 of Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

Nothing other than clean, dry, non-putrescible waste material (comprising topsoil, subsoil,
brickwork, concrete, stone, clay, plaster, sane and silica) shall be deposited on site.

REASON
To prevent water pollution, in accordance with Policy MIN21 of Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

No works of demolition or development to take place until a Habitat Management Plan
has been submitted to the Minerals Planning Authority for approval in writing. This is to
include details of the species to be planted/sown and how the site will be managed for
the benefit of appropriate London Biodiversity Action Plan habitats and species.  The
approved scheme shall be implemented in its entity in compliance with timeframes
specified.

REASON
To protect any existing habitats within the site in accordance with the Policies EC1 and
EC5 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Before the development hereby permitted commences a scheme of measures to prevent
disturbance to wildlife from the erection of bunds, mineral extraction and aftercare
operations shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Minerals Planning Authority.

22

23

24

25

26

Page 46
Page 46



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Highway protection

Control of Noise

Air Quality

Bird Management Plans

In particular the scheme should address impacts on nesting birds between1st  Ma r ch to
31st August inclusive and on badgers that might enter the site (precautions should be
taken with regard to the prevention of damage to badgers by falling intoo pen
holes/trenches at night, or by machinery and excavations damaging newly built setts,
such as manual exclusion fencing around workings). The agreed scheme should be
implemented in full unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
 
REASON
To protect wildlife and their habitats in accordance with Policies EC2, EC3 and EC5 of
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The excavation shall not be beyond the limits shown on plan 1107/12E andshal l not
exceed 6.3m below ground level near the M4 spur.

REASON
To maintain highway safety and integrity of the M4 in accordance with Policy OE1 of
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies. 

The use of RB38 machinery shall not occur any where less than 100m from the eastern
and southern boundary and shall not be used any where less than 50m fromthe we st er n
site edge.

REASON
To protect residential amenity, in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies.

Notwithstanding hereby submitted, further details on the predicted NO2 levels at all
receptors with and without the development for the proposed year of operation and any
mitigation measures to deal with the impact on the NO2 levels in the area shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Minerals Planning Authority.

REASON
To protect residential amenity and in accordance with Ppolicy 4A.6 of London Plan and
Hillingdon's Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance.

Development shall not commence until a Bird Hazard Management Plan has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Minerals Authority. The submitted plan
shall include details of:
- the control of Canada geese within the application boundary

The Bird Hazard Management Plan shall be implemented as approved, on completion of
the development and shall remain in force in perpetuity. No subsequent alterations to the
plan are to take place unless first submitted to and approved in writingby the Mi ner al s
Planning Authority.

27

28

29

30

Page 47
Page 47



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC Access maintanence

REASON
It is necessary to manage the Canada geese on this site in order to minimise its
attractiveness to birds which could endanger the safe movement of aircraft and the
operation of Heathrow Airport in accordance with Policy A6 of Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies.

The existing haul road and access route as shown on plan 1107/12E shall be maintained
throughout the operation hereby approved, and no routing arrangement changes shall be
made without the prior written approval by the Mineral Planning Authority.

REASON
To protect the amenity of the local residents, in accordance with PolicyMI N2  of  Un i tar y
Development Plan Saved Policies.

31

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to afai r hear ing) ; Ar ticl e 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the FirstPr ot ocol  (pr ot ect ion of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

OL1

OL2
OL3
OL4
OL26

EC2
EC3

EC5
EC6
OE1

OE3

OE6
OE13

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
Green Belt -landscaping improvements
OL3 Green Belt -
Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings
Protection and enhancement of trees, woodland and landscape
features
Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments
Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation
importance
Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats
Retention of wildlife habitats on derelict or vacant land
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
Proposals likely to result in pollution
Recycling facilities in major developments and other appropriate

Page 48
Page 48



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I38

I1

I23

I58

IT05

Conditions - Further Advice

Building to Approved Drawing

Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

Opportunities for Work Experience

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

3

4

5

6

7

The applicant is advised that Condition 5 is not intended to affect yourgener al
responsibilities under the Mines and Quarries legislation or other legislation, which may
necessitate additional action on your part.

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

The development requires the formation of a vehicular crossover, which will be
constructed by the Council.  This work is also subject to the issuing ofa separ at e l icence
to obstruct or open up the public highway.  For further information and advice contact: -
Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

The developer is requested to maximise the opportunities to provide highqual ity wo r k
experience for young people (particularly the 14 - 19 age group) from the London
Borough of Hillingdon, in such areas as bricklaying, plastering, painting and decorating,
electrical installation, carpentry and landscaping in conjunction with the Hillingdon
Education and Business Partnership. 

Please refer to the enclosed leaflet and contact Peter Sale, Hillingdon Education and
Business Partnership Manager: contact details - c/o British Airways Community Learning
Centre, Accommodation Lane, Harmondsworth, UB7 0PD. Tel: 020 8897 7633. Fax:  020
897 7644. email: p.sale@btconnect.com .

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981:  Note that it is an offence under this act to disturb
roosting bats or nesting birds or other species.  It is advisable to consult your tree
surgeon/consultant to agree an acceptable time for carrying out any work.

MIN1
MIN2

MIN3

MIN7
MIN10

MIN11
MIN21

AM6

AM7

sites
Safeguarding of sand and gravel reserves
Proposals to work sand and gravel in relation to regional
requirements and London-wide Landbank
Restriction on area of land south of the M4 motorway subject to
planning consent for sand and gravel extraction and/or waste
disposal
Restoration of good agricultural land following mineral extraction
Restoration and after-use of sand and gravel workings in the Colne
Valley
After-use of mineral sites - landscaping and screening
Impact of development proposals involving landfilling on the local
hydrogeological regime - requirement for monitoring and mitigation
measures
Measures to discourage the use of Local Distributor and Access
Roads by through traffic
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Page 49
Page 49



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I38 Conditions - Further Advice8

9

10

11

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is an area of flat land situated to the east of M4 Heathrow spur, in the
general area between the main M4 to the north and the A4 to the south. Access to the site
would be via an existing haul road access off Sipson Road to the south. The application
site is within the Green Belt.

The application site is stated to be 16 hectares in area. It is currently in agricultural use,
apart from the haul road on the western side of the site which provides vehicular access to
the plant site at Wall Garden Farm (north of the application site, north of Sipson Lane)
and to the adjacent extraction site known as 'East of Wall Garden Farm'.

There are no occupied buildings within the application site. Sipson House, which is
currently being used as B1 offices, lie immediately adjacent to the southern boundary, and
is a listed building. The nearest dwelling is Doghurst House, which is 10-15m from the
southern site boundary. Otherwise the nearest dwellings are some 70m to the east of the
site, in Raywood Close and Field Close in Harlington (55m between the boundary of the
application site and the back fences of these properties).

The Heathrow Express tunnels run beneath the western part of the application site, at a
depth of 22-23 metres below ground level.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The applicant is advised that, the details of Condition 17 should be in accordance with
the appropriate English Heritage guidelines.

The applicant is advised that the pollution control and prevention measures are the
responsibility of the Environment Agency and will be addressed through the PPC license
process.

The applicant is advised that the development of this site is likely to impact on
archaeological remains. The applicant should therefore submit detailed proposals in the
form of an archaeological project design. This design should be in accordance with the
appropriate English Heritage Guidelines.

The applicant is advised that the location of the site falls within boththe i ndi cat ive ma p
published by Department for Transport in the White Paper and falls within the interim
land boundary for the third runway development that BAA Heathrow has published its
draft Interim Masterplan. Therefore the owner of the site should be aware of the potential
implications for the development should a third runway proposal proceed.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 50
Page 50



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The application site is an extension to the operation at Wall Garden Farm. Extraction from
the original Wall Garden Farm site was allowed on appeal in 1978, and since then various
extensions have been permitted both north and south of Sipson Lane. 

An application for the subject site was previously refused on 27th June 2008 as there was
insufficient information in the form of detailed risk assessment to demonstrate the risk of
groundwater pollution.  The subject application is therefore a re-submission with
information to address the previous reason for refusal.

Permission for the area where extraction is currently taking place, to the east of Wall

The application seeks permission for the extraction of sand and gravel from the last
substantial un-worked area of mineral-bearing land between Sipson and Harlington. Land
to the north and east of the application site (between the site and Sipson Lane) has either
already been extracted as part of the Wall Garden Farm or Harlington Pitoper at ions,  or
has permission for extraction, or else has to be left un-worked to provide buffer to a VHF
receiver immediately north-west of the subject application site.

The net working area of the site is 13.4ha. It is estimated that the site has a total mineral
content of 600,000 tonnes, which indicates a yield of just less than 45,000 tonnes per
hectare. The site would be dewatered during extraction and landfilling, using a
submersible pump as at the current working East of Wall Garden Farm. Thewa t er  wi ll be
discharged to existing lakes and lagoons.

Extraction will be carried out using a dragline excavator, with the material taken via a new
field conveyor to the existing plant at Wall Garden Farm for processing,cr ossi ng Si pson
Lane via an existing tunnel. Working of the application site is intendedt o st ar t wh en
extraction from the site East of Wall Garden Farm has ceased, and the level of production
through the plant at Wall Garden Farm is intended to remain the same as at present,
namely 200,000 tonnes per year. At that rate, extraction of sand and gravel from the
application site would take three years.

The site will be worked in five phases which will progressively restoredby backf illing wi th
inert construction and demolition wastes (comprising soil, brick, concrete, and naturally-
occurring stone). It is estimated that backfilling will be completed within a year of the
completion of extraction and that further six months will be needed to finish the restoration
of the site. The total duration of extraction and restoration would therefore be
approximately 4½ years.

The site would be restored for agricultural use. A five-year aftercare period is proposed for
each phase area. Under separate legislation the site would have to be monitored for water
levels and quality, and for gas, for a period of 10 years.

45408/APP/2007/3189 Land At Sipson Farm  Sipson Road Sipson 

EXTRACTION OF SAND AND GRAVEL AS AN EXTENSION TO EXISTING QUARRY AT
WALL GARDEN FARM BACKFILLING WITH INERT WASTE AND RESTORATION TO
AGRICULTURAL LAND.

27-06-2008Decision: Refused

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 51
Page 51



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Garden Farm, was granted on 21 May 2002. The majority of this has now been worked
and is in the process of being backfilled. A further planning permissionf or  a sma l l
extension to the east was granted recently on 22 December 2008, but the work in this
area has not yet commenced. All extraction in the area to the north of Sipson Lane would
be completed before work is commenced in the area which is the subject of this
application. The only activity in the current working area would therefore be the
completion of filling and restoration.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Planning Policy Guidance Note 2: Green Belts
Minerals Policy Statement 1: Planning and Minerals (MPS1)
Minerals Policy Statement 2: Controlling and Mitigating the Environmental Effects of
Minerals Extraction in England (March 2005)
London Plan February 2008
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007

PT1.1

PT1.7

PT1.9

PT1.10

To maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature
of the area.

To promote the conservation, protection and enhancement of the archaeological
heritage of the Borough.

To seek to preserve statutory Listed Buildings and buildings on the Local List.

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenityand
the character of the area.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

OL1

OL2

OL3

OL4

OL26

EC2

EC3

EC5

EC6

OE1

OE3

OE6

OE13

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

Green Belt -landscaping improvements

OL3 Green Belt -

Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

Protection and enhancement of trees, woodland and landscape features

Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation importance

Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

Retention of wildlife habitats on derelict or vacant land

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Proposals likely to result in pollution

Recycling facilities in major developments and other appropriate sites

Part 2 Policies:

Page 52
Page 52



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

MIN1

MIN2

MIN3

MIN7

MIN10

MIN11

MIN21

AM6

AM7

Safeguarding of sand and gravel reserves

Proposals to work sand and gravel in relation to regional requirements and
London-wide Landbank

Restriction on area of land south of the M4 motorway subject to planningconsent
for sand and gravel extraction and/or waste disposal

Restoration of good agricultural land following mineral extraction

Restoration and after-use of sand and gravel workings in the Colne Valley

After-use of mineral sites - landscaping and screening

Impact of development proposals involving landfilling on the local hydrogeological
regime - requirement for monitoring and mitigation measures

Measures to discourage the use of Local Distributor and Access Roads by
through traffic

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Not applicable25th March 2009

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

This application has been advertised under Article 8 of the Town and Country Planning General
Development Procedure Order 1995 as a Major Development. Surrounding property
owners/occupiers have been consulted.  695 letters were sent to adjoining residents, and 2 site
notices were erected in prominent positions in close proximity to the proposal site. 1 letter of
objection have been received objecting to the application on the following grounds:

1. extra noise in addition to airport and traffic noise
2. dust
3. disturbance to local wildlife, intrusion on parkland designated as public walkways
4. extra mud and traffic on the busy roads

GLA
The Mayor considers that, in general, the application complies with the London Plan Policies on
Waste, the green belt and biodiversity for following reasons;

Green belt - The site is not a new extraction but an extension to an existing operation at Sipson.
Much of the land being worked by the applicant company has also been successfully retuned to
aftercare, which demonstrates that an adequate restoration regime can beachi eved.  On  thi s basi s,
the proposal will not harm the Green Belt. As a result the proposal complies with policy 3D.9 of the
London Plan.

Waste - Policy 4A.31 seeks to support the better use of aggregates by identifying and safeguarding
resources suitable for extraction and adopting high environmental standards for extraction. Policy
4A.32 states mineral planning authorities in London should maintain a minimum land bank
equivalent to seven year's production at the 1 million tonnes per year rate of which 0.5 million
tonnes is apportioned to four west London boroughs including Hillingdon.The pr inci pl e of  mi ner al
extraction in Hillingdon is acknowledged in this policy.

Page 53
Page 53



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Biodiversity - The applicant has submitted an ecological survey and impact evaluation with the
application, which is thorough in its scope and findings. This confirms that there are no significant
ecological impacts of the proposal. The planning statement claims the restoration of the site has
been designed to bring about a general improvement in the landform, witha sl ight  i ncr ease i n
gradients in order to assist natural drainage. As a result the proposal complies with policy 3D.14 of
the London Plan.

The Mayor does not need to be consulted again on this application. 

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY
The Environment Agency initially objected and recommended refusal on this basis for the reasons
that the Flood Risk Assessment submitted with the application does not comply with the
requirements set out in Annex E, paragraph E3 of Planning Policy Statement 25. 

However, the applicant is currently resolving the issues with the Environment Agency and it is
considered that the issues are likely to be resolved. At the time of writing no confirmation by
Environment Agency was received and therefore, further information to the Environment Agency's
position will be addressed in the Addendum.

HIGHWAYS AGENCY
The excavation does not in anyway affect the stability of the M4. This includes the M4 verge and its
fence line. Provided the extraction limit shown on plan 1107/12E and theant ici pat ed ma xi mu m
depth are not exceeded, this should be satisfactory. For the avoidance of doubt, a condition should
be attached to any permission, on these lines: 'excavation shall not be beyond the limits shown on
plan 1107/12E and shall not exceed 6.3m below ground level near the M4 spur' the reason is to
maintain the safety and integrity of the M4.

NATURAL ENGLAND
No comments to make on this occasion.

DEFRA
No comments received.

BAA SAFEGUARDING 
The proposed development has been examined from an aerodrome safeguarding perspective and
could conflict with safeguarding criteria unless any planning permissiongr ant ed i s subj ect  t o t he
following conditions.

1. Submission of a Bird Hazard Management Plan, including the control ofCa nada geese wi thi n the
application boundary. 
2. Submission of Landscape Scheme, including details of species, number and spacing of tress
and shrubs.

BAA also made the following observation on Future Airport Boundary (Heathrow).
We have reviewed this planning application and can confirm that the location of the site falls within
both the indicative map published by the Department for Transport in theWh i te Paper  and f al ls
within the interim land boundary for a third runway development that BAAHe at hr ow has publ ished
in its draft Interim Masterplan. We believe that the request from the Department of Transport, for
BAA to safeguard land for a third runway requires us to make both the Local Planning Authority and
the owner of the site aware of the potential implications for the development should a third runway
proposal proceed. If the runway proposal does proceed it is likely that BAA would see to
compulsory purchase the site. At this stage however, no policy decision has been taken by BAA as
to whether a planning application will be brought forward for a third runway at Heathrow Airport.

Page 54
Page 54



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

TREES AND LANDSCAPE 
The landscaping proposals include bunding and tree and shrub planting. All boundaries have been
considered. New planting will be carried out using less than 5% fruit bearing species in accordance
with Hillingdon's UDP policy A6 - which acknowledges BAA's Birdstrike Hazard Avoidance
Guidelines. If the application is recommended for approval there is no objection subject planning
conditions requiring submission of details regarding the landscape mitigation.

POLICY TEAM (Babtie Group)
In policy terms there is support for the mineral extraction. The proposal would help to meet an
established and immediate need for the release of additional mineral sites in London in general,
and in West London in particular. With respect to the LDF, the site has been identified, albeit not
yet finally, as a suitable 'Preferred Area' for future mineral extraction.

Should the Council be minded to approve this application, it is recommended that the permission
should be subject to conditions. 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT
The noise assessment addresses noise from the site and its effects on the surrounding area. The
assessment uses guidance Mineral Policy Statement (MPS) 2, controllingand mi tigat ing t he
Environmental Effects of Mineral Extraction in England. The assessment concludes that through
construction of bunds, this will eventually control the noise from the site. Other mitigation measures
include operating the Volvo machinery closest the house rather than the noisier RB 38 machinery.

In conclusion, Environmental Protection Unit consider that even though this may be an extension to
a functional quarry and the noise levels quoted are within the guidance,noi se wi ll be a pr obl em for
the residents especially during the construction of the bunds. Thereforea pl anni ng condi tion shal l
include seeking noise management scheme which would specify the provisions to be made for the
control of noise.

In terms of air quality, the submitted air quality assessment takes intoaccount  const ruct ion and
operation from the development and its effect on nitrogen dioxide (NO2)and par ticul at e ma t ter
(PM10) levels as well as dust. The assessment concludes that dust issues can be mitigated but
could potentially be a problem to those up to 100m away and nitrogen dioxide levels are likely to
increase by 0.97ugm3 although this is not significant, as it does not exceed the health objectives.
Therefore, conditions should be placed for submissions for further details. These include the
submission of predicted NO2 levels at all receptors and mitigation measures to deal with impact on
the NO2 levels in the area. To further ensure control of air quality theappl icant  shoul d al so submi t
a detailed environmental management plan following guidance from GLA Best Practice Guide for
Reducing Emissions from Construction.

ENGLISH HERITAGE
Concentration of Bronze Age, Iron Age and Roman features (c2,000 BC to AD 400) is present in
the south western corner of the site, although archaeological remains are present across its
entirety.

As the applicants have already conducted an archaeological evaluation onthe si te,  no fur ther  wo r k
is needed to be undertaken prior to determination of this planning application. Rather, the
archaeological position should be reserved by attached a condition to any consent granted under
this application. 

NATS
No safeguarding objections to this proposal.

Page 55
Page 55



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

NEED AND LAND BANK ISSUES
The national policy (Minerals Policy Statement 1: Planning and Minerals) requires
planning authorities to make continuing provision for mineral extraction.  Under Policy
4A.32 of the London Plan, London is required to make provision for extraction at a rate of
1 million tonnes per year, with 0.5mt of this being apportioned to the West London
Boroughs (which include Hillingdon). New permissions are needed urgently across
London if this level of provision is to be maintained: at the end of 2006 London's land bank
of permitted sand and gravel reserves stood at only 3.1 years, as compared with the
target figure of 'at least seven years' set in MPS1. In West London, theland bank figur e at
the end of 2006 was even lower, at 2.4 years. (Source: London Aggregates Monitoring
2006, paras. 6.3-6.6)

Granting permission for the mineral extraction proposed in this application would therefore
contribute to the maintenance of this level of provision over the comingyear . MP S1 st at es
that 'a land bank below (seven years) indicates that additional reserves will need to be
permitted if acceptable planning applications are submitted' (MPS1 para4. 1) . The wo r d
'acceptable' here is significant: a requirement to aim to maintain a land bank of at least
seven years does no remove the Councils discretion to refuse planning permission should
there be overriding objections.

SITES FOR MINERAL EXTRACTION
London Plan Policy 4A.31 seeks the identification of aggregate resourcessui tabl e f or
extraction. There are currently no adopted policies in Hillingdon that identify sites or areas
where mineral extraction will be permitted, or where it will not. However, for the Local
Development Framework (LDF) an exercise has been carried out to identify the most
suitable sites for future extraction in Hillingdon. These sites have been put forward as
proposed 'Preferred Areas' for extraction in the LDF documents publishedt o dat e.
Following a careful process of comparative site assessment, land including the present
application site has been identified as being acceptable in principle for mineral extraction,
and has therefore been publicly proposed as a 'Preferred Area'. It is understood that there
has been little if any significant objection to this development controlpr ocess at  pr esent ,
and that account should be taken of the fact that the application, in principle, accords with
those policies, which in turn accord with a clear principle laid down inthe London Pl an.

MINERAL STERILISATION
National policy seeks to prevent the sterilisation of mineral resources,and London Pl an
Policy 4A.31 seeks to safeguard aggregate resources suitable for extraction. Allowing this
proposal would not clearly safeguard the site's resource to meet a longer-term need, but it
would help to meet a significant current need for further mineral extraction (para 6.2
above). In this instance, meeting the established present need is considered to be more
important than safeguarding the mineral for the longer term.

Refusing the application would not in the first instant be in conflict with safeguarding
policies, as it would leave the mineral in the ground and potential available for extraction in
the future. However, in practice it is likely that a site of this size, in this location, could only
be worked as an extension to another mineral working, as currently proposed. As there
are no other substantial un-worked areas in this area and east of the M4spur , a ref usal  of
the present application could lead to this site being left un-worked indefinitely, as the
current operator at Wall Garden Farm would be expected to move away fromt hi s
immediate area after implementing their current permissions. Thus refusal of this
application could lead to the practical sterilisation of the site's minerals, contrary to

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 56
Page 56



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

national policy aims to avoid sterilising mineral resources.

THE SCALE OF EXTRACTION IN THE WIDER AREA
The present application site is in the area between the A4 and the M4 where the majority
of recent minerals-related activity has taken place. Hillingdon's Unitary Development
Saved Policy MIN3 sets a normal limit of 165ha on the amount of land south of M4 which
is subject to permission for sand and gravel extraction and/or waste disposal, and where
restoration has not yet been complete.

The latest monitoring report on this policy shows that at the end of 2008 the amount of
land caught by Policy MIN3 provisions totalled just over 136ha, and forecast that this
figure would remain roughly constant until the end of 2009, after which it would begin to
fall off rapidly. To grant permission for mineral extraction from the application site of 16ha
would not cause the figure of 165ha to be exceeded. The proposal is therefore in
accordance with Policy MIN3.

It should be noted that the figure of 165ha is a limit and not a target.He nce i f t hi s
application were found to be subject to significant objections, the factt hat  i t wo ul d
increase the amount of land in mineral-related uses closer to the figureof  165ha wo ul d
not be of any significance in assessing the overall merits of the proposal.

RESTORATION PROPSOALS
The proposed restoration of the site to agriculture is in accordance with the restoration
achieved on adjacent land, and raises no policy issues.

CONCLUSION
It is considered that there is a strong case for supporting this proposal in terms of mineral
policies, above all because;
a) mineral extraction from the site will make a much-needed contribution to meeting
required levels of aggregates provision;
b) it will also prevent the sterilisation of the remaining mineral reserves;
c) the principles of the application have already been considered and accepted in the
previous proposal (ref. 45408/APP/2007/3189) which is the same as the current proposal; 

Furthermore, the site has already been identified, in work on the LDF, as one of the small
number of un-worked sites in the Borough where mineral extraction would be acceptable
in principle. It has therefore been identified as a 'Preferred Area' in emerging LDF
documents published to date. However, only a limited weight in the overall assessment
should be given as the proposals have not given rise to significant public examination.

Not applicable to this development.

There are remains of local and regional archaeological significance in this area. In
particular, a concentration of Bronze Age, Iron Age and Roman features (c2,000BC -
AD400) is present in the south-western corner of the site, although archaeological
remains are present across its entirely.

The applicants have conducted an archaeological evaluation on the site and there for
English Heritage commented that no further work need to be undertake prior to
determination of this application.  Rather, an appropriately worded condition requiring a
programme of archaeological works to prevent damage to archaeological remains would

Page 57
Page 57



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.04

7.05

7.07

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

be required.

The application was referred to BAA and a response has been received andst at e that  the
proposal has been examined from an aerodrome safeguarding perspective and does not
conflict with safeguarding criteria subject to a planning conditions forthe submi ssi on of  a
Bird Hazard Management Plan and a Landscape scheme including details of species,
number and spacing of trees and shrubs.

In addition, BAA commented that the location of the application site falls within the
indicative map for a third runway development that BAA Heathrow has published in their
Masterplan.

Therefore, BAA has confirmed that if the plans are to proceed it is likely that the BAA
would seek to compulsory purchase the site to safeguard land for a thirdr unwa y at
Heathrow Airport. However, no policy decision has been taken by BAA as to whether a
planning application will be brought forward.

The site is in the Green Belt. Planning Policy Guidance No 2 (PPG2) states that mineral
extraction need not be inappropriate development in the Green Belt, as it need not conflict
with the purpose of including land in the Green Belt provided that high environmental
standards are maintained and that the site is well restored.

On a similar note, London Plan Policy 4A.31 requires development plan documents to
adopt the highest environmental standards for aggregates extraction in line with national
minerals policy guidance, whether in the Green Belt or not. It is considered that there is no
reason to suppose that those criteria, and those of PPG2, will not be met on this proposal.

The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land
permanently open. In terms of appearance and character of the area, the proposal would
have minimal impact. The application site is visible from public vantagepoi nt s i ncl udi ng
the M4 spur, with most prominent view from Sipson Road. The application includes a
'Visual Appraisal Report' (VAR), which describes the landscape character and context and
the significant areas of vegetation.

The site, whilst not of high landscape value, is considered to offer a degree of visual
amenity.

The report summaries that the bunds, which are intended for sound attenuation, will also
serve a valuable function in terms of screen the site.  These bunds are 2m to 3m high and
will have asymmetrical sides, with shallower slopes on the outside face to integrate better
into surrounding landform.

With regard to the 'openness' of the site within the Green Belt, it is not considered that
there will be a significant long term impact on the perception of openness, due to the
temporary nature of the bunds and the proposed land restoration measures. The
proposed landscaping associated with the restoration of the land as outlined on the 'Final
Restoration Plan' would recreate hedgerows/field boundaries, tree planting which would
enhance the appearance and landscape quality of the site and provide ecological benefits.

Page 58
Page 58



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

The additional planting and fencing improvements proposed is considered to enhance the
character and appearance of the area in the long term.

Doghurst House, to the south of the site, is the closest residential dwellinghouse which is
approximately 15m from the boundary of the site. Otherwise, the nearest residential
dwellings are more than 65m from the boundaries of the site and benefit from the
screening effects of existing vegetation. The nearest site to the working area is Sipson
House on Sipson Road. The current approved use of the site is offices and therefore is a
less sensitive use. Regardless, mitigation measures will be in place to reduce the impact,
such as bunding, landscaping and noise monitoring.

Mineral operations can be impact upon existing noise sensitive land usesi f they ar e not
appropriately managed.  The applicant have stated that the hours of working will be the
same as the existing Wall Garden Farm development and the methods of working will
ensure that operations which may disturb residential amenities are completed early in the
site's development (namely phases 1 to 2). Following on from this, further operations over
the four year period are located further away from noise sensitive properties.

The applicant's proposed method of working does to some extent limit theef fect  on
neighbouring residential amenities. Mitigation measures, as proposed, will also reduce
noise, air, and traffic problems. The only potential concern is whether a suitable buffer
zone exists between the site and residential properties. Retention and strengthening of
hedgerow boundaries may help to provide a more effective buffer. Furthermore, as
required by the EPU additional conditions will be imposed to limit site noise levels,
mitigation measures to deal with the impact on the NO2 levels in the area and limit dust
levels.

Not applicable to this development.

The applicant has demonstrated that this application represents a continuation of
operations at existing production levels, therefore no increase in traffic generation. The
current highway arrangements can also remain as existing due to vehiclescont inui ng to
access the processing plant from Sipson Road. It is considered that the site traffic can be
fully accommodated within the existing road access and site infrastructure arrangements.
Any additional impact on local residents can be minimised by maintainingt he exi st ing
routing arrangements through a suitably worded planning condition.

The proposal is therefore not considered to have significant impact on the nearby highway
and to the safety of the users.

There are no urban design and security issues to consider. With regards to access, the
existing routing arrangement will remain same and no new access or haul route will be
created.

Not applicable to this development.

Page 59
Page 59



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this development.

LANDSCAPE
A full landscape and visual impact assessment was conducted for the site. This concluded
that the proposed bunds and new planting would reduce the impact of the proposed
development and therefore the development would be acceptable in landscape terms.

Bunding is a tried and tested method of minimising the visual impact of quarrying
operations and has the added benefit as soil storage and as a noise buffer. However, the
landscape around Sipson Farm is relatively flat and low-lying, thereforethe bunds i tsel f
could appear odd in the landscape. However, taking into account the overall benefits the
bunding, the use of them at this site is considered to be acceptable. The Mineral Planning
Authority could consider maintaining and enhancing the hedgerows on the site and
adapting the planting on the bunds to incorporate species from the hedgerow thus
building the bunds into the landscape.

The Council's Landscape and Trees Officer has no objection to the schemeas pr esent ed.
It is considered that the proposed scheme would have a minimal if any impact on the
landscape and the general character of the area, as the bunds will not be seen apart from
the minimal number of sites. Where the bunds can be seen these will be an acceptable
development in the landscape, being seen only over fields and in the context and outlook
of the area are acceptable. Substantial landscaping is proposed to ensure the bunds are
re-vegetated and as soon after they are constructed and it is consideredt hat  t hi s
landscaping will be suitable, subject to conditions of consent.

ECOLOGICAL ISSUES
An ecological survey was carried out in 2005 to identify habitat presentand the pot ent ial
for the site to support protected species. 

There are requirements to conserve and enhance bio-diversity and improvet he nat ur al
environment set out in PPS 9 'Biodiversity and Geological Conservation',and The Wi ldl ife
and Countryside Act, and the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act (2006)
Biodiversity Duty, amongst others. Any proposal, particularly those in the green belt and
other locations that present an opportunity to improve bio-diversity, such as this site,
should therefore incorporate appropriate measures to enhance the Borough's nature
conservation resource and achieve a better and more lasting habitat, in compliance with
Policies EC2 and EC5 of the UDP and the legislation outlined above. 

It is considered that additional measures can and should be incorporatedint o the scheme ,
whilst in operation and obviously during restoration. It is recommended that a Habitat
Management Plan be developed for the site, and appropriate measures to ensure that can
be implemented. In addition to the management plan, it is recommended that specific
measures to protect habitat of nesting birds, and precautions to protectbadger s and ot her
animals should be incorporated into the operation of the site. 

Not applicable to this development.

Not applicable to this development.

Page 60
Page 60



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Flooding or Drainage Isssues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

The only reason for the refusal of the original planning application (ref.
45408/APP/2007/3189) was due to the Environment Agency Objection to theabsence of
a hydrological impact assessment which would detail any potential impactt o t he
groundwater source. The applicant has conducted a hydrological impact assessment and
flood risk assessment which address the potential strategies for addressing surface water
drainage, and potential effects on local hydrology, including water courses. The
hydrological report suggests three areas for mitigation including bund construction,
grading the surface of the landfill, perimeter ditches, land drains and monitoring of
groundwater levels. 

The hydrological report suggests that additional perimeter ditches should be constructed
on the eastern, northern and western boundaries on and where no extraction have to take
place. The applicant has fulfilled this requirement by positioning a drainage ditch on the
eastern boundary, some 16m from the site boundary with gravel extractionon ei ther  si de.

The applicant has addressed the reason for refusal of the original application and further
submitted a revised Flood Risk Assessment with the subject application. The Environment
Agency is yet to confirm their position on the Flood Risk Assessment. Given that the
applicant is actively working with EA to resolve this issue, it is likely that this issue can be
resolved. Further information and the EA position will be clarified in the Addendum report.

Specialist consultant has undertaken noise and air quality assessments. These suggest
suitable rise in noise levels or reduction in air quality.

In mineral planning terms the applicant is using tried and tested approaches to control
noise and air quality impacts such as, landscape bunds, tree planting, damping down haul
roads and dust and air monitoring. Appropriate worded conditions as suggested by
Environmental Protection Unit will be included to ensure that mitigationme asur es wi ll be
in place.

The issues raised have been addressed elsewhere in this report and whereappr opr iat e,
suitably worded conditions are proposed to address the impacts.

None applicable to this development.

Not applicable.

SITE PREPARATION
Following the archaeological investigation, the applicant proposes to create a new haul
road across the centre of the site, which will be extended as the operation proceeds. The
field conveyor will also use the haul road and access the existing plan/material processing
area through an existing tunnel under Sipson Lane. The hedges along the north-eastern
boundary will be removed with the boundary fenced for security purposes.The gr ound wi ll
then be prepared for soil stripping and soil storage. Topsoil storage bungs will be located
along the north east/west and south east/west boundaries.

Page 61
Page 61



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

This is considered to be an effective method for preparing the site for mineral extraction
and suitably worded planning condition will ensure that the operator adopts the working
practices demonstrated in the planning application and supporting statements.

METHOD OF WORKING
The site will be worked in 5 phases, commencing in the north-east and working in a
clockwise direction. During the excavation the site will be continually dewatered and the
water pumped to the existing lakes and lagoons. The extracted material will be moved by
a loading shovel and placed onto a hopper that feeds the field conveyor.The gr avel  wi ll
then travel to the existing processing area at Wall Garden Farm, from which lorries will
transport the materials using the approved highway arrangements.

The proposed method of working follows standard industry practice. The applicant has
provided evidence to show that some 600,000 tonnes of mineral resources is present on
the site and is of suitable quality for extraction, without significant harm to the
environment. Suitably worded planning condition will ensure that the operator adopts the
working practices demonstrated in the planning application and supporting documents.

MINERAL WASTE DISPOSAL
Surveys undertaken by the applicant show that the sand and gravel to be worked lies
beneath a layer of soil and overburden, which varies in depth of between1- 3 me t res.  The
top and sub soil will be stored in bunds and used in site restoration. Overburden will be
progressively used to backfill the site before other inert waste is usedto fill the voi d as per
the restoration scheme.

The applicant has suggested measures to re-use the waste materials in a sustainable
manner. Top soil is a very scarce and it will be important that these are stored carefully to
avoid compaction. Planning condition can ensure that soils are handled and stored
correctly.

LOGEVITY OF OPERATIONS
The applicant has indicated that the site will operate for a period of 4½ years, followed by
a 5 year aftercare period. Further to this, the site is also linked to the existing operations
at Wall Garden Farm. The site (ref. 56077/APP/2001/514) was granted permission in
2002 for a period of 7 years, which ends in May 2009 (excluding aftercare period), by
which time the processing plant should be removed. However the site is still being worked
and that permission has been granted its extension for a period of 12 months from
commencement. Excavation of the extension is unlikely to be completed before the end of
2010. The subject application operations will rely on the mineral processing at Wall
Garden Farm. Therefore in practice, a further application to extend the life of the
processing plant would be required. The applicant has recently submitteda Pr ior  Appr oval
consultation for the installation of replacement concrete plant under the provision of Part
19 of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
Order 1995. This application, at the time of writing, is under consideration and
determination to be made in due course.

The applicant has proposed mineral extraction rates of 200,000 tonnes per annum, which
is similar to that of the neighbouring Wall Garden Farm site. It is considered that this rate
is feasible and therefore the timescales proposed in the application areachi evabl e.  

RESTORATION
The site is proposed to be restored to agriculture. This will be achieved by filling the void
with overburden and inert waste before replacing the stored sub and top soils. Finally the

Page 62
Page 62



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

site will be seeded for arable cropping. Final contours show a doming effect from the
centre of the site (approximately 1m above the existing levels) to allow for effective site
drainage.

This form of restoration is suitable for the local landscape character and the restrictions
enforced by Heathrow Airport. In terms of technical suitability no concerns are raised in so
far as the site will be monitored by Minerals Planning Authority to ensure required levels
are achieved and other regulation authorities will ensure compliance with the pollution
control/prevention regime.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need tobe awa r e
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and thepr ivat e i nt er est
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendationshave no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council.  The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed
by the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being
made at a later stage.  Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

There is no policy objection in principle to the mineral extraction at this Green Belt
location, subject to satisfactory environmental standards being maintained and land

Page 63
Page 63



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

restoration.  The proposal employs mitigation measures to ensure that the environment is
protected and it will be further protected through conditions subject tothe consent .

Due to the mitigation measures put forward, the proposal would have minimal impact on
the amenity of nearby residents, with regard to dust, noise and vibration. It is considered
that the bunds required would only have limited short term impact and therefore it is not
considered to have an adverse impact on visual amenity and the general character of the
landscape or to the appearance of the area in general.

Accordingly, the application is recommended for approval subject to Environment Agency
withdrawing their objection and conditions set out above.

11. Reference Documents

Planning Policy Guidance Note 2: Green Belts
Minerals Policy Statement 1: Planning and Minerals (MPS1)
Minerals Policy Statement 2: Controlling and Mitigating the Environmental Effects of
Minerals Extraction in England (March 2005)
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
The London Plan (Consolidated and with alterations since 2004) February 2008

Jane Jin 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 64
Page 64



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Land at Sipson Farm
Sipson Road
Sipson

45408/APP/2009/340

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:5,000

Page 65

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

UNIT B, PROLOGIS PARK  STOCKLEY ROAD WEST DRAYTON 

RESERVED MATTERS (DETAILS OF SITING, DESIGN, EXTERNAL
APPEARANCE AND LANDSCAPING) OF UNIT B (EMPLOYMENT
COMPONENT) IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 3 OF PLANNING
PERMISSION REF.18399/APP/2005/3415 DATED 27/01/2006: VARIATION
OF CONDITIONS (TO ALLOW SEPARATE PHASED SUBMISSIONS OF
DETAILS RELATING TO RESIDENTIAL AND EMPLOYMENT
COMPONENTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT) OF OUTLINE PLANNING
PERMISSION REF. 18399/APP/2004/2284 DATED 19/08/2005:
REDEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE FOR A MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT
COMPRISING USE CLASSES B1(a) & (c), B2 AND B8 EMPLOYMENT
USES AND C3 RESIDENTIAL USE (UP TO A MAXIMUM OF 101 UNITS)
WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING.

03/03/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 18399/APP/2009/423

Drawing Nos: 30017-PL-002 (Unit B - Existing Site Plan)
30117-PL-001 (Site Location Plan)
30117-PL-003 (Unit B Existing Ground Floor Plan)
30117-PL-004 (Unit B Existing Elevations)
30017-PL-005A (Unit B Proposed Site Plan)
30117-PL-006 (Unit B Proposed Ground Floor Plan)
30117-PL-007 (Unit B Proposed Elevations)
30017-PL-008 (Unit B Proposed Boundary Fencing)

Date Plans Received: 03/03/2009
11/03/2009

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks approval of alternative reserved matters for the siting, design ,
external appearance and landscaping of unit B in relation to outline planning permission
18399/APP/2005/3415.

The current application seeks approval for various alterations to aspects of the scheme
previously approved.  These include:

 ·the extension of the service yard by approximately 5,000m²;
 ·alterations to the design of the northern elevation; and
 ·replacement of chain link fencing with palisade fencing including new gates to the car
park area.

The reason given by the applicant for the amendments is to meet the individual
requirements of a prospective occupier in order to ensure the tenancy oft he uni t and
secure the associated employment opportunities.

The proposed alterations would still result in a development with an appropriate impact
on the character and appearance of the area and in relation to the neighbouring green
belt.

09/03/2009Date Application Valid:

Item No.3

Page 66

Agenda Item 8

Page 67



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The landscaping of the site would remain satisfactory, as would the highways impacts.
The residential amenity of nearby occupiers would not be compromised.

Subject to appropriate conditions the development would have no detrimental impacts in
relation to flood risk or water quality.

Approval is recommended, subject to conditions.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

T8

NONSC

OM1

NONSC

MCD10

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Materials

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

Boundary Treatments

Refuse and Recycling Facilities

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration ofthr ee year s
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

All external surfaces of the development shall be constructed of the materials, colours
and finishes approved under application 18399/APP/2006/3111 dated 12/03/2007.
Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the London Borough of Hillingdon Saved Policies Unitary Development
Plan (September 2007).

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

The boundary treatments on site shall be completed in strict accordance with the details
shown on drawing 30017-PL-008 prior to the occupation of the industrial unit hereby
approved.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the London Borough of Hillingdon Saved Policies Unitary Development
Plan (September 2007).

No development shall take place until details of facilities to be provided for the secure,
screened storage of refuse and recycling at the premises have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No part of the development shall be
occupied until the facilities have been provided in accordance with the approved details

1

2

3

4

5

2. RECOMMENDATION

Page 67
Page 68



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Cycle Parking

Access to building entrances

Berry Bearing Bushes

Wheel Washing

Security Measures

and thereafter the facilities shall be permanently retained. 

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of the area and provide adequate storage for waste
and recycling, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan (February 2008) Policies 4A.21 and
4B.1.

Cycle parking shall be provided on site in accordance with the details approved under
application 18399/APP/2006/547 dated 12/072006.  The cycle parking shallbe er ect ed
prior to the occupation of the unit hereby approved and thereafter be retained on site.

REASON
To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for cyclists in accordance with policy AM9
of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Accesses to the building entrances shall be constructed in accordance with the details
approved under application 183399/APP/2007/814 dated 05/06/2007.

REASON
To ensure that people with disabilities have adequate access to the development in
accordance with policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

The berry bearing species for the landscaping of the site shall be no more than 25% of
the total species on site and shall be spread throughout the planting palette rather than in
concentrated areas.  Details are to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON
To reduce the bird strike risk posed by winter thrushes and starlings inor der  to ensur e
compliance with policy A6 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

Prior to the commencement of development, plant equipment for the cleaning of
construction vehicle wheels shall be installed in accordance with the details approved
under application 18399/APP/2006/3002 dated 30/11/2006.  The equipment shall be
retained during the period over which the development takes place, and used by all
vehicles that leave the site.

REASON
To ensure that the development does not cause danger and inconvenience to users of
the adjoining pavement and highway.

Prior to the occupation of the unit hereby approved external lighting within the site shall
be implemented in accordance with the details approved under application
18399/APP/2007/108 dated 06/06/2007.

REASON

6

7

8

9

10

Page 68
Page 69



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

H10

NONSC

NONSC

Noise Mitigations

Parking/Turning/Loading Arrangements  - Commercial Devs.

Bird Management Plan

Non Standard Condition

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safeand secur e
environment in accordance with policies 4B.1 and 4B.6 of the London Plan.

The development hereby approved shall not be implemented until all noisemi tigat ion
measures approved under application 18399/APP/2007/106 dated 27/02/2007 have been
implemented.  Thereafter these measures shall be retained and maintainedi n good
working order for so long as the site remains in use.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The roads/turning/loading facilities/sight lines and parking areas (including the marking
out of parking spaces) shown on the approved plans shall be constructedpr ior  t o
occupation of the development, thereafter permanently retained and used for no other
purpose.

REASON
To ensure that the loading, roads, turning facilities and parking areas are satisfactorily
laid out on site in accordance with Policies AM3 and AM14 of the adoptedHi llingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the
London Plan. (February 2008).

The bird management plan approved under application 18399/APP/2007/27 dated
06/06/2007 shall be implemented in relation to the unit hereby approved and maintained
in perpetuity.

REASON
To avoid endangering the safe operation of aircraft through the attraction of birds in order
to ensure compliance with policy A6 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

Development shall not begin until a surface water drainage scheme for the 'extended
service yard', including details of the surfacing material and based on sustainable
drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological and hydrogeological context
of the development, has been submitted to and approved in writing by theLocal  Pl anni ng
Authority.  The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the
approved details prior to occupation of the development.

In relation to this condition the 'extended service yard' will be taken to mean the area of
Extended concrete service yard demonstrated on drawing 30017-PL-005A which is
located outside the boundary of the Concrete Service Yard demonstrated by drawing
30017-PL-002.

11

12

13

14

Page 69
Page 70



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

REASON
To prevent increased risk of flooding; to improve and protect water quality; and to ensure
an appropriate appearance of the service yard in compliance with policies 4A.13, 4A.14
and 4A.17 of the London Plan and policies OE7, OE8, BE13 and BE25 of theHi llingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to afai r hear ing) ; Ar ticl e 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the FirstPr ot ocol  (pr ot ect ion of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

OL5
OL26

EC1

EC2
EC3

EC5
BE13
BE18
BE21
BE24

BE25
BE35

BE36
BE38

BE39
OE1

OE3

OE5
OE11

AM1

Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt
Protection and enhancement of trees, woodland and landscape
features
Protection of sites of special scientific interest, nature conservation
importance and nature reserves
Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments
Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation
importance
Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas
Major development proposals adjacent to or visible from major road
and rail connections to Heathrow and central London
Proposals for high buildings/structures in identified sensitive areas
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of trees and woodland - tree preservation orders
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
Siting of noise-sensitive developments
Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures
Developments which serve or draw upon more than a walking
distance based catchment area - public transport accessibility and

Page 70
Page 71



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3

4

The plans and conditions attached to this planning permission relate only to the
consideration of the development falling within the submitted red site outline for this
application (Drawing 30117-PL-001).  You are advised that the previousreser ved ma t ter s
approval ref: 18399/APP/2006/547 dated 23/02/2006 has been implemented through the
erection of unit E and associated works, compliance with the conditions and approved
plans of that planning permission must be ensured for all relevant areaswh i ch f al l
outside of the red site outline for this application.

This includes, but is not limited to, matters concerning the site layout, built form,
materials, boundary treatments, ground levels, refuse storage, cycle storage,
landscaping, security, noise mitigation and bird management.

For the avoidance of doubt, condition 10 requires the implementation, maintenance and
retention of all noise mitigation measures approved under application
18399/APP/2007/106.  This includes measures which lie outside of the current
application site, but that are contained within the boundary of the industrial development

AM2

AM3
AM5

AM6

AM7
AM8

AM9

AM10

AM11

AM12

AM13

AM14
AM15
LPP 4A.21

capacity considerations
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Proposals for new roads or widening of existing roads
Land safeguarded for road proposals of the Department of
Transport and the Traffic Director for London
Measures to discourage the use of Local Distributor and Access
Roads by through traffic
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities
Incorporation in new developments of additions to the proposed
cycle network
Improvement in facilities and promotion of safety and security at bus
and rail interchanges; use of planning agreements to secure
improvement in public transport services
Promotion of traffic management measures which give priority to
buses
AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through
(where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes
New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Waste strategic policy and targets

Page 71
Page 72



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I3

I15

I1

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Building to Approved Drawing

5

6

7

8

approved under outline planning permission 18399/APP/2004/2284 dated 23/02/2006.

Any method statement in relation to condition 14 must ensure that flat/shallow pitched
roofs be constructed to allow easy access to all areas by foot using permanent fixed
access stairs, ladders or similar.  the owner/occupier must not allow gulls, to nest, roost
or loaf on the building.  Checks must be made weekly during the breedingseason.
Outside the breeding season gull activity must be monitored and the roofchecked
regularly to ensure that gulls do not utilise the roof.  Any gulls foundnest ing,  roost ing or
loafing must be dispersed by th eowner/occupier when detected or when requested by
BAA Airfield Operations staff.  The owner/occupier must remove any nestsor  eggs found
on the roof.  The breeding season for gulls typically runs from March toJune.   The
owner/occupier must hold the appropriate licences before the removal of nests or eggs.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation.In par ticul ar , you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out betweenthe hour s of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays orBank
Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create apubl ic heal th
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved

Page 72
Page 73



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I12

I19

I25

I46

I51

I47

I43

Notification to Building Contractors

Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

Consent for the Display of Adverts and Illuminated Signs

Renewable Resources

Notification of Commencement of Works

Damage to Verge

Keeping Highways and Pavements free from mud etc

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receivescopi es of  al l
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that
the development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over
a public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities
plc, Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 0EE.
Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

This permission does not authorise the display of advertisements or signs, separate
consent for which may be required under the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 1992. [To display an advertisement without the necessary
consent is an offence that can lead to prosecution]. For further information and advice,
contact - Planning & Community Services, 3N/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250574).

To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction methods,
you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy resources which do not
produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions, including solar, geothermal and fuel
cell systems, and use of high quality insulation.

Written notification of the intended start of works shall be sent to Planning & Community
Services, London Borough of Hillingdon, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
at least seven days before the works hereby approved are commenced.

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles
delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and
at the applicant's expense. For further information and advice contact -Hi ghwa ys
Maintenance Operations, Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128
Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the pavement or public
highway. You are further advised that failure to take appropriate steps to avoid spillage or

Page 73
Page 74



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site has an area of 1.65 hectares and is located adjacent to the Stockley Park
employment area, 1.8km west of Hayes Town Centre and 0.8km north of the M4.
Heathrow airport is approximately 2.8km to the south.

The site is part of land which was in agricultural use until the late 1930's when it was
developed by the Ministry of Defence (MoD) as a munitions factory during the Second
World War. During the 1950's the site was converted for use as a file repository and
contained a range of warehouse and office accommodation.

The construction of Unit B has been implemented on site in accordance with the details
approved under reserved matters application 18399/APP/2006/547.  Units A, E, F and the
main access routes into the site from Stockley Road and Bourne Avenue have also been
implemented in accordance with the relevant reserved matters approvals. The nor ther n
part of the site remains cleared awaiting future development.

The area surrounding the site is mixed in character. To the south and east is the
residential area of Hayes. The site is bounded to the west by the Heathrow Express rail
link, which separates it from the neighbouring Green Belt. To the east of the site unit E of
the commercial development separates the site from the housing componentof  the for me r
Ministry of Defence site, which was approved and provided for 101 residential units
including affordable housing. Beyond this lies the Bourne Farm Playing Fields and other
open Green Belt land.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks approval of reserved matters for the siting, design, external
appearance and landscaping of unit B (employment component) in compliance with
condition 3 of planning permission Ref: 18399/APP/2005/3415.

Reserved matters in relation to the siting, design, external appearance and landscaping of
unit B have previously been approved under planning permission 18399/APP/2006/547.
The unit has been erected on site in accordance with the details approved under this
permission.

The current application seeks approval for various alterations to aspects of the scheme
previously approved.  These include:

 ·the extension of the service yard by approximately 5,000m²;
 ·alterations to the design of the northern elevation (to change vehicular loading bays and
fire escape arrangements); and
 ·replacement of chain link fencing with palisade fencing including new gates to the car
park area.

The siting, bulk, massing and scale (maximum of 13 metres in height) remain identical to
the details previously approved under application 18399/APP/2006/547.  The proposed
floor area of 6,874m², 877m² of which is ancillary office space, remains unchanged from
the previous approval.

adequately clear it away could result in action being taken under the Highways Act.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 74
Page 75



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

A total of 63 car spaces are proposed along the southern side of Unit B,i ncl udi ng 6
spaces for people with disabilities.  The level of provision is identical to that agreed under
the previous reserved matters approval.

The northern end of Unit B consists of a concrete service yard with vehicular access off
the existing access road. There are a total of 10 level access loading bays providing
access on the northern elevation of the building.  This compares to 6 ramped bays and 4
level access doors on the scheme approved under planning permission
18399/APP/2006/547.

18399/APP/2004/2284

18399/APP/2005/2387

18399/APP/2005/3415

18399/APP/2006/2308

Former M O D Records Office Stockley Road Hayes Middx

Former M O D Records Office Stockley Road West Drayton 

Former M O D Records Office Stockley Road West Drayton 

Former M O D Records Office Stockley Road West Drayton 

REDEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE FOR A MIXED- USE COMPRISING ( CLASSES B1(a)& (c) ,
B2 AND B8) EMPLOYMENT USES AND ( CLASS C3 ) RESIDENTIAL (UP TO A MAXIMUM
OF 101 UNITS) WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING (OUTLINE
APPLICATION)

RESERVED MATTERS (DETAILS OF SITING, DESIGN, EXTERNAL APPEARANCE AND
LANDSCAPING) OF PLOT A (STORAGE/ DISTRIBUTION WITH ANCILLARY OFFICE) IN
COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 2 OF PLANNING PERMISSION REF.18399/APP/2004/2284
DATED 19/08/2005 'REDEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE FOR A MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT
COMPRISING USE CLASSES B1(a) AND B1(c), B2 AND B8 EMPLOYMENT USES AND C3
RESIDENTIAL USE (UP TO A MAXIMUM OF 101 UNITS) WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS,
PARKING AND LANDSCAPING (OUTLINE APPLICATION)'.

VARIATION OF CONDITIONS 2,3,7,8,10,11,13,20, 21,22,26,29 & 30 (TO ALLOWSEPARATE
PHASED SUBMISSIONS OF DETAILS RELATING TO RESIDENTIAL AND EMPLOYMENT
COMPONENTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT) OF OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION
REF.18399/ APP/2004/2284 DATED 19/08/2005: REDEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE FORA
MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT COMPRISING USE CLASSES B1(a) & (c), B2 AND B8
EMPLOYMENT USES AND C3 RESIDENTIAL USE (UP TO A MAXIMUM OF 101 UNITS)
WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING

Reserved matters (details of siting, design, external appearance & landscaping) of Unit F
(employment component) in compliance with condition 3 of planning permission
ref:18399/APP/2005/3415 dated 02/03/06 and variation of conditions 2, 3,7,  8,  10,  11,  13,  20,
21, 22, 26, 29 & 30 (to allow separate phased submissions of details relating to residential &
employment components of the development) of outline planning permission
ref:18399/APP/2004/2284 dated 19/08/05  Redevelopment of the site for a mixed-use
development comprising Classes B1(a) & (c), B2 & B8 employment uses and Class C3
residential use up to a maximum of 101 units with associated access, parking and landscaping

19-08-2005

30-11-2005

02-03-2006

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

Approved

Approved

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Page 75
Page 76



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

None

4. Planning Policies and Standards

No additional comments.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

18399/APP/2006/547

18399/APP/2007/2724

18399/APP/2007/2725

Former M O D Records Office Stockley Road West Drayton 

Former M O D Records Office Stockley Road West Drayton 

Former M O D Records Office Stockley Road West Drayton 

Reserved matters (details of siting, design, external appearance and landscaping) of Units B, E
and F (employment component) in compliance with condition 3 of planning permission
ref.18399/APP/ 2005/3415 dated 27/01/2006: Variation of conditions 2,3,7,8,10,11,13,
20,21,22,26,29 and 30 (to allow separate phased submissions of details relating to residential
and employment components of the development) of outline planning permission ref.
18399/APP/2004/2284 dated 19/08/2005: Redevelopment of the site for a mixed use
development comprising Use Classes B1(a) and (c), B2 and B8 employment uses and C3
residential use (up to a maximum of 101 units) with associated access,par ki ng and
landscaping.

RESERVED MATTERS (DETAILS OF SITING, DESIGN, EXTERNAL APPEARANCE AND
LANDSCAPING) OF UNITS C AND D (EMPLOYMENT COMPONENT) IN COMPLIANCE
WITH CONDITION 3 OF PLANNING PERMISSION REF.18399/APP/2005/3415 DATED
27/01/2006: VARIATION OF CONDITIONS (TO ALLOW SEPARATE PHASED SUBMISSIONS
OF DETAILS RELATING TO RESIDENTIAL AND EMPLOYMENT COMPONENTS OF THE
DEVELOPMENT) OF OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION REF.18399/ APP/2004/2284
DATED 19/08/2005: REDEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE FOR A MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT
COMPRISING USE CLASSES B1(a) & (c), B2 AND B8 EMPLOYMENT AND C3 RESIDENTIAL
USE (UP TO A MAXIMUM OF 101 UNITS) WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND
LANDSCAPING.

RESERVED MATTERS (DETAILS OF SITING, DESIGN, EXTERNAL APPEARANCE AND
LANDSCAPING) OF UNITS C, D AND G (EMPLOYMENT COMPONENT) IN COMPLIANCE
WITH CONDITION 3 OF PLANNING PERMISSION REF.18399/APP/2005/3415 DATED
27/01/2006: VARIATION OF CONDITIONS (TO ALLOW SEPARATE PHASED SUBMISSIONS
OF DETAILS RELATING TO RESIDENTIAL AND EMPLOYMENT COMPONENTS OF THE
DEVELOPMENT) OF OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION REF. 18399/APP/2004/2284
DATED 19/08/2005: REDEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE FOR A MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT
COMPRISING USE CLASSES B1(a) & (c), B2 AND B8 EMPLOYMENT USES AND C3
RESIDENTIAL USE (UP TO A MAXIMUM OF 101 UNITS) WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS,
PARKING AND LANDSCAPING.

03-11-2006

12-07-2006

17-12-2007

17-12-2007

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

Approved

Approved

Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 76
Page 77



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.6

PT1.10

PT1.26

PT1.30

PT1.32

PT1.33

PT1.34

PT1.35

PT1.36

PT1.38

PT1.39

To safeguard the nature conservation value of Sites of Special Scientific Interest,
Sites of Metropolitan Importance for Nature Conservation, designated local nature
reserves or other nature reserves, or sites proposed by English Nature or the
Local Authority for such designations.

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenityand
the character of the area.

To encourage economic and urban regeneration in the Hayes/West Drayton
Corridor, designated Industrial and Business Areas (IBA's) and other appropriate
locations.

To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in
particular women, elderly people, people with disabilities and ethnic minorities.

To encourage development for uses other than those providing local services to
locate in places which are accessible by public transport.

To promote the construction of new roads or the widening of existing roads only
where they would: improve safety; promote pedestrian movement, cycling or
public transport, or the improvement of the environment; reduce local congestion
in a cost effective way; or are required to accommodate traffic likely to be
generated by new development.

To maintain the road hierarchy set out in this Plan and accordingly seekto
segregate different types of traffic by the function of the various tiers of the
hierarchy through traffic management schemes, road signing and planning control
over development and redevelopment schemes.

To accord priority to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes, and to seek to provide a network
or cycle routes through the Borough to promote safer cycling and better
conditions for cyclists.

In consultation with public transport operators to improve facilities atbus and rai l
interchanges and in consultation with LT and bus operators to promote traffic
management measures which give priority to buses.

To seek a reduction in road accident casualties through highway improvements
including traffic calming and the design of new highway schemes.

To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

OL5

OL26

EC1

EC2

Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

Protection and enhancement of trees, woodland and landscape features

Protection of sites of special scientific interest, nature conservation importance
and nature reserves

Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

Part 2 Policies:

Page 77
Page 78



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

EC3

EC5

BE13

BE18

BE21

BE24

BE25

BE35

BE36

BE38

BE39

OE1

OE3

OE5

OE11

AM1

AM2

AM3

AM5

AM6

AM7

AM8

AM9

AM10

AM11

AM12

AM13

Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation importance

Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas

Major development proposals adjacent to or visible from major road and rail
connections to Heathrow and central London

Proposals for high buildings/structures in identified sensitive areas

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of trees and woodland - tree preservation orders

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

Developments which serve or draw upon more than a walking distance based
catchment area - public transport accessibility and capacity considerations

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Proposals for new roads or widening of existing roads

Land safeguarded for road proposals of the Department of Transport and the
Traffic Director for London

Measures to discourage the use of Local Distributor and Access Roads by
through traffic

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design ofhi ghwa y
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

Incorporation in new developments of additions to the proposed cycle network

Improvement in facilities and promotion of safety and security at bus and rail
interchanges; use of planning agreements to secure improvement in public
transport services

Promotion of traffic management measures which give priority to buses

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces

Page 78
Page 79



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

AM14

AM15

LPP 4A.21

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Waste strategic policy and targets

Not applicable10th April 2009

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

TREES AND LANDSCAPE

No objection, subject to an informative advising the applicant of the need to comply with the
conditions and landscaping of the other implemented reserved matters approvals within the larger
industrial site.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT

No objection.

External Consultees

NEIGHBOUR CONSULTATION

The application was advertised as a major development, 201 neighburing owner/occupiers were
consulted, a press advert issued and a site notice posted.  No comments have been received in
relation to the public consultation on this application.

NETWORK RAIL

No objection to the proposal.

CROSSRAIL

The implications of the Crossrail proposals for this development have been considered and I write
to inform you that Crossrail Limited do not wish to make any comments ont hi s appl icat ion as
submitted.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY

No objection subject to the imposition of a condition regarding surface water and sustainable
drainage.

NATURAL ENGLAND

No objection.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 79
Page 80



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The principle of the development has been established under outline planning permission
(Ref:18399/APP/2004/2284) granted on 19 August 2005 and the reserved matter
subsequently approved under planning permission 18399/APP/2006/547.

Accordingly, there is no objection to the principle of the proposal.

The application seeks reserved matters approval for the siting, design external
appearance and landscaping of an industrial unit.  Density is not therefore considered to
be a relevant consideration.

The site does not lie within a conservation area or area of special local character.  Nor is
the site located in the vicinity of a listed building.

Archaeological implications of the entire development were considered under the outline
application and conditions 24 and 26 of the outline approval (18399/APP/2004/2284)
ensure that archaeological work must be undertaken before development work occurs on
new parts of the site.

The height of the proposed building remains identical to that existing on site.  At 13m the
height of the proposal does not contravene airport safeguarding criteria.

Despite the height of the proposal not being sufficient to warrant consultation with BAA or
NATS, conditions requiring the submission and approval of a bird management plan and
restricting the number of berry bearing bushes have previously been imposed for all units
within the site.  It is considered that to ensure the continued effectiveness of these
measures across the site these conditions must also be imposed on the proposed unit,
accordingly they are included within the recommendation.

Initial consideration of the impact of the development on the Green Beltwa s ma de at  the
outline planning stage. The development was considered to have a greatervi sual  imp act
on the Green Belt than the previous 1-2 storey buildings, however, it was determined that
sufficient area was available to screen and soften the impact of any newbui lt for m.

Unit B will be well screened from the adjoining Green Belt land to the west of the site by
the provision of existing landscape buffers along the side of the railway line.  Additional
landscaping on the site boundaries was secured under the previous reserved matters
approval (ref: 18399/APP/2006/547. While outside of the current application site this
landscaping must still be provided as aspects of this approval have beeni mp l eme nt ed.
Upon maturity these areas of planting will result in a good visual enclosure of the site
ensuring the adjoining Green Belt is not unduly affected by the scale oft he uni ts.  The
development is therefore considered to comply with UDP saved policy OL5.

The siting, mass, bulk and scale of the proposed unit are identical to those considered
under reserved matters approval 18399/APP/2006/547.  Accordingly, it is considered that
any impacts on the character and appearance of the area will be limited to those of the
amended northern elevation, the increased area of service yard and the amendments to
the proposed fencing.

In relation to the northern elevation, 10 vehicular loading bays (6 ramped bays and 4 level

Page 80
Page 81



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

7.10

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

access doors) and a fire escape were included on the elevation of the unit B as approved
under the previous reserved matters approval.  The current application seeks 10 level
access loading bays and a fire escape on this elevation, these would be more evenly
distributed along the norther elevation of the unit.  This elevation is only visible from within
the industrial site itself and the proposed design would be consistent with the design o the
units and the site as a whole.  Accordingly, this alteration does not raise any concerns with
regard to the character and appearance of the area.

The current proposal seeks an increase of 5,000m² in the size of unitB' s ser vi ce yar d,
above that approved under the previous reserved matters consent.  Permission has
previously been granted for a hard landscaped car parking area and a portion of an
industrial unit in this location, under reserved matters approvals 18399/APP/2007/2724
and 18399/APP/2007/2724.  It is considered that the proposed service yard would have a
similar impact on the character and appearance of the area as the previously approved
proposals and would be consistent with the overall design quality of thel ar ger  i ndust rial
site.  Accordingly, this aspect of the proposal does not raise any concerns with regard to
the character and appearance of the area.

The erection of palisade fencing around the entire application site is sought under the
current proposal.  Under the previously approved reserved matters permission
18399/APP/2006/547 the western site boundary was to be treated with chain link fencing
and palisade fencing was to be provided to all other aspects of the site.  It is considered
that the use of palisade fencing on the western boundary would provide for an improved
visual appearance consistent with that of the wider estate.  Accordingly, it does not raise
any concerns with regard to the character and appearance of the area.

It is considered that the scale, materials, siting and design of the proposed buildings and
the proposed landscaping are complementary to the surrounding area and in accordance
with Policies BE13, BE25, BE35 and BE38 of the Unitary Development Plan.

The application site is located approximately 165m from the nearest residential properties
on Nine Acres Close and is separated from these properties by an industrial unit (Unit F)
and an acoustic barrier, which was supplied to mitigate noise arising from units B, E and F
under reserved matters permission 18399/APP/2006/547.

It is not considered that the proposal would have any impacts on nearby residential
properties in terms of its visual appearance, mass, bulk or scale.

It is also not considered that there would be any detrimental impacts onr esi dent ial
amenity arising from noise, given the separation of the proposed site from residential
properties and the existence of a substantial acoustic barrier designed to mitigate noise
impacts on nearby residential properties from the application site and closer industrial
units.

Accordingly, the proposal would not have any detrimental impacts on the residential
amenity of nearby properties and  is considered to accord with Policies BE21, BE24 and
OE1 of the Saved Policies UDP.

The application is not for residential accommodation, accordingly this consideration is not
relevant.

The traffic generation and impacts of the development on the operation of the wider

Page 81
Page 82



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

highway network  were considered under the outline planning permission.

The access arrangements for the site, car parking arrangements and cyclepar ki ng
arrangements all remain unchanged from those previously approved applications.  This
includes retaining the flexibility of two access points for the northernpar t of  the si te.

No objections are therefore raised in terms of traffic impacts, car parking, cycle parking,
highways safety or pedestrian safety.

Aspects relating to the design changes have been addressed under the 'Impact on the
character & appearance of the area' section of this report.

Access arrangements were considered under the previous applications and remain
unchanged.

Security issues for the unit as a whole were considered under the previous applications
and considered acceptable.  It is considered that the proposal to provide a palisade
boundary fence on the western site boundary in place of the previously approved chain
link fence would further enhance the security of the site.

All access issues were considered under the previous applications and remain
unchanged.

The application is not for residential accommodation, accordingly this consideration is not
relevant.

TREES & LANDSCAPING

The landscaping of the areas around the application site has previously been considered
under the following reserved matters approvals 18399/APP/2004/2284 (unit A) and
18399/APP/2005/3415 (units B, E and F).

The proposal would result in a reduction of the previously approved on site landscaping by
removing two new trees.   This is in order to maintain a future access into the northern
part of the site, which will be subject to future development under the outline permission.
There is no objection to the loss of these new trees, which will have a minimal impact on
the overall landscaping scheme. The principle of an access point in thisl ocat ion has
previously been agreed under reserved matters approvals 18399/APP/2007/2724 and
18399/APP/2007/2724 relating to the northern part of the site.

With the exception of the two trees mentioned above all previously approved landscaping
of the site lies outside of the application site.  Given reserved matters approvals
18399/APP/2004/2284 and 18399/APP/2005/3415 have been implemented on site this
landscaping would still be ensured and protected within the larger development.  No
additional landscaping is considered to be necessary within the boundaries of unit B.

Accordingly, it is considered that the scheme would maintain an appropriate landscape
environment both within the development site and relation to the wider area, consistent
with Policy BE38 of the Saved Policies UDP.

Page 82
Page 83



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15

7.16

7.17

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Isssues

ECOLOGY

The outline planning permission considered the impact of the developmenton t he
adjoining nature conservation area. The assessment concluded that while the
development would have direct impacts on the site and on the adjoining Site of
Importance for Nature Conservation (SINCS), English Nature were consulted and raised
no objections subject to the inclusion of specific conditions. Conditions were included in
the outline planning permission, which required specific works in relation to the relocation
of badger setts and the removal of Japanese Knotweed. These conditions are considered
to satisfactorily address the impact of the development on the nature conservation values
found on adjoining land. No additional conditions are considered necessary in this regard.

In relation to waste management policy 4A.21 of the London Plan requirest hat  new
developments provide adequate facilities for the storage of waste and recycling.

There is sufficient room within the unit and proposed service yard to accommodate
appropriate waste and recycling facilities. A condition is proposed to ensure these facilities
maintain an appropriate appearance.

The current application seeks design and layout amendments to a previously approved
scheme which has been implemented on site.  With the exception of drainage impacts
arising from the increased area of hard surfacing it is not considered that any
consideration of sustainability, above that given to the reserved matters approval
18399/APP/2006/547 and the outline planning permission, is warranted.

Issues relating to impact of the hard standing area on drainage have been dealt with in
the 'Flooding or Drainage Issues' section of this report.

The construction of unit B and the associated area of service yard approved under
reserved matters application 18399/APP/2006/547 have been implemented onsi te i n
accordance with the planning permission and the drainage of these areas is therefore
considered to be satisfactory.  However, sustainable drainage solutions of the site were
not considered necessary in relation to these aspects of the scheme.

The proposed extension to the service yard of the unit would represent asi gni ficant
increase in the level of hard standing above that approved under application
18399/APP/2006/547.  The approved plans for the northern part of the site confirmed the
acceptability of this area being utilised for hard standing and built form only subject to
appropriate sustainable urban drainage solutions being implemented.

The Environment Agency have requested that a drainage condition, including
consideration of sustainable solutions be imposed on the development.

Given that the overall built form of the proposed unit B and the majority of the service yard
have been completed in accordance with the previous planning permission,wh i ch di d not
require sustainable drainage solutions, a retrospective condition relating to these aspects
of the development would be both unreasonable and unnecessary failing tome et  the test s
set out within 'Circular 11/95: The Use of Conditions in Planning Permissions'.

The 5,000m² extension to the service yard, however, has not yet been constructed on the
site.  The previous applications relating to this part of the site (refs: 18399/APP/2007/2724
and 18399/APP/2007/2725) did require the utilisation of sustainable urban drainage

Page 83
Page 84



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

techniques and indicate such measures have historically been necessary on this part of
the site.  A condition requiring the use of sustainable urban drainage systems on this
particular part of the site is considered necessary and would meet the relevant tests.

Subject to the above suggested condition being included within the recommendation the
scheme does not raise any concerns with regard to flooding or drainage. The
Environment Agency have confirmed that the proposed condition would be satisfactory in
terms of their requirements.

Issues relating to noise impacts have been dealt with in the 'Impact on neighbours' section
of this report.

Issues relating to air quality were considered under the grant of the outline planning
permission, accordingly the proposal does not give rise to any concerns relating to air
quality.

Consultation letters were sent to 211 local owner/occupiers,a site notice was posted and
the application was advertised in a local paper.  No comments have been received.

The application seeks approval of reserved matters for an industrial development.
Matters relating to planning obligations were considered under the outline permission.

N/A

N/A

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need tobe awa r e
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and thepr ivat e i nt er est
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without

Page 84
Page 85



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendationshave no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council.  The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed
by the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being
made at a later stage.  Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks approval of alternative reserved matters for the siting, design ,
external appearance and landscaping of unit B in relation to outline planning permission
18399/APP/2005/3415.

The current application seeks approval for various alterations to aspects of the scheme
previously approved.  These include:

 ·the extension of the service yard by approximately 5,000m²;
 ·alterations to the design of the northern elevation; and
 ·replacement of chain link fencing with palisade fencing including new gates to the car
park area.

The proposed alterations would maintain a development with an appropriate impact on the
character and appearance of the area and in relation to the neighbouringgr een bel t.

The landscaping of the site would remain satisfactory, as would the highways impacts.
The residential amenity of nearby occupiers would also be maintained.

Subject to an appropriate condition the development would have no detrimental impacts in
relation to flood risk or water quality.

For these reasons approval is recommended, subject to conditions.

11. Reference Documents

a) Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
b) The London Plan
c) Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development 
d) Planning Policy Guidance 2: Green Belts 
e) Planning Policy Statement 25: Planning Policy Statement 25: Development and Flood
Risk
f) Circular 11/95: The Use of Conditions in Planning Permissions

Adrien Waite 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 85
Page 86



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

R

R

R

R

R

R

_

U

_ _

U

_

U

_

_

_

U

_

C
R

Mast

W
at
er

Heathrow Prologis Park

El Sub Sta

F

13

269

17

55

74

Und

365

Stockley Road Lake

36
2

36
3

Training Centre

7

Sub

291

18

70
71

Ward Bdy

House

53

36
0

STOCKLEY CLOSE

SL

El

to

CR

1 t
o 1
2

MP 1

S
T
O
C
K
L
E
Y
R
O
A
D

364

Stockley Road Lake

Water

E

Sta

255 247

Woolwich

Mast

361

El Sub Sta

Water

Path (um)

267

House

Ward Bdy

S
T
O
C
K
L
E
Y
R
O
A
D

A
ESS

Signal Gantry

to

279

29

20

W
ar
eh
o
us
e

CR

6

21

281

257

Sherman

2

65

1to6

Mast

B

W
ar
d
Bd
y

SL

Path (um
)

to

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Unit B, Prologis Park
Stockley Road
West Drayton

18399/APP/2009/423

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:2,500

Page 86

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LAND ADJACENT AND FORMING PART OF 19 TANGLEWOOD CLOSE
HILLINGDON

Two storey attached one-bedroom dwelling.

05/02/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 63470/APP/2009/238

Drawing Nos: DESIGN AND ACCESS STATEMENT
SB131.DWG 1 OF 3
SB131.DWG 2 OF 3
SB131.DWG 3 OF 3

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The proposal is for an attached house that would be set back from the front wall of the
existing property. The dwelling has been off-set 1m from the boundary toover come
previous concerns regarding impact on the street scene and is now fully HDAS
compliant. However, no off street parking has been provided, and therefore the proposal
is considered  contrary to the Council's approved car parking standards and UDP policy.

The proposal is therefore recommended for REFUSAL.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed dwelling would not provide off street parking, and therefore the
development is considered to be deficient in car parking provision in relation to the
Councils approved car parking standards, leading to additional on-streetpar ki ng to the
detriment of public and highway safety and therefore contrary to policies AM7(ii) and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Polices September 2007).

1

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site concerns a plot of open land located to the south and west of 19
Tanglewood Close, an end terrace property located at the southern end ofTangl ewo od
Close, a residential cul-de-sac, which runs eastwards from the Uxbridge Road. To the
west of No 19 is the southern turning head and grassed verge of Tanglewood Close. The
road is characterised by terraced properties and the site is within a `developed area   as
identified in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (Saved Policies September
2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

2. RECOMMENDATION

3. CONSIDERATIONS

05/02/2009Date Application Valid:

Item No.4

Page 87

Agenda Item 9

Page 89



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

This is a resubmission of a previously refused application (63470/APP/2007/2647), which
was refused due (i) to the development in relation to the boundary would result in a
cramped form of development detrimental to the visual amenities of the street scene, (ii)
there would be insufficient area of amenity space left for the existing occupiers of No 19,
and (iii) the proposal would fail to provide parking within the boundary of the application
site and therefore could not be controlled.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

The application seeks planning permission to erect a two storey 1-bedroom attached
dwelling to the side of 19 Tanglewood Close. The proposed dwelling wouldbe set  back
from the front building line by 1m. The dwelling would be 3.675m wide, and 9.225m deep,
involving a 2.8m deep single storey rear projection. The dwelling would be finished with a
pitched roof, matching the height of the host dwelling. The dwelling would be 4.8m to the
eaves and 7.3m high to the ridge

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

AM7

AM14

HDAS

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

'Residential Layouts'

Part 2 Policies:

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

63470/APP/2007/2647 Land Adjacent To And Forming Part Of 19 Tanglewood Close Hillingd

ERECTION OF TWO STOREY TWO-BEDROOM END-OF-TERRACE DWELLING.

26-02-2008Decision: Refused

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 88
Page 90



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Not applicable5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

7.01 The principle of the development

Internal Consultees

Tree/Landscape Officer; The scheme is acceptable subject to conditions TL5 and TL6

Highway Engineer; The application cannot be supported as the plans indicate that parking for the
development will be provided on street and is therefore not acceptable, and the proposal is
therefore contrary to policy AM14 of the UDP
These comments are considered relevant to the determination of this application 

Environmental Protection Unit: No objection subject to a construction site informative added to any
permission issued in relation to neighbourly building practices.

External Consultees

15 neighbours were consulted, and a petition of 26 signatures and 7 responses have been
received, that made the following comments;
1. The development would result in a cramped over-development of Tanglewood Close, there are
already enough houses in the close. 
2. The Development would be detrimental to the visual amenities of the street scene. 
3. This is a small close with a narrow entrance. Building a new dwellingwi ll l ead t o mo r e t raf fic
trying to enter the close
4. Now that all the properties are occupied there is not enough space tocope wi th car s of  t he
existing residents and there visitors. Although the proposed applicationpr oposes a dwe l ling that  is
one bedroom smaller, any future owners will only increase the problem. This will prejudice highway
and pedestrian safety.
5. The proposed one bedroom house will not be appropriate as all others in the Close are two
bedroom.
6. Tanglewood Close has already lost a number of green areas at this endof  t he cl ose due t o
people paving over the areas in the front of their properties
7.  The land is quite small, but I do not think the plans would cause a problem to the rest of the
street other than for noise and traffic
8. Double glazing would keep the noise down (depending on weather    ifthe wi ndows  ar e open or
closed), the same goes for dust and dirt
9. Traffic is not too bad if they use small vehicles to deliver buildingma t er ial s,  per haps mi d-
morning, as school traffic is a problem for larger vehicles at certain times of the day. 
10. We do not want the builder to concrete over more grass, as he did previously. We have already
had a year of building work, mess and chaos and inconvenience at that time
11. I object on the grounds that it is too close to my chestnut tree, the lack of privacy in my back
garden, and due to the properties having had their front gardens paved over my garden is
experiencing excess water, and another property will exacerbate the situation. 

The ward councillor has asked that the application be referred to the Central and South Planning
Committee

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 89
Page 91



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

The surrounding area is residential in character, comprising principallyter raced housi ng.
The principle of an additional house in this location is therefore considered appropriate,
subject to the details of the scheme, discussed below. It should be noted that there is a
terrace of 3 properties on the other side of Tanglewood Close.

London Plan density policy is not considered relevant to this scale of development, which
needs to be considered with  reference to impact on the street scene, residents amenity
and parking.

Not applicable - The proposal does not  affect any of the above

Not applicable - The site is not within a airport safeguarding area

Not applicable - The proposal is not within the Green Belt

Section 4.27 of the SPD states careful consideration should be given to building lines, and
these should relate well to the existing street pattern.  It is considered the proposal would
comply with this advice as the new dwelling would be set back 1m from the front building
line of the adjacent dwelling and would appear as an additional staggered property on the
end of the existing terrace, where there is already a staggered buildingline.

With regard to Policy BE22 of the Hillingdon UDP (Saved Policies, September 2007), two
storey buildings should be set in a minimum distance of 1m from the sideboundar ies.  The
proposed house would result in a 1m gap to the side boundary. The proposed dwelling
would follow the design of the host dwelling using the same eaves heightand si mi lar
fenestration details, and would be finished with a pitched roof following the design
characteristics of the surrounding properties. The additional dwelling would reflect the
pattern of surrounding development, as 18-22 Tanglewood Close is a terrace of 3
properties, close to the boundary with Nicholls Avenue. It is consideredthat  the scal e of
the proposed dwelling would not be out of character with surrounding properties. As such
the proposal would not conflict with policy BE19 of the Hillingdon UDP (Saved Policies,
September 2007). Furthermore the revised scheme no longer conflicts with HDAS
guidance.

With regard to the impact of the amenities on the adjoining occupiers, Sections 4.9 of the
SPD: Residential Layouts, in relation to new dwellings, states all residential developments
and amenity space should receive adequate daylight and sunlight, including habitable
rooms and kitchens. The daylight and sunlight available to adjoining properties should be
adequately protected. Where a two or more storey building abuts a property or its garden,
adequate distance should be maintained to overcome possible over-domination, and 15m
will be the minimum acceptable distance. This proposal would comply withthi s advi ce as
there are no properties directly to the rear. Furthermore, due to the proposed siting of this
dwelling, (set back 1m from the front building line of the host dwelling, and with a 1m deep
two storey rear projection, and 2.8m single storey rear projection) it is not considered the
proposal would cause an adverse affect by way of loss of outlook or light to the existing or
adjacent properties. The two storey element would not conflict with a 45degr ee l ine of
sight taken from the existing properties habitable room windows and the single storey
element would not exceed 3.1m in height. Therefore the proposal would comply with
policies BE20 and BE21 of the UDP (Saved Polices September 2007) and the guidance
within the SPD: Residential Extensions.

Page 90
Page 92



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Due to the siting and orientation of the proposed and existing houses, it is not considered
that the proposals would result in significant overshadowing or loss of light to neighbours.
The proposal would therefore comply with Policy BE20 of the UDP (Saved Polices
September 2007).

With regard to loss of privacy, there are no side facing openings shown on the proposed
plans. If an approval were considered appropriate, a condition could be attached to restrict
the insertion of any further openings, overcome any future overlooking concerns, and as
such no material loss of privacy would arise. Therefore the proposal would comply with
policy BE24 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007) and the SPD: New Residential
Layouts: Section 4.12.

Section 4.7 of the SPD: Residential Layouts, states careful consideration should be given
in the design of the internal layout, and that satisfactory indoor living space and amenities
should be provided. The proposed internal floor space for the new dwelling would be
50.82m2. The SPD states the minimum amount of floor space required for a1- bedr oom
two storey house would be 50m2 and therefore the proposal would comply with this
advice.

With regard to the size of the garden, the SDP: Residential Layouts: Section 4.15 states
that a one bed house should have a minimum garden space of 40m2, and twoand thr ee
bedroom properties should have a garden space of at least 60m2, and the proposal would
comply with this advice, with a rear usable garden area of 61m2 for the existing dwelling
and 64m2 for the proposed new dwelling.  Therefore the proposal would comply with this
advice and with Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon UDP (Saved Policies, September 2007).

The proposal shows the provision of cycle parking in the rear garden, however no off
street vehicle parking would be provided for the proposed dwelling. Therefore the
development is considered to be deficient in car parking provision in relation to the
Councils approved car parking standards, leading to additional on-streetpar ki ng t o t he
detriment of public and highway safety and contrary to policy AM7(ii) and AM14 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Polices September 2007).

This is discussed in paragraphs 7.07 and 7.10 above.

Disabled access will be provided at ground floor via the front and rear entrances. Disabled
access will be provided to the ground floor WC, and a 0.9m wide staircase would support
a stair lift. This is considered to satisfy Lifetimes Homes standards.  Therefore the
proposal would comply with Policy 3A.4 of the London Plan and the Council's HDAS:
Accessible Hillingdon

Not applicable - the proposal does not meet the threshold to require thepr ovi si on of  thi s
type of housing.

The Council's Trees and Landscape Section raise no objection to the proposal. The
proposed layout plan shows the provision of a footpath across an existing grassed area.
However, it is considered adequate soft landscaping would remain to ensure that the
proposal would not be detrimental to the street scene. As such, the proposal is considered
to comply with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Polices,
September 2007).

Page 91
Page 93



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Isssues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Section 4.40 - 4.41 of the SPD: Residential layouts deals with waste management and
specifies bin stores should be provided for, and wheelie bin stores should not be further
than 9m from the edge of the highway. Whilst the layout plan shows an area to store
recycling (this would be 19.5m away from the public highway, there is no provision shown
for the storage of wheelie bins. However, it is considered, on these grounds alone it would
not warrant the refusal of planning permission, therefore if members wish to approve this
application these matters could be dealt with by way of a condition.

It has been considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, would havean adequat e
outlook and source of natural light, and therefore comply with the SPD: New Residential
Layouts: Section 4.9 states and Policy 4A.3 of the London Plan (2008).

Not applicable - the proposal is not within a flood plain

Not applicable

The landscape officer has been consulted in respect of the existing trees on or close to
the site and traffic issues are addressed in the full report. It is inevitable that there would
be some disruption during any building works and these issues would be dealt with under
the EPU of the local authority, health and safety legislation, or by theLocal  Pol ice
Authority. The remaining points are addressed in the full report.

Presently S106 contributions for education are only sought for developments if the net
gain of habitable rooms exceeds six. This proposal shows a net gain of 4rooms  and
therefore this would not be applicable in this development.

Not applicable

Not applicable

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need tobe awa r e
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of

Page 92
Page 94



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and thepr ivat e i nt er est
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendationshave no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council.  The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed
by the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being
made at a later stage.  Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal is for an attached house that would be set back from the front wall of the
existing property. The dwelling has been off-set 1m from the boundary toover come
previous concerns regarding impact on the street scene and is now fully HDAS compliant.
However, no off street parking has been provided, and therefore the proposal is
considered  contrary to the Council's approved car parking standards andUDP pol icy

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices September 2007
HDAS: New Residential Layouts: July 2006
The London Plan (2008)

Catherine Hems 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 93
Page 95



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

7

12
Olive Tree

51

43

14

9

35

Prim
ary

53

7

1

21

1

O
S
E

1

NIC
HOL

LS A
VEN

UE

23

19

14

BR
AM
B
LE
S
FA
R
M
D
R
IV
E

63

FA
R
M

2

19

The

31

The

NIC
HOL

24

50

57

36

9

16

School House

11

Hillingdon

Sch
ool

House

2c
2a

2b

22

TA
N
G
LEW

O
O
D
C
LO
SE

2

18

School

Hilli
ngd

on

CR

36

33
2

58

32

5

31

4

26

20

4

B
R
A
M
B
LES

TA
N
G
L
E
W
O
O
D
C
L
O
S
E

DRIVE

Fire Station

48

13

27

School House Primary

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Land adjacent and forming part of
19 Tanglewood Close

Hillingdon

63470/APP/2009/238

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 94

Page 96



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

134 SIPSON ROAD WEST DRAYTON

Conversion of dwelling to 2x1 bed flats with elevational alterations at front
and associated parking.

19/02/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 64649/APP/2009/341

Drawing Nos: Design and Access Statement
08/222/00
08/222/03
08/222/01
08/222/02

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Members will recall that the original planning application for the conversion to provide two
self-contained flats on the ground and first floors was refused in January 2009. This
application attempts to overcome the reasons for refusal of the previousscheme  by
proposing 1 bedroom flats on both floors. The proposal would fail to provide some
landscaping in the front garden and would still block access to the ground floor entrance
when the parking spaces are occupied. 

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal, by reason of the hardsurfacing of the whole of the front garden area, with
no provision made for landscaping would fail to harmonise with the character and
appearance of the street scene generally, contrary to policies BE13, BE19 and BE38 of
the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and
paragraph 4.36 of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: 'Residential Layouts'. 

The existing front driveway and front garden is capable of providing 4 off-street parking
spaces in the front garden area would not make sufficient provision for access to the
proposed flats, particularly in an emergency. As such, the proposal would be detrimental
to the highway and pedestrian safety, contrary to policies AM7(ii) andAM1 4 of  t he
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and
paragraph 4.37 of the Council's HDAS: 'Residential Layouts'. 

1

2

I52 Compulsory Informative (1)1

INFORMATIVES

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,

2. RECOMMENDATION

02/03/2009Date Application Valid:

Item No.5

Page 95

Agenda Item 10

Page 97



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I53 Compulsory Informative (2)2

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the south west side of Sipson Road and comprises a two
storey semi-detached house with a recessed two storey side addition and part two storey,
part single storey rear extension. The attached house, No. 132 Sipson Road, lies to the
north west and has a single storey rear extension. To the south east lies No. 136 Sipson
Road, a two storey semi-detached house with a recessed two storey side addition
attached to the application property, and a single storey rear extension. Yiewsley and
West Drayton Boys Club and Cherry Lane Infant and Junior School lie opposite the
application site. The street scene is predominantly residential in character and
appearance comprising two storey semi-detached houses with recessed two storey side
additions, effectively creating a terraced appearance. The application site lies within the
'developed area' as identified in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies September 2007).

including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article6 ( right  t o a f ai r
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

BE13
BE19

BE20
BE23
OE3

H7
AM7
AM14
HDAS

LPP 4A.3

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
Conversion of residential properties into a number of units
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
New development and car parking standards.
Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement (HDAS): Residential
Extensions (adopted in August 2006 and to form part of the
emerging Local Development Framework documents):
4.6 to 4.8 - Unit Size
4.9 - Sunlight/Daylight
4.12 - Privacy
4.16 - Garden Space 
4.23 - Elevation Treatment
4.33 - Car Parking
4.39 - Cycle Parking

London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

Page 96
Page 98



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Members will recall that a planning application (ref: 64649/APP/2008/1901) for the
conversion of the existing dwellinghouse to 2, two bedroom flats with associated parking
and changes to the existing elevations was heard at the Central & South Planning
Committee on the 6 January 2009, with a recommendation to refuse planning permission.
Members resolved to refuse planning permission for the following reasons:

1. The proposal, by reason of the hardsurfacing of the whole of the front garden area, with
no provision made for landscaping would fail to harmonise with the character and
appearance of the street scene generally, contrary to policies BE13, BE19 and BE38 of
the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and
paragraph 4.36 of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: 'Residential Layouts'.

2. The proposed first floor flat would fail to provide an adequate amount of internal floor
area in order to satisfy the Council's adopted minimum floor space standard of 63m² for a
two bedroom flat. As such, the proposal would fail to provide a satisfactory standard of
residential accommodation for the future occupiers of this unit, contrary to policy BE19 of
the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and
paragraphs 4.6 to 4.8 of the Council's HDAS: 'Residential Layouts'. 

3. The proposed provision of 4 off-street parking spaces in the front garden area would
not make sufficient provision for access to the proposed flats, particularly in an
emergency. As such, the proposal would be detrimental to the highway andpedest rian
safety, contrary to policies AM7(ii) and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and paragraph 4.37 of the Council's
HDAS: 'Residential Layouts'.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The previously refused scheme proposed to convert the property to provide two, 2
bedroom self-contained flats, on the ground and first floors. Elevational alterations
comprised the installation of a new entrance door in the recessed two storey side addition
to provide access to the ground floor flat. A door providing access for the first floor flat to
the rear garden was also proposed adjacent to the new ground floor frontdoor . The front
driveway was retained to provide two off-street parking spaces and the front garden was
hardsurfaced to provide two additional off-street parking spaces, accesst o wh i ch wa s
from a new crossover. 

This current application attempts to overcome the reasons for refusal oft he pr evi ous
scheme by proposing the conversion of the dwellinghouse to two, 1 bedroom self-
contained units on the ground and first floors, the conversion of the existing rear store to
provide a cycle store and a reduction in the number of off-street parking spaces in the
front forecourt from 4 to 3 spaces. The rear garden is now shown subdivided to provide
separate private amenity spaces for the proposed units.

64649/APP/2008/1901 134 Sipson Road West Drayton

CONVERSION OF DWELLINGHOUSE TO 2, TWO BEDROOM FLATS WITH ASSOCIATED
PARKING AND ELEVATIONAL ALTERATIONS

13-01-2009Decision: Refused

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 97
Page 99



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

4. The proposal fails to provide covered and secure cycle parking, in accordance with the
Council's Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan,
Saved Policies, September 2007). As such, the proposed development would be contrary
to sustainability objectives, contrary to policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and paragraph 4.39 of the
Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: 'Residential Layouts'. 

5. The proposal fails to ensure that the ground floor flat would not be overlooked from the
shared use of the rear amenity area. As such, the proposal would fail toaf for d an
adequate standard of residential amenity for the future occupiers of thegr ound floor  uni t
by reason of lack of privacy, contrary to policies BE23 and BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and section 4.0 of the
Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: 'Residential Layouts'.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE19

BE20

BE23

OE3

H7

AM7

AM14

HDAS

LPP 4A.3

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Conversion of residential properties into a number of units

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement (HDAS): Residential Extensions
(adopted in August 2006 and to form part of the emerging Local Development
Framework documents):
4.6 to 4.8 - Unit Size
4.9 - Sunlight/Daylight
4.12 - Privacy
4.16 - Garden Space 
4.23 - Elevation Treatment
4.33 - Car Parking
4.39 - Cycle Parking

London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Page 98
Page 100



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

7.01

7.02

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

The proposed conversion would maintain the residential character of the street scene and
is therefore acceptable in principle. However, the proposal would need to comply with
other Council policies and standards.

Internal Consultees

Environmental Protection Unit:

No objections, subject to an informative  advising on environmental nuisance from construction
work.

Education Services: 

If the net gain of habitable rooms turns out to be 6 or more then a contribution maybe required. 

External Consultees

13 adjoining owner/occupiers have been consulted. 3 letters of objectionand a pet ition wi th 92
signatories have been received making the following comments:

Letters of objection:

(i) Result in overcrowding
(ii) There are no other flats in the street
(iii) Increase in noise and disturbance
(iv) The ground floor flat entrance would be obstructed by parked carswh i ch coul d l ead to saf et y
issues for the occupants
(v) Result in an increase in on-street parking

Petition:

(i) The proposed conversion and elevational alterations at front wouldbe out  of  char act er  wi th ot her
properties in the street
(ii) The driveway would be immediately in front of the proposed entrance creating an obstruction.
(iii) If cars are parked in both the driveways at 134 and 136 there would be no access to the ground
floor flat entrance.
(iv) Insufficient soundproofing between the application property and adjoining properties.
(v) Increase in overlooking onto 134 Sipson Road
(vi) How will the ground floor unit get its cycles to the rear cycle store?
(vii) The internal alterations to form the ground floor flat is not conducive to modern living
(viii) There is no front garden parking to houses in the street
(ix) Lead to an increase in noise and disturbance

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 99
Page 101



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

No issues relating to density are raised by this application.

No issues relating to archaeology/CA's/LBs or Area of Special Local Character are raised
by this application.

No issues relating to airport safeguarding are raised by this application.

No issues relating to Green Belt are raised by this application.

The street scene is characterised by two storey semi-detached houses, many retaining
their front gardens. The proposed extensional alterations are identical to that which
formed part of the previously refused scheme. No objections were raised regarding these
alterations. The only external alteration proposed would be the installation of two new
doors in the front elevation. Given that the new front door to the ground floor flat would be
in the recessed side addition and due to the differing treatments of this and the side
access door giving access to the rear garden, it is considered that the alterations would
not appear unduly conspicuous and out of keeping in the street scene. 

The previously refused scheme involved the complete loss of the front garden area for off-
street parking. No objections were raised to the principle of front garden parking as there
are other properties in the street that have hardstanding areas at the front, notably at Nos.
108, 116, 124 and 128 Sipson Road; these have however retained some landscaping.
This current scheme now proposes a reduction in the number of parking spaces from 4 to
3. However the submitted plans show a parking space on the hardstanding removed
rather than in the front garden area. It would not be possible to prevent cars parking on
the existing hardstanding. Therefore, it would still be possible to park4 car s on t he
hardstanding and in the front garden.

Given the above, it is still considered that the extent of the hardsurfacing proposed is
excessive with little scope for effective landscaping and would be detrimental to the
character and appearance of the street scene. Furthermore, the provisionof  4 par ki ng
spaces on the front garden area, when the spaces are occupied, would notal low f or
adequate access to be maintained to the front and side doors of the proposed units.
Overall, the proposal would still represent a cramped and overintensive use of the front
forecourt, with little scope for landscaping which would be detrimental to the character and
appearance of the street scene. The proposals are therefore considered to be contrary to
policies BE13, BE19 and BE38 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies, September 2007) and paragraph 4.36 of the Hillingdon Design &
Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts. The proposal fails to overcome the first and
third reasons for refusal of the previous scheme.

With regard to residential amenity, a condition could be attached to ensure that adequate
insulation is provided to protect the residential amenities of adjoiningoccupi er s,  shoul d
planning permission be granted. No additional windows are proposed facing the adjoining
occupiers and therefore the proposal would not result in an increase in overlooking over
and above the current situation. There is no evidence to suggest that the occupiers of the
proposed units would generate an increase in noise and disturbance over and above the
occupiers of a dwelling house. As such, the proposal would not harm the residential
amenities of the adjoining occupiers and would comply with policies OE3,BE20 and BE24
of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007)

Page 100
Page 102



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

and paragraph 4.12 of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential
Layouts.

The proposed ground floor unit would measure approximately 64sq.m and the proposed
first floor flat would measure approximately 51sq.m. The proposed 1 bedroom units would
meet the recommended standard of 50sq.m for 1 bedroom units as set out in paragraph
4.6 the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts. The habitable
rooms would have adequate outlook and would receive sufficient natural light, in
accordance with the London Plan Policy 4A.3 and paragraph 4.9 of the Hillingdon Design
& Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts. As such, the proposal would provide an
adequate standard of residential accommodation for the future occupants,i n accor dance
with policies BE19 and H7 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies, September 2007). The proposal would overcome the second reason for refusal
of the previous scheme.

The submitted plans show the rear garden subdivided into 2 separate private amenity
spaces for each unit. However the plans fail to include the rear extension. When this is
added, the ground floor and first floor private amenity spaces would measure
approximately 45.5sq.m and 98sq.m, respectively, which would satisfy theCo unci l's
minimum standard of 20sq.m of amenity space for 1 bedroom flats. Access to this space
for the first floor flat would be through the proposed door and corridorin the si de addi tion,
a route which would not involve any loss of privacy to the occupiers of the ground floor flat
at the front and side of the building. The proposed subdivision of the rear garden would
therefore overcome the fifth reason for refusal of the previous scheme. However, the
boundary fence subdividing the private amenity space would be sited 1m from the side
boundary with 136 Sipson Road. This would position the fence in front ofthe rear  access
door, thereby and obstructing access to the proposed first floor flat private amenity space.
Whilst this arrangement is not acceptable, satisfactory access could be secured by way of
a condition, should planning permission be granted. A refusal on this basis is therefore not
recommended.

The Council's Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan,
Saved Policies, September 2007) requires 1.5 off-street parking spaces per self-contained
flat, which equates to 3 off-street car parking spaces. 3 parking spacesar e shown  on the
plans however 4 space could be accommodated. Furthermore, a cycle store would be
located to the rear of the property and can be accessed by the occupiersof  bot h flat s.  As
such, the proposal would be overcome the fourth reason for refusal of the previous
scheme and would comply with policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and the Council's Parking
Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan, Saved Policies,
September 2007) and 4.33 and 4.39 of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility
Statement(HDAS):Residential Layouts.

No issues relating to urban design, access and security are raised by this application.

The proposal is capable of satisfying Lifetime Homes Standards, in
accordance with Policy 3A.5 of the London Plan (2008) and the Council's
HDAS 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

Page 101
Page 103



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Isssues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

No issues relating to affordable housing and special needs are raised bythi s appl icat ion.

No issues relating to trees, landscaping and ecology are raised by this application.

No issues relating to sustainable waste management are raised by this application.

No issues relating to renewable enerby/sustainability are raised by thisappl icat ion.

No issues relating to flooding or drainage are raised by this application.

No issues relating to noise or air quality are raised by this application.

The third party comments are addressed in the report.

The proposed conversion would not result in an increase of more than 6 rooms. Therefore
a contribution towards education facilities has not been sought.

None.

It is not considered that subdivision will result in noise and disturbance such as to warrant
refusal of the application, given that the proposed flats will be in an existing residential
area.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need tobe awa r e
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and thepr ivat e i nt er est
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Page 102
Page 104



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendationshave no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council.  The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed
by the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being
made at a later stage.  Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons outlined above, the proposal would be contrary to the aforementioned
policies of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September
2007), this application is recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007)

Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement(HDAS):Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement(HDAS):Accessible Hillingdon

London Plan 2008

Sonia Bowen 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 103
Page 105



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

R
E

E

E

U

U

28

1

SCOTT CLO
SE

52

55

103

1

11

29.0m

20
a

10
6a

53

E
l S
u
b
S
ta

2

7

1

15

RO
AD

Boys Club

19

22

34

25

COL
ERI

DGE
WA
Y

18

10
4

10
6

41

13
2

14
4

13

CHERRY LANE

2

20
c

9

13

12
0

CR

TCB
SIPSO

N

139

50

K
E
A
TS

W
A
Y

10
4a

29.0m

Ward Bdy

20
b

28

16

11

81

23

1

36

10
8

17

Yiewsley and West Drayton

29.3m

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

134 Sipson Road
West Drayton

64649/APP/2009/341

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 104

Page 106



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

8 PASTURES MEAD HILLINGDON

Erection of a single storey rear extension (involving the replacement of a side
door with a window in main house).

19/12/2008

Report of the Director of Planning & Community Services Group

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 63559/APP/2008/3504

Drawing Nos: Location Plan
2631/01 Rev A
E-mail from applicant dated 03/02/09

Date Plans Received: 09/01/0009
03/02/0009

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The application site is located on the west side of Pastures Mead and comprises a two
storey detached house with a front bay window and a detached garage along the side
boundary with No. 10 Pastures Mead, that projects beyond the rear wall of the application
property. To the north lies No. 6 Pastures Mead, a two storey detached house with a
single storey front extension and single storey part rear extension. To the south lies No.
10 Pastures Mead, also a two storey detached house that has not been extended at the
rear. The street scene comprises two storey detached houses within an informal
residential estate which has a uniform character and appearance.  The site is also
characterised by many mature trees.  The application site lies within the 'developed area'

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

19/12/2008Date Application Valid:

Item No.6

DEFERRED ON 10th March 2009 FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON 

Members may recall that this application was deferred from the Central and South
Committee meeting of the 10th March 2009 in order to allow further assessment of the
impact of loss of sunlight from the proposed development and the impactsupon car
parking and the existing use of the garage.

A sun on ground drawing has been prepared.  This shows that there would be very little
additional loss of sunlight as compared to that associated with a 1.8m high close
boarded fence.

In terms of the impact upon car parking, a recent site visit revealed that the existing
garage has not already been converted, but is in use for domestic storage.  As Local
Planning Authorities can not compel garages to be used to park a car, the proposal
does not alter the existing car parking arrangements on site.

The application is recommended for refusal as set out in the attached report.

Page 105

Agenda Item 11

Page 107



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

as identified in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (SavedPol ici es,
September 2007) and lies within an area covered by TPO No. 160.  However there are no
protected trees on or close to the application property.

This is the third application that has been submitted which includes a single storey rear
extension.

The originally refused scheme (ref. 63559/APP/2007/2838) proposed a front
extension/porch with a canopy roof that extended across the whole of thefront  el evat ion
at ground floor level. The front porch was set flush with the southern flank wall and
measured 2.7m wide, set 300mm from the existing front bay window, 1.5m deep and was
finished with a mono-pitched canopy roof supported by a column, 2.3m high at eaves level
and 3.2m high at its highest point. The existing entrance door along thesout her n f lank
wall was shown to be relocated to the front.

The proposed single storey rear extension measured 5.6m wide for the full width of the
application property, 3m deep and was finished with a mono-pitched roof 2.5m high at
eaves level and 3.4m high at its highest point. The single storey side link was located
between the southern flank wall of the application property and the detached side garage.
It was set flush with the front wall of the garage and the rear wall of the proposed rear
extension and comprised a door at each end. This element of the scheme measured 0.9m
wide, 5.2m deep and was shown to be finished with a front/ rear pitched roof matching the
height and angle of the proposed mono-pitched roof of the rear extension.

The proposed side element provided a link between the proposed rear extension and the
side garage. It was also proposed to convert the garage to habitable purposes comprising
a study and WC.

The latest refused scheme (ref. 52982/APP/2007/3781) attempted to overcome the
reason for refusal of the previous scheme by omitting the canopy roof section of the front
porch. The front porch measured 2.7m wide, 1.5m deep and was finished with a mono-
pitched roof 2.3m high at eaves level and 3.1m high at its highest point. The remainder of
the scheme was as per the previously refused scheme.

This current application attempts to overcome the reason for refusal of the previous
scheme by omitting the front porch and the part single storey side element, retaining the
detached side garage as a garage, and by replacing the mono-pitched roofwi th a flat  roof
and reducing the height of the roof from 2.3m to 3.1m to 2.6m high. 

The proposed single storey rear extension would now measure 6.5m wide, covering the
full width of the application property and extending to the flank wall of the existing side
garage thereby infilling the gap between the application property and the garage in the
rear garden.  It would be 3m deep and finished with a flat roof, 2.6m high with two
rooflights. A door is proposed in the wall of the proposed single storeyrear  ext ensi on
between the application property and the side garage facing the street. It would provide
access to the open area along the side of the application property. A new ground floor
side window is proposed to replace an existing side door to the house facing the side
garage.  The applicant has confirmed that the property originally provided two bedrooms
and two box rooms but an internal partition wall has been removed so that it now provides

1.2 Proposed Scheme

Page 106
Page 108



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Planning permission (ref: 63559/APP/2007/2838) for the erection of a single-storey front
extension with pitched roof, single-storey side and rear extension and conversion of
garage to habitable use was refused, under delegated powers, on the 7th November 2007
for the following reason:

'The proposed front canopy, by reason of its siting, excessive width anddesi gn,  wo ul d
represent an incongruous and visually intrusive addition that would detract from the
appearance of the original house and the street scene generally, contrary to Policies
BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Borough's Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies 2007
and section 8.0 of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: 'Residential
Extensions'.'

Members may recall that a planning application (ref: 63559/APP/2007/3781) for the
erection of a front porch, single storey side and rear extension and conversion of garage
to habitable use, was reported to the Central & South Planning Committeeon 8 Apr i l 2008
with a recommendation to grant planning permission.  However, Members resolved to
refuse planning permission for the following reason:

'The proposals would represent an unduly dominant and unneighbourly overdevelopment
of the site, due to the siting and scale of the proposed rear extension,t he reduct ion i n
amenity space and unsatisfactory parking arrangements. The proposals aret her ef or e
contrary to Policies BE20, BE21, BE23 and AM14 of the Hillingdon UnitaryDe vel opme nt
Plan Saved Policies September 2007.' 

two bedrooms and a box room. 

Not applicable 

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

EXTERNAL:

63559/APP/2007/2838

63559/APP/2007/3781

8 Pastures Mead Hillingdon

8 Pastures Mead Hillingdon

ERECTION OF SINGLE-STOREY FRONT EXTENSION WITH PITCHED  ROOF, SINGLE-
STOREY SIDE AND REAR EXTENSION AND CONVERSION OF GARAGE TO HABITABLE
USE.

ERECTION OF A FRONT PORCH, SINGLE STOREY SIDE AND REAR EXTENSION AND
CONVERSION OF GARAGE TO HABITABLE USE.

07-11-2007

18-04-2008

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Refused

Refused

1.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Planning History

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Page 107
Page 109



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

5 adjoining owner/occupiers have been consulted. 6 letters of objection (2 from same
objector) and a petition with 19 signatures from the Pastures Mead Residents' Association
have been received making the following comments:

Letters of objection:

All the points made in the petition (see below) have been re-iterated,t oget her  wi th t he
following points:

(i) The proposal will result in two separate residences with insufficient off-street parking
and amenity space for the units. 
(ii) Increase in on-street parking
(iii) Loss of sunlight to living room and study of No. 6 Pastures Mead
(iv) Insufficient rear garden would remain leading to flooding
(v) The proposal would result in a house in multiple occupation
(vi) The plans are inconsistent - the side and rear elevation plans misrepresent the true
height of the extension
(vii) Company businesses are registered at the application property. These businesses
lead to additional on-street parking
(viii) Insufficient time to make proper representation
(ix) Present occupant is a medical surgeon and property could be used as a surgery, with
ground floor reception, waiting room and consulting room.

Petition:

As the above planning application for a rear extension is virtually the same as the previous
ones which were refused, our strong objections still stand as follows:

1. The proposed plans show over-development of an extremely small, centre plot.

2. Their proposed rear extension will leave them with almost no back garden and
exacerbate flooding problems.  It shows excessive development: when nos.6,  12 and 7
extended to the rear of their properties were not allowed to build across the entire back of
the house, which they are proposing to do.

3. The current owners also park their second car on their front lawn anda thi rd car  on the
shared access driveway with No. 10.  If they include their garage as living accommodation
(as indicated in the drawing) this will add to ongoing parking issues in the close.  These
are soon to be made worse when people begin to take residence of the 21 new flats in
Hillingdon Gardens.  Hercies Road residents already park in the 8 designated residence
parking spots in our road.

4. Building on and converting more land and reducing green space will worsen the
flooding potential.

5. Although the new plans show the living room returned to its former use (in the earlier
plans it was shown as a bedroom), we are concerned that this is in nameonl y as ther e is
now an additional downstairs shower room indicated. As there is currently just one couple
living in this 4 bed roomed, 2 bath roomed house, this implies that the house is being
extended and converted from a family home to a rental development for multiple
occupancy.  Our small close will be unable to accommodate the potentially large increase
in residents and visitors cars.

Page 108
Page 110



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

6. The resulting loss of outside amenity space (of a 7.7m rear garden, this extension will
take up approximately 3.2m) leaving only a 4m rear garden which is insufficient for a 4/5
bedroom family residence.

7. The location plan is incorrect as the boundary line indicated infers that the access
driveway belongs to No. 8 when it is in fact shared with No. 10.  This affects the number
of off-street parking spaces they actually have.

8. The drawing indicates that the extension will be structurally attached to the garage (by
way of creation of a new cavity wall).  We understand that this is not permissible and adds
to our concerns that people may live in the garage (encouraging unsuitable living
conditions and pushing their cars onto the street).

9. A business (Jinhua Indus Enterprises Pvt. Ltd) is registered as operating from No. 8
Pastures Mead (source Companies House) and we have concerns that this may relate to
the intention to extend the property as it was incorporated on 20th December 2007 (when
the previous planning application was made).  Also, on the internet (source
RightMove.co.uk) this address is registered as flats, not a detached residence.

10. As with the previous application, this has been submitted during theCh r ist ma s hol iday
season and having only received notification of this further application7 days i nt o the 21
day period for objection, we have serious concerns that the owner of No.10 ma y be awa y
on holiday and will not return until after this period has expired.  Whilst we cannot object
on his behalf, we are aware that he objected strongly to the original proposal and trust
that this will be taken into consideration in his absence. 

North Uxbridge Residents' Association - No comments received

Officer's comments: These points are addressed in the report

INTERNAL:

Trees:

The Site 
The site is a detached house, with detached garage set in a modest sizedpl ot , wi thi n a
cul-de-sac. Although situated within the area covered by TPO No. 160, there are no trees
(protected or otherwise) within, or close to, the site. 

The Proposal 
The proposal is to erect a flat-roofed single-storey rear extension across the width of the
rear elevation of the house which will link to the garage at the side oft he pl ot . No
vegetation or significant landscape features will be affected by the development. However,
the 3.0 metre deep extension will have the affect of reducing the remaining area of
amenity space currently provided by the rear garden. 

Recommendation
No objection and in this case see no need or opportunity for landscape conditions. 

Ward Councillor: Requests that this application is reported to the Planning Committee for
determination.

Page 109
Page 111



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

BE38

AM14

HDAS

CACPS

LPP 4A.3

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new
planting and landscaping in delelopment proposals.

New development and car parking standards.

Hillingdon Design  & Accessibility Statement (HDAS): Residential
Extensions (adopted in August 2006 and to form part of the emerging
Local Development Framework documents):
3.0 Rear Extensions and Conservatories: Single Storey 

Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP, Saved
Policies, September 2007)

London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

Part 2 Policies:

4.

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The proposed single storey rear extension has been reduced in height in an attempt to
overcome the previous reason for refusal. It is considered that, by reason of its siting,
design, appearance and length of projection, it would harmonise with thechar act er  and
proportions of the original house. The proposed rear extension is considered to appear
subordinate, as it would be set sufficiently below the cill level of ther ear  f irst  f loor
windows. Furthermore, it is not considered to detract from the visual amenities of the
surrounding area as there are other properties in the street that have single storey rear
extensions, notably at No. 6 Pastures Mead. As such, the proposal would comply with
policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies, September 2007) and section 3.0 of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility
Statement (HDAS): Residential Extensions.

The proposed single storey rear extension would not project more than 3.6m deep or
exceed 3.0m high, in accordance with paragraphs 3.3 and 3.6 of the HDAS:Re si dent ial
Extensions. The rear elevation of this property aligns with the rear elevation of No. 6
Pastures Mead which is separated from the proposal by approximately 1.5m.  The
proposed length of projection and height would ensure that the proposal would not result
in a visually intrusive and/or overdominant form of development or a significant increase in
overshadowing of No. 6, the adjoining property to the north. Furthermore, no side
windows are proposed facing this property.  The existing side garage would screen the

Page 110
Page 112



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

proposed single storey rear extension and the new side window to the house from No. 10
Pastures Mead to the south. As such, the proposal would not harm the residential
amenities of the adjoining occupiers and would comply with policies BE20, BE21 and
BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September
2007).  The proposal would therefore partially overcome the reason for refusal of the
previous planning application ref. 63559/APP/2007/3781 as regards its impact upon the
amenities of adjoining occupiers.

The new windows would provide an adequate outlook and natural light to the rooms they
would serve, in accordance with Policy BE20 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies, September 2007) and London Plan Policy 4A.3.

The new door in the proposed rear extension facing the street would essentially replace
an existing side door to the house which would be replaced with a window. The internal
arrangements of the application property would remain as a dwellinghouseand thi s coul d
be secured by way of a planning condition. Furthermore, the registrationof  a busi ness at
the application property does not suggest that a material change of use has occurred. 

At present the existing rear garden measures approximately 64sq.m. The proposed
development would reduce this to approximately 43m².  The applicant has confirmed that
the application property is a three bedroom house, including the remaining box room.
Given this, the resultant garden area would fail to meet the recommendedmi ni mu m
standard of 60m² for a three bedroom property as advised at paragraph3. 13 of  t he
HDAS: Residential Extensions.  As such, it is considered that the proposal does not fully
overcome the previous reason for refusal of planning application ref.
63559/APP/2007/3781.

The existing garage would be retained and therefore the proposal would not affect the
existing off-street parking arrangements. The proposal would not result in an increase in
on-street parking to the detriment of highway and pedestrian safety, in accordance with
policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies,
September 2007) and the Council's adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex1,  HUDP,
Saved Policies, September 2007). The proposal would therefore partiallyover come  that
aspect of the reason for refusal of the previous planning application ref.
63559/APP/2007/3781.

The application site lies within an area covered by TPO No. 160, howeverther e ar e no
trees on or close to the proposed development that would be adversely affected.
Therefore, the proposal would accord with policy BE38 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007). 

With regard to the third party comments, points (i), (ii), (iii), (v) and (vii) and points 1, 2, 3,
5, 6, 9 have been addressed in the report. On points (iv) and 4, the application site does
not lie within a flood risk area. On points (vi) and 7, the proposed plans are sufficient for
the determination of this planning application and on points (viii) and 10, sufficient time
has been allowed for representations to be made. Use as a doctor' surgery does not form
part of this application and point 8 is not a building control matter.

For the reasons outlined above, it is considered that the application fails to fully overcome
the reason for refusal of the previous scheme and this application is recommended for
refusal.

Page 111
Page 113



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NONSC Non Standard Condition

The proposal, having regard to the size of the enlarged accommodation would fail to
maintain an adequate amount of amenity space for the occupiers of the enlarged
property, and as such would result in an overintensive use of the remainder of the garden
to the detriment of the amenity of the neighbouring occupiers and character of the area.
The proposal is therefore contrary to policies BE19 and BE23 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and section 3.0 of the
Council¿s HDAS Design Guide: 'Residential Extensions'.

1

INFORMATIVES

RECOMMENDATION6.

Standard Informatives 

1           The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right torespect  for  pr ivat e and fami ly
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
             (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) set out below, and to all relevant material
considerations, including Supplementary Planning Guidance:
 Policy No.

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

BE38

AM14

HDAS

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and
provision of new planting and landscaping in delelopment
proposals.

New development and car parking standards.

Hillingdon Design  & Accessibility Statement (HDAS):
Residential Extensions (adopted in August 2006 and to form
part of the emerging Local Development Framework
documents):

2

Page 112
Page 114



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Sonia Bowen 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

CACPS

LPP 4A.3

3.0 Rear Extensions and Conservatories: Single Storey 

Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP,
Saved Policies, September 2007)

London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

Page 113
Page 115



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

R

E

E

R

E

MP
5.7
5

50

8

M
E
A
D

18

14

60

70

4

14

D
R
IV
E

47
49
51

2

El

6
17

23

38

12

26

74
69

55

46

60

48
14

37.2m

41

65

68

61

17

36.3m

19

SB

S
T
U
A
R
T
C
L
O
S
E

1
5

27

Western House

53

Church

48

15
5

Sub Sta

3

13

20

37

1

71

58

57

Shelter

52

20 22 24

59

38.1m

2

55

36

6

17

59
62

67
63

72
75

54
56

13
3

21

P
A
S
T
U
R
E
S

1 to
21

Chestlands Court

26

66

A
U
R
IO
L

AU
RIO

LB

11

64

73

1

50

4

´

February 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

8 Pastures Mead
Hillingdon

63559/APP/2008/3504

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 114

Page 116



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BROOK HOUSE FOOTBALL CLUB KINGSHILL AVENUE HAYES 

Alterations and extension to existing football clubhouse to provide new youth
centre facilities.

27/02/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 29439/APP/2009/411

Drawing Nos: Proposed Sections:231654/01204
Proposed Elevations:231654/01203
Proposed Ground Floor Plan: 231654/01202
Proposed Site Plan: 231654/01201
Proposed Roof Plan: 231654/01200
Existing Elevations: 231654/01103
Existing Ground Floor Plan: 231654/01102
Existing Site Plan: 231654/01101
Site Location PLan: 231654/01100
Existing and proposed areas: 231654/01 SK11
Site arrangement and Entrances: 231654/01 SK10
Design and access statement dated February 2009 by Purcell Miller Tritton
LLP: AR/231654/01

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for an extension to the existing clubhouse
building at Brook House Football Club. The extension is proposed to provide a self-
contained youth centre facility. The proposal would allow for an additional range of
community facilities and is supported by policy 3A.26 of the London Plan.

The proposal would not have a detrimental impact on the openness and visual amenity of
the Green Belt, on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers or on the operation of the
highway network.

Accordingly, it is recommended that the proposed extension be approved subject to
conditions.

SP01 Council Application Standard Paragraph

(This authority is given by the issuing of this notice under Regulation3 of  the Town  and
Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and shall enure only for the benefit of the
land)

1

2. RECOMMENDATION

03/03/2009Date Application Valid:

Approval, in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning
General Regulations 1992, subject to the following conditions:

Item No.7

Page 115

Agenda Item 12

Page 117



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

T8

OM1

M1

H14

TL5

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

Details/Samples to be Submitted

Cycle Storage - details to be submitted

Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration ofthr ee year s
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

No development shall take place until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until details of 29
covered and secure cycle storage have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter, the development shall not be occupied or brought
into use until the approved cycling facilities have been implemented in accordance with
the approved plan, with the facilities being permanently retained for use by cyclists.

REASON
To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and
hence the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with
Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme providing full details of hard
and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writingby the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. Thescheme  shal l
include: -
· Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
· Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
· Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,
· Implementation programme.

2

3

4

5

6

Page 116
Page 118



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL6

TL7

Landscaping Scheme - implementation

Maintenance of Landscaped Areas

The scheme shall also include details of the following: -
· Proposed finishing levels or contours,
· Means of enclosure,
· Car parking layouts,
- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,
- Hard surfacing materials proposed,
· Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture,ref use st or age,  si gns,
or lighting),
· Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),
· Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon UnitaryDe vel opme nt  Pl an
Saved Policies (September 2007).

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding
seasons following the completion of the development or the occupation ofthe bui ldi ngs,
whichever is the earlier period. 

The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirements
specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'
and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding
Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be permanently
retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or
in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damagedor  di seased
shall be replaced in the same place in the next planting season with another such tree,
shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local Planning
Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON
To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.  The scheme shall include details of the arrangements for its
implementation.  Maintenance shall be carried out in accordance with theappr oved
schedule.

REASON
To ensure that the approved landscaping is properly maintained in accordance with

7

8

Page 117
Page 119



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL1

TL2

TL3

Existing Trees - Survey

Trees to be retained

Protection of trees during site clearance and development

policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (September 2007).

Prior to any work commencing on site, an accurate survey plan at a scaleof  not  less than
1:200 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
plan must show:-
 (i) Species, position, height, condition, vigour, age-class, branch spread and stem
diameter of all existing trees, shrubs and hedges on and immediately adjoining the site.
 (ii) A clear indication of trees, hedges and shrubs to be retained and removed.
 (iii) Existing and proposed site levels.
 (iv) Routes of any existing or proposed underground works and overhead lines including
their manner of construction.
 (v) Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees and other vegetation to be retained during construction
work.

REASON
To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the amenity value of existing trees,
hedges and shrubs and the impact of the proposed development on them andto ensur e
that the development conforms with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon UnitaryDe vel opme nt
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shallnot  be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. 

If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during construction,
or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall be
planted at the same place and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first planting season following the
completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the
earlier.

Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the
effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery
Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial work shouldbe car ried out
to BS 3998 (1989)  'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS 4428 (1989)' Co de of
Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work
shall be completed in the first planting season following the completiono f  t he
development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the HillingdonUn i tar y
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Prior to the commencement of any site clearance or construction work, detailed drawings

9

10

11

Page 118
Page 120



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

DIS3

SUS5

Parking for Wheelchair Disabled People

Sustainable Urban Drainage

showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root areas/crown spread of
trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall be
commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected
in accordance with the details approved.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing
shall be retained in position until development is completed. The area within the
approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course of the works and
in particular in these areas: 
1. There shall be no changes in ground levels; 
2. No materials or plant shall be stored; 
3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed. 
4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and. 
5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damageddur ing
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Development shall not commence until details for a minimum of 4 parking spaces for
wheelchair users, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall not be occupied until all the approved details have been
implemented and thereafter these facilities shall be permanently retained.

REASON
To ensure that people in wheelchairs are provided with adequate car parking and
convenient access to building entrances in accordance with Policy AM5 ofthe Hi llingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Note: wheelchair users are not the only category of people who require a' di sabl ed'
parking space. A Blue Badge parking space can also be used by people whohave a
mobility impairment (full-time wheelchair users account for only a small percentage of
this category) including elderly people, visually impaired people having a sighted driver,
children having bulky equipment such as oxygen cylinders that have to bet ranspor ted
with them, etc.

No development shall take place on site until details of the incorporation of sustainable
urban drainage have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be installed on site and thereafter
permanently retained and maintained.

REASON
To ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with policy 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) /if appropriate/ and to
ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy OE8 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), polices
4A.12 and 4A.13 of the London Plan (February 2008) and PPS25.

12

13

Page 119
Page 121



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

SUS6

NONSC

NONSC

CCTV and Lighting

Green Travel Plan

Hours of Use

Delivery Hours

Prior to development commencing, details of CCTV and external lighting coverage for the
site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local PlanningAut hor i ty.  The
approved details shall be installed prior to the occupation of the development hereby
approved and thereafter permanently maintained.

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safeand secur e
environment in accordance with policies 4B.1 and 4B.6 of the London Plan.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a Travel Plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan, as
submitted shall follow the current Travel Plan Development Control Guidance issued by
Transport for London and will include: 

(1) targets for sustainable travel arrangements;
(2) effective measures for the ongoing monitoring of the Travel Plan;
(3) a commitment to delivering the Travel Plan objectives; and 
(4) effective mechanisms to achieve the objectives of the Travel Plan by both present
and future occupiers of the development.

The development shall be implemented only in accordance with the approved Travel
Plan.

REASON
To promote sustainable transport and reduce the impact of the development on the
surrounding road network in accordance with Policies 3C.1, 3C.2 and 3C.3of  the London
Plan (February 2008)

The premises shall not be used outside of the following hours:

-0900hrs and 2200hrs on Mondays to Saturdays.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding residential areas in accordance with Policies
OE1 and 0E3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

Deliveries and collections, including waste collections, shall be restricted to the following
hours;
-0700hrs to 1800hrs Mondays to Saturdays
and not at all on Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays.

14

15

16

17

Page 120
Page 122



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC Management Plan

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding residential areas in accordance with Policies
OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September
2007.

Before the proposed building is brought into use a Youth Centre Management Plan shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall set out
a programme of actions to control the following:

a) noise nuisance and anti-social behaviour in and around the site, including
management strategies to control youths entering and exiting the site during all hours of
use;
b) provision to ensure that all programmes operated from the site take account of the
proximity of residential neighbours and seek to ensure that, where possible, the
programmes are undertaken during normal day time hours;
c) Consultation strategies to keep the local community abreast of events at the site and
of management strategies to employment.

Once approved, the facility shall be run in accordance with the approvedYout h Ce nt re
Management Plan for as long as the facility remains on site.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding residential areas in accordance with Policies
OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September
2007.

18

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to afai r hear ing) ; Ar ticl e 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the FirstPr ot ocol  (pr ot ect ion of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

OL1

OL2
BE15
BE18
BE20

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
Green Belt -landscaping improvements
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Page 121
Page 123



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I1

I12

I14C

Building to Approved Drawing

Notification to Building Contractors

Compliance with Building Regulations Access to and use of

3

4

5

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receivescopi es of  al l
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

·    The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with
·    BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of
disabled people - Code of practice.
     AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005. 

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995.  The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments.  This
duty can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it
is reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation

BE21
OE8

R6
AM9

AM13

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Ancillary recreational facilities
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities
Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and
people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

Page 122
Page 124



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work6

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the northern side of Kingshill Avenue, Hayes, and
comprises a roughly triangular plot of land with a single storey football clubhouse set
within an area of informal car parking. The football pitches are locatedf ur ther  beyond,
north of the application site. The clubhouse and the football pitches are linked via
pedestrian access.  The application site and the football pitches are within the Green Belt
as designated by the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September

compliance.  For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

·   The Disability Discrimination Act 1995.  Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

·   Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements.  Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

·   Code of practice.  Rights of access.  Goods, facilities, servicesand pr emi ses.
Disability discrimination act 1995, 2002.  ISBN 0 11702 860 6.  Available to download
from www.drc-gb.org.

·   Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means toyou.   A gui de for
service providers, 2003.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation.  For further
information you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6 and 8.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation.In par ticul ar , you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out betweenthe hour s of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays orBank
Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create apubl ic heal th
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 123
Page 125



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal seeks planning permission for the extension of the existingf oot bal l cl ub
building. The proposed single storey extension to the northern side of the existing building
would provide a self-contained and dedicated Youth Centre area.  The newCe nt re wi ll
provide the users of the building with a café, a kitchen suitable forteachi ng sma l l gr oups
and ICT facilities. The extension would also allow two new administrative areas for staff,
new toilets and a Disability Discrimination Act compliance accessible WC.

The extension will provide approximately 147sq.m of new floor space overa si ngl e st or ey.
The total area, including the existing building which is to be retained,wi ll be appr oxi ma t el y
580sq.m. Given the poor state of the existing car park the proposal willal so i ncl ude re-
surfacing of the car park.

There will be no internal through access between the existing Football Club and the
proposed Youth Club. The uses will be independently operated, although it is considered
that the uses are ancillary to each other.

It should be noted that the whole site is in Council ownership and leased to Brookhouse
F.C.

29439/A/80/1896

29439/APP/2000/446

29439/B/84/1734

29439/D/89/0245

29439/E/89/2304

Brook House Football Club Kingshill Avenue Hayes 

Brook House Football Club Kingshill Avenue Hayes 

Brook House Football Club Kingshill Avenue Hayes 

Brook House Football Club Kingshill Avenue Hayes 

Brook House Football Club Kingshill Avenue Hayes 

Leisure development - 91sq.m. (Full)(P)

ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION AND FRONT ENTRANCE PORCH TO
CLUBHOUSE

Siting of a portakabin (for use as a dressing room).

Retention of portakabin for use as changing rooms

Erection of 8 floodlights and new single-storey changing rooms adjacent to main pitch; erection

29-12-1980

21-07-2000

25-02-1985

21-03-1989

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

ALT

Approved

ALT

ALT

3.3 Relevant Planning History

AllowedAppeal: 05-04-1990

Page 124
Page 126



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Decision type 'ALT' above refers to Approved with Limited Time'.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007
PPG2 - Green Belt
Council's Parking Standards
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Access Hillingdon

PT1.1

PT1.2

PT1.31

To maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature
of the area.

To maintain Metropolitan Open Land for formal and informal open air recreation
facilities including nature conservation.

To encourage the development and support the retention of a wide range of local
services, including shops and community facilities, which are easily accessible to
all, including people with disabilities or other mobility handicaps.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

29439/G/94/0953

29439/H/98/0070

Brook House Football Club Kingshill Avenue Hayes 

Brook House Football Club Kingshill Avenue Hayes 

of 4 floodlights and enclosure netting to existing practice pitch which is to be changed to all
weather surface; erection of first-floor to exist- ing clubhouse and a 2-storey side and rear
exten- sion providing bar/children's facilities, changing rooms and gymnasium plus associated
car-parking.

Formation of training area, extension to car park and erection of four floodlighting columns plus
landscaping

Erection of a spectator stand and building to provide changing rooms, toilets, kitchen,
physiotherapy room, stores and boardroom

04-09-1990

06-09-1994

07-06-1999

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

Approved

Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 125
Page 127



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OL1

OL2

BE15

BE18

BE20

BE21

OE8

R6

AM9

AM13

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

Green Belt -landscaping improvements

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Ancillary recreational facilities

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design ofhi ghwa y
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people with
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

Not applicable7th April 2009

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT
No comments to make on this application.

ACCESS
No comments received.

HIGHWAYS
No changes are proposed to the current access and parking arrangements and therefore there
would be no objections subject to a Green Travel Plan being adopted. There- sur faci ng and for ma l
parking arrangements will benefit the users of the site.

TREES AND LANDSCAPING

External Consultees

The application was advertised under Article 8 of the Town and Country Planning Act (1990). A site
notice was placed within a prominent location close the application site. 81 residents and
surrounding occupiers were consulted on this proposal. No comments or objections have been
received.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY
No objections.

Page 126
Page 128



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

The main policy consideration is the suitability of the development within the Metropolitan
Green Belt. Hillingdon's Unitary Development Saved policies OL1 and OL2 and policy
objectives of PPG2 seek to protect the Green Belt, which includes its use for open air
recreational facilities. The proposed extension is a modest sized extension which, by
reasons of its size, scale and height, would appear subsidiary to the existing building. The
location of the proposed extension is on an already hard surfaced area associated with
the existing building and no soft landscaping or trees will be affected.A dense r ow o f
trees and landscaping also screen the application site and therefore long views to and
from the green belt will be unaffected.

The existing car park covers a large area and the existing access (whish is onto a straight
section of highway with good visibility in both directions would be unaffected by the
proposals. London Plan policy 3A.26 supports community facilites.

N/A

The proposal fails to address the opportunity to improve the appearance of the front boundary. The
landscape proposals should address improvements to the front boundary which could be
addressed by planting a hedge to the inside of the existing fence line. This would effectively
camouflage the unsightly boundary fence and provide some screening of the parked cars and
activities within the site.

Although the area to be developed appears to be away from any trees, they should be accurately
plotted in relation to the proposed external works and in relation to working/storage space required
during the construction and demolition works.

No objections to the proposal subject to appropriate landscape conditions.

WASTE STRATEGY
No comments received.

URBAN DESIGN
The proposed extension is considered to be subservient to the existing building in terms of its
scale, footprint, position as well as massing. 

The roof form is pitched to match the existing building, however sits lower than the existing, which
is helpful in creating a discrete composition. The effects from the street scene will therefore be
minimal. The proposed extension is considered to be well balanced, and to be characterised by
neutral, high quality materials such as painted render and cedar cladding. A generous paved area
will be provided in relation to the entrance, with character trees at the front, which will create a
much more welcoming and positive ambience than the existing. From a practical, aesthetic as well
as safety point of view it is important to create a boundary between thepr oposed car  par ki ng and
the pedestrian areas leading up to the entrance, for example by low hedges.  The proposed graffiti
wall on the existing external wall at the secondary entrance is a positive idea, to tap into the
creativity of users of the facility. 

In summary the proposed scheme is considered to be in keeping with the character of the existing
Clubhouse, and is not considered to affect the spatial relationship within the area, which is Green
Belt.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 127
Page 129



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

N/A

N/A

The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy (PPG2) is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping
land permanently open; the most important attribute of Green Belts is their openness.
Green Belts can shape patterns of urban development at sub-regional and regional scale,
and help to ensure that development occurs in locations allocated in development plans.
Green Belts help to protect the countryside, be it in agricultural, forestry or other use. 

One of the Green Belt policy objectives is to provide opportunities for outdoor sport and
outdoor recreation near urban areas. The application site is within the Green Belt and
currently is associated with an outdoor sports and recreation area. The existing building
serves as a clubhouse to the existing football pitches located north of the application site. 

The proposed extension would represent an approximately 25% increase in footprint to
the clubhouse, and slightly less than 25% with respect to volume increase.

The proposed extension is not considered to injure the visual amenities of the Green Belt
and is conspicuous from the wider areas of the Green Belt by employing appropriate
materials with the siting and bulk of the extension appearing subsidiaryt o t he exi st ing
building. Furthermore, the site is well screened by dense boundary tree rows and shrubs.

The proposal therefore is not considered impact upon the openness of theGr een Bel t and
accords with policy objectives of PPG2 and policies within Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies. 

The proposed extension is single storey and is located at the northern corner of the
existing building. The proposed materials are combination of cedar cladding and render.
Given the proposed siting, materials and bulk, the proposal would be inconspicuous and
would not impact upon the appearance and the character of the area. The proposed
extension is subsidiary to the existing building and will not appear prominent within the
streetscene, in accordance with policies BE15 and BE19 of Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies September 2007.

There are no immediate adjoining residential dwellings or sensitive buildings and the
adjoining Rugby Club building is some 20m away separated by dense landscaping. The
proposed single storey extension therefore will not have any adverse impact to
neighbouring buildings, which complies with policies BE20, BE21 and BE24of  Un i tar y
Development Plan Saved Policies.

N/A

Page 128
Page 130



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

The proposed access arrangements and parking provision remains unchangedt o t he
existing situation. However the proposal would see site improvements such as
resurfacing, formalised car parking arrangements and site layout and secure cycle parking
stands.

There are currently 42 spaces for the existing club house and no secure cycle parking
areas. It is considered that 42 spaces are ample for the proposed uses given that the
nature of the youth club is that the users are likely to be accessing the site by public
transport, walking or cycling. There is sufficient circulation space within the site for
informal drop off and pick up areas if parents required. However, the users should be
encouraged to use sustainable modes of travel and this should be throughadopt ion and
implementation of a Green Travel Plan by the operators of the Youth Club. An appropriate
worded condition is proposed to seek a green travel plan to be submittedto and appr oved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The Council requires that 10% of total parking spaces are dedicated to disabled users.
The submitted plans indicate 1 space for wheelchair users.  An appropriate worded
condition is recommended for a plan showing at least 4 spaces to be madefor  di sabl ed
users and that it is located in close proximity to the main entrances.

Subject to condition, it is considered that the proposal would comply with policies AM14
and AM15 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies.

The proposed extension is modest in size. A matching pitched roof is proposed over the
extension which will provide a consistent form of development to the existing building. The
appearance of the extension varies from the clubhouse, through the use of cedar cladding
which will articulate the facades and provide visual interest to the building. Also, the
varying appearances provide distinction between the clubhouse and Youth Centre. 

The Youth Club also proposes that part of the external wall to the rear of the building to be
used as a graffiti wall, to encourage creativity. This wall cannot be viewed from the public
highway.

The proposal also includes large amounts of glazing to allow generous amounts of natural
light to penetrate into the building. The overhanging roof will provide shading to minimise
solar heat gain in the summer months.

The proposed main entrances to the relevant parts of the building are clear and legible
with pedestrian access leading to the football pitches remaining clearlyv i si bl e and
uninterrupted. The proposed extension is not considered to add any security risks and
would conform to secured by design principles. 

The combination of the proposed bulk, use of materials and location of the extension will
allow the extension to be subordinate to the existing building. 

The proposed facility will be subject to the Disability Discrimination Act 1995 (amended
2005) because it will provide a service to the public. The proposal hasconsi der ed
inclusive design, through providing a resurfaced car park with dropped kerbs at
appropriate places for crossing, ramped access into the proposed youth centre with

Page 129
Page 131



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Isssues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

appropriate DDA complaint amenities for wheelchair bound users. The proposal is
considered to be designed to be inclusive. However, an appropriate condition is
recommended to ensure that the application site provides adequate parking spaces for
wheelchair users.

N/A

No detailed tree or landscape assessment has been submitted but the landscape buffer
contains a number of large semi-mature/mature trees which contribute to the character of
the area and is clearly visible when approached along Kingshill Avenue. However, due to
the maturity of the trees the canopy is at a high level and provides no screening of the site
at eye level. Eye level views into the site from the road are compromised by open views
through poor quality (chain link) fencing with rough vegetation at ground level. The
boundaries to the west and east are well vegetated with trees and hedging/shrubs.

There is an opportunity to improve the front boundary treatment and therefore appropriate
worded conditions as suggested by the Council' Landscape Architect should be imposed.

A dedicated area for refuse is proposed within the car park which is in close proximity to
the highway. However, the area and/or storage bins need to be distinguished such that
50% of the bins are for refuse and 50% are for recycling. A condition ispr oposed t o
address this issue.

Not applicable as the proposal only accommodates an extension to this existing facility,
which is not served by onsite renewables.

With re-surfacing of the parking area, the site has an opportunity to provide porous paving
as part of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) to achieve minimal runoff from
the site. There is an appropriately worded condition to cover this issue. 

Although the Environmental Protection Unit have raised no concerns and the proposed is
not close to residential property, it is nonetheless considered necessary to control the
hours of use to prevent possible disturbance to the closes residential areas to the
application site.

No comments were received from members of the public.

No planning obligations are sought for this development.

Page 130
Page 132



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.22 Other Issues

None applicable to this site.

No other issues.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need tobe awa r e
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and thepr ivat e i nt er est
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendationshave no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council.  The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed
by the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being
made at a later stage.  Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks to extend the existing building to provide a self-contained youth
centre.

The proposal would allow for additional range of community uses and is supported by
policy 3A.26 of the London Plan.

Page 131
Page 133



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The proposal would not have a detrimental impact on the Green Belt, amenity of
neighbouring occupiers or on the operation of the highway network.

Accordingly, it is recommended that the proposal to be approved subject to conditions.

11. Reference Documents

Planning Policy Guidance No.2 - Green Belt
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September, 2007)
Council's Parking Standards
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Access Hillingdon

Jane Jin 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 132
Page 134



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

E

L

L

L

E

EL
L

R

L

E

L

E

R

L

L LL
L

L

R

L
L

R

L

R

E

L
LL

L

R

L

A

G

G
G

31.7m

El

C
an
al
F
ee
d
er

RA
YN
TO
N
DR
IV
E

237

13
3

235

8

30.2m

11

152

Club

Sports Fields

30.5m

10

218

1

2

216

34

Posts

174
164

Sub Sta

1

Practice

9

30.5m

247

22

6

233

Clu
b

Grange Park

Cedar Brook

11
3

12
3

10

4

214

Grosvenor Playing Field

31.4m

KIN
GS
HIL

L C
LO
SE

8

37.1m

Issues

Clu
b

Surgery

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Brookhouse Football Club
Kingshill Avenue

Hayes

29439/APP/2009/411

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:2,000

Page 133

Page 135



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 134

Agenda Item 13

Page 137



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

M3

OM2

OM5

DIS2

Boundary treatment - details

Levels

Provision of Bin Stores

Access to Buildings for People with Disabilities

Authority in writing before any development is commenced.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (AsAme nded) .

No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority a plan indicating the positions,desi gn,  ma t er ial s
and type of boundary treatment to be erected. The details shall include the gates to the
residential areas and the allotments.  The boundary treatment shall be completed before
the use hereby permitted is commenced. Development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

REASON
To safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policy BE13 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

No development shall take place until details of facilities to be provided for the screened
covered and secure storage of refuse and recycling bins within the site have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Nopar t of  t he
development shall be occupied until the facilities have been provided inaccor dance wi th
the approved details and thereafter the facilities shall be permanently retained. 

REASON
To ensure a satisfactory appearance and in the interests of the amenities of the
occupiers and adjoining residents, in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Development shall not commence until details of access to building entrances (to include
ramped/level approaches, signposting, types and dimensions of door widthand l obby
openings) to meet the needs of people with disabilities have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved facilities should be
provided prior to the occupation of the development and shall be permanently retained
thereafter.

4

5

6

7

Page 135
Page 138



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

DIS5

TL4

TL6

Design to Lifetime Homes Standards & to Wheelchair
Standards

Landscaping Scheme (outline application)

Landscaping Scheme - implementation

REASON
To ensure that people with disabilities have adequate access to the development in
accordance with Policies AM13 and R16 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan Policies (February 2008) Policies
3A.13, 3A.17 and 4B.5.

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards. Further 10% of the units hereby approved shall be
designed to be fully wheelchair accessible, or easily adaptable for residents who are
wheelchair users, as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning Document
'Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon'.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs ofdi sabl ed and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (February 2008) Policies3A. 5,  3A. 13,
3A.17 and 4B.5.

The development hereby permitted shall be landscaped and planted in accordance with a
fully detailed scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority as part of the details of the proposed development required bycondi tion No . 2 
The scheme shall include:-
· Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
· Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
· Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,
· Implementation programme.
The scheme shall also include details of the following:-
· Proposed finishing levels or contours,
· Means of enclosure,
· Car parking layouts,
- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,
- Hard surfacing materials proposed,
· Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture,ref use st or age,  si gns,
or lighting),
· Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),
· Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon UnitaryDe vel opme nt  Pl an
Saved Policies (September 2007).

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding
seasons following the completion of the development or the occupation ofthe bui ldi ngs,

8

9

10

Page 136
Page 139



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL7

H7

M1

Maintenance of Landscaped Areas

Parking Arrangements (Residential)

Details/Samples to be Submitted

whichever is the earlier period. 

The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirements
specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'
and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding
Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be permanently
retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or
in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damagedor  di seased
shall be replaced in the same place in the next planting season with another such tree,
shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local Planning
Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON
To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.  This should include details of maintenance of the green roofs.  The
scheme shall include details of the arrangements for its implementation.Mai ntenance
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved schedule.

REASON
To ensure that the approved landscaping is properly maintained in accordance with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (September 2007).

The parking areas, including where appropriate the marking out of parking spaces,
shown on the approved plans, shall be constructed prior to the occupation of the
development and thereafter be permanently retained and used for no otherpur pose.

REASON
To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is providedon si te i n
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

No development shall take place until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

11

12

13

Page 137
Page 140



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OM14

SUS5

SUS1

NONSC

Secured by Design

Sustainable Urban Drainage

Energy Efficiency Major Applications (full)

Non Standard Condition

The development hereby approved shall incorporate measures to minimise the risk of
crime and to meet the specific security needs of the application site and the
development. Details of security measures shall be submitted and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority before development commences. Any security measures to
be implemented in compliance with this condition shall reach the standard necessary to
achieve the 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon Metropolitan
Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association of Chief
Police Officers (ACPO).

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in exercising its planning functions; to
promote the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2
of the Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's
SPG on Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development providesa saf e
and secure environment in accordance with policies 4B.1 and 4B.6 of the London Plan.'

No development shall take place on site until details of the incorporation of sustainable
urban drainage have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be installed on site and thereafter
permanently retained and maintained.

REASON
To ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with policy 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) and toensur e t he
development does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy OE8 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), polices 4A.12
and 4A.13 of the London Plan (February 2008) and PPS25.

The measures to reduce the energy demand and carbon dioxide emissions oft he
development and to provide a portion of the site's energy needs through renewable
energy generation contained within the submitted Energy Report, dated March 2009,
shall be integrated into the development and thereafter permanently retained and
maintained.

REASON
To ensure that the development incorporates appropriate energy efficiency measures in
accordance with policies 4A.1, 4A.3, 4A.4, 4A.6, 4A.7, 4A.9, and 4A.10 of the London
Plan (February 2008).

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a construction
management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval.  The plan shall detail:
(i) The phasing of development works
(ii) The hours during which development works will occur
(iii) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentiallycont ami nat ing
materials and fittings can be removed safely and intact for later reuse or processing

14

15

16

17

Page 138
Page 141



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

(iv) Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto adjoining roads (wheel washing)
(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (Vehicular and pedestrian) and
parking provisions for contractors during the development process, including avoidance
of construction traffic within morning/evening peak hours
(vi) Details of where storage of materials will occur during construction
The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of
the demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenities of surrounding areas in compliance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

Prior to the commencement of the development, details of covered and secure cycle
storage provision for 26 cycles (9 for the residential units and 17 fort he commu ni ty
centre) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The cycle storage areas shall be completed in accordance with the agreedscheme  pr ior
to the first residential occupation of the building hereby permitted andt her eaf ter
permanently retained for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure that adequate facilities are provided in accordance with the standards set out
in the Council's cycle-parking standards in accordance with Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

Prior to the commencement of development, full details of the green roofpr oposed for
the community centre shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

In the interests of visual amenity in compliance with Policy BE13 of theHi llingdon Un i tar y
Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

All soils used for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of
contamination.  Site derived soils and imported soils shall be tested for chemical
contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted to andappr oved by the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subject to any risks for soil
contamination in accordance with Policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

Before any part of this development is commenced a site survey to assesst he l and
contamination levels shall be carried out to the satisfaction of the Council and a
remediation scheme for removing or rendering innocuous all contaminates from the site
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The

18

19

20

21

Page 139
Page 142



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

DIS4

NONSC

NONSC

OM20

Signposting for People with Disabilities

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Grampian Planning Obligations

remediation scheme shall include an assessment of the extent of site contamination and
provide in detail the remedial measures to be taken to avoid risk to theoccupi er s wh en
the site is developed.  All works which form part of this remediation scheme shall be
completed before any part of the development is occupied (unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority).

REASON
To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subjected to anyr isks f rom
land contamination, in compliance with Policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

Signplates, incorporating a representation of the Universal Wheelchair Symbol, should
be displayed to indicate the location of convenient facilities to meet the needs of people
with disabilities.  Such signplates should identify or advertise accessible entrances to
buildings, reserved parking spaces, accessible lifts and lavatory accommodation,
manageable routes through buildings and availability of additional services.  Signs for
direction and location should have large characters or numerals and clearly contrast with
the background colour.

REASON
To ensure that people with disabilities are aware of the location of convenient facilities in
accordance with Policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting surrounding dwellings from
dust emitted from the construction works, has been submitted to, and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
In the interests of residential health and amenity in compliance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007. 

A scheme for the control of potential noise emanating from the proposed community
centre shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The
scheme shall be fully implemented before the development is occupied/usecomme nces
and thereafter shall be retained and maintained in good working order for so long as the
building remains in use.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policy 4A.20
of the London Plan (February 2008).

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, a scheme shall be submitted
to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority detailing how improvements
will be made to educational and library facilities in the vicinity of the site to meet the

22

23

24

25

Page 140
Page 143



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

needs arising from the proposed development.  The approved means and timescale of
providing the proposed improvements shall then be implemented in accordance with the
agreed scheme.

REASON
To ensure the development provides an appropriate contribution to the improvement of
educational and library facilities within the surrounding area, arising from the proposed
development, in accordance with Policy R17 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan and the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance on Planning
Obligations.

The premises shall not be used outside the following hours:

- 09.00hrs and 22.00hrs on Mondays to Saturdays;
- 12.00hrs to 22.00hrs on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding residential areas in accordance with Policies
OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September
2007.

Deliveries and collections, including waste collections, shall be restricted to the following
hours;

- 07.00hrs to 18.00hrs Mondays to Saturdays
and not at all on Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding residential areas in accordance with Policies
OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September
2007.

26

27

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to afai r hear ing) ; Ar ticl e 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the FirstPr ot ocol  (pr ot ect ion of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national

Page 141
Page 144



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I1

I2

I3

Building to Approved Drawing

Encroachment

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

3

4

5

guidance.

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

OL5
BE13
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE23
BE24

BE38

OE1

R5

R10

R16

R17

AM2

AM7
AM14
AM15

Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Proposals that involve the loss of sports, leisure, community,
religious, cultural or entertainment facilities
Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social,
community and health services
Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children
Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Page 142
Page 145



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I5

I6

I11

I12

I15

Party Walls

Property Rights/Rights of Light

The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
1994

Notification to Building Contractors

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

6

7

8

9

10

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
 carry out work to an existing party wall;
 build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
 in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of thebui ldi ng own er
and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building
Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessaryagr eeme nt s
with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as
removing the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act.
Further information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 -
explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning
& Community Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal
contractor who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out theirheal th and
safety responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety
Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020
7556 2100).

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receivescopi es of  al l
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation.In par ticul ar , you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out betweenthe hour s of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays orBank
Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

Page 143
Page 146



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I19

I21

I23

I24

I34

Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

Street Naming and Numbering

Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

Works affecting the Public Highway - General

Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

11

12

13

14

15

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create apubl ic heal th
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that
the development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over
a public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities
plc, Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 0EE.
Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

All proposed new street names must be notified to and approved by the Council. Building
names and numbers, and proposed changes of street names must also be notified to the
Council. For further information and advice, contact - The Street Namingand Nu mb er ing
Officer, Planning & Community Services, 3 North Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250557).

The development requires the formation of a vehicular crossover, which will be
constructed by the Council.  This work is also subject to the issuing ofa separ at e l icence
to obstruct or open up the public highway.  For further information and advice contact: -
Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

A licence must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out
on any footway, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the public highway.
This includes the erection of temporary scaffolding, hoarding or other apparatus in
connection with the development for which planning permission is hereby granted.  For
further information and advice contact: - Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07,
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development. 

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

· The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with
· BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice.  AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005. 

Page 144
Page 147



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I47

I58

Damage to Verge

Opportunities for Work Experience

16

17

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995.  The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments.  This
duty can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it
is reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance.  For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

· The Disability Discrimination Act 1995.  Available to download fromwww. opsi .gov. uk

· Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements.  Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

· Code of practice.  Rights of access.  Goods, facilities, services and premises.  Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002.  ISBN 0 11702 860 6.  Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

· Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you.  A guide for
service providers, 2003.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation.  For further
information you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles
delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and
at the applicant's expense. For further information and advice contact -Hi ghwa ys
Maintenance Operations, Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128
Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

The developer is requested to maximise the opportunities to provide highqual ity wo r k
experience for young people (particularly the 14 - 19 age group) from the London
Borough of Hillingdon, in such areas as bricklaying, plastering, painting and decorating,
electrical installation, carpentry and landscaping in conjunction with the Hillingdon
Education and Business Partnership. 

Please refer to the enclosed leaflet and contact Peter Sale, Hillingdon Education and
Business Partnership Manager: contact details - c/o British Airways Community Learning
Centre, Accommodation Lane, Harmondsworth, UB7 0PD. Tel: 020 8897 7633. Fax:  020
897 7644. email: p.sale@btconnect.com .

Page 145
Page 148



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

18

19

In respect of Condition 26, the Council considers that one way to ensurecomp l iance wi th
the condition is to enter into an agreement with the Council to make a minimum
contribution of £21,527 to ensure the provision of additional/improved educational
facilities locally, proportionate to the child yield arising from the development, and £392
towards the provision of additional/improved library facilities locally.

1. Special statutory provisions for the control of noise from construction sites are
contained in the Control of Pollution Act 1974.

 Section 60 of the Act enables local authorities to serve a notice imposing requirements
as to the way in which the works are to be carried out.  The notice may in particular:
(a) specify the plant or machinery which is, or is not, to be used;
(b) specify the hours during which the works may be carried out;
(c) specify the level of noise which may be emitted from the premises in question or at
any specified point on those premises in question or which may be so emitted during
specified hours; and
(d) provide for any change of circumstances.

Alternatively, an application for prior consent can be made under Section 61 of the Act.
The application should contain particulars of:
(a) the works, and the method by which they are to be carried out; and
(b) the steps proposed to be taken to minimise noise resulting from the works.

The British Standard 5228 (Part 1) states that the aim at each stage of a project is to
minimise levels of site noise whilst having regard to the practicabilityand economi c
implications of any measures. The standard provides a clear message thatthe me asur es
should be fully considered before the works are carried out. It recommends that
potentially excessive noise and vibration levels should be avoided and that this can be
achieved by giving careful consideration to the design of a proposed project, the
processes and equipment implied by the design and the phasing of operations. It goes
on to add that a project design should be so arranged that the number ofoper at ions
likely to be particularly disturbing is kept to a minimum.

During the execution of the works, the standard advises that all available techniques
should be used to minimise, as far as is necessary, the level of noise to which operators
and others in the neighbourhood of the start operations will be exposed.A numb er  of
measures are given for the protection of neighbouring areas, which are briefly
summarised below:

a) planning the hours of work,

b) where reasonably practicable, ensuring the use of quiet working methods, the use of
the most suitable plant, reasonable hours of working for noisy operations, and economy
of speed of operations,

c) controlling noise and vibration at source and limiting the spread ofnoi se.  The st andar d
goes on to provide further guidance on the control of noise. The controlme asur es ar e:  1)
the substitution of noisy plant and processes by less noisy alternatives, 2) reducing noise
from existing plant and equipment by modification or by the application of improved

Page 146
Page 149



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises an approximately 0.25 hectare, irregularly shaped, long
and comparatively narrow plot.  The site, which is currently vacant, is located at the end of
Pine Place, a Cul-de-sac located off Fredora Avenue and Fairholme Crescent.  The site is
bounded by public open space falling within the Green Belt to the north east; by
allotments to the south east; by land forming the rear garden of a clinic to the south west;
and by residential properties to the north west.  The site falls within the developed area as

sound production methods, 3) enclosure of significant sources of noise,4)  s i ting
equipment away from noise sensitive areas or directed away from sensitive areas,
shutting down of equipment when not used, and the proper use of equipment and
handling of materials, 5) proper maintenance of plant and equipment.

Setting noise limits and monitoring noise levels may also be appropriate.  The Council's
Environmental Protection Unit should be consulted at an early stage in order to discuss
whether noise limits and other measures are likely to be required.

The following  measures illustrate the typical measures required within Hillingdon:
* no activities with the potential to cause disturbance would be permitted at night or
during the evening, unless it can be demonstrated that the said activities are essential
and unavoidable or, alternatively, particular circumstances exist e.g. the site will
predominantly affect commercial interests.  It is the normal policy to permit working
Monday to Friday between 08.00 and 18.00 hours and Saturday between 08.00 and
13.00 hours.  No working will be allowed on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.  The
Environmental Protection Unit should be consulted at an early stage if work is intended
outside those working hours;
* no potentially disturbing vehicle movements would be permitted at sensitive periods
unless it can be demonstrated that such activities are essential and unavoidable.  In
general haulage vehicles should not enter or leave the site between 1800and 0800
hours;
* access to construction vehicles to the site and on local roads should be controlled so as
to protect noise sensitive receiver locations.  Wherever practical, construction vehicle
movements through or close to sensitive  locations should be avoided;
* sites likely to adversely affect dwellings, schools or hospitals and other sensitive
locations will be required to provide a method statement and predicted noise levels.  The
method statement should describe the works, plant, phasing and the stepsto be taken to
minimise levels of noise and vibration.  The British Standard 5228 provides a prediction
method;
* noise limits may be set which reflect standards of best practice;
* best practicable means should be used at all times so as to minimise the emission of
noise;
* adequate measures for the supervision of noise generating activities and monitoring of
noise levels, if necessary, should be adopted.  All steps should be taken at each phase
of the works to minimise disturbance form noise and vibration.  The guidance given in the
British Standard 5228 (Part 1) Code of Practice should be followed;
* adequate arrangements are made for liaison and consultation with officers of the
Council and the public should be put in place; and
adequate arrangements should be made for the investigation of complaints.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 147
Page 150



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

shown on the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Proposals Map.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

It is proposed to erect a community centre and 9 residential units on the site, with
associated car parking and landscaping.  The community centre, comprising a multi-
purpose hall, kitchen, office, meeting rooms and WC facilities, would bel ocat ed i n t he
middle of the plot, directly at the end of the cul-de-sac.  It would have maximum
dimensions of approximately 21m by 11.3m by 8.5m high and would have a floorspace of
345m².  It would be largely two-storey with a small single-storey element located at its
western end.  Stair case enclosures would be located at either end of the building,
subordinate to the main front elevation and also lower in height.  A gable end element
would project forward of the main front elevation and would contain the main entrance.
The applicant has confirmed that the building would have pitched green sustainable roofs.

A row of four terraced 2-bedroom chalet bungalows would be located to the north east of
the proposed community centre.  An integrated lounge/kitchen, bathroom and 1 bedroom
would be provided at ground floor level, and one bedroom would be provided in the roof
space.  Each bungalow would have a pitched roof with a dormer window in the rear and a
small roof light to the front.  Each bungalow would also have its own private garden space
and garden shed to the rear.

To the south west of the community centre a residential block comprisingfour  1- bedr oom
flats and one 2-bedroom flat would be located.  This building would be part two-storey,
part single-storey, with three flats at ground floor level and two at first floor level.  Each flat
would contain an integrated lounge and kitchen, a bathroom and the relevant number of
bedrooms. This block would have pitched roofs of various heights.  Communal amenity
space would be provided either side of the flats. 

In total 23 parking spaces would be provided.  6 of these would be located in front of the
proposed bungalows, and 7 adjacent to the flats.  10 spaces would be allocated to the
community centre and these would be located directly in front of the building.

51065/96/1011

51065/A/97/1503

Former Grange Youth Club And 3 & 4       Pine Place Hayes 

Forming Part Of The Grange Y.C. & 4 Pine Place Hayes 

Erection of a residential development comprising 5 three-bedroom houses,4 two - bedr oom flat s
and 4 one-bedroom flats (involving demolition of the former Grange Youth Club and 3 and 4
Pine Place) (outline application)

Erection of 2 houses and 2 flats on part of the parking area to The Grange (The Grange to be
retained)

29-08-1996

08-08-2001

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

NFA

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 148
Page 151



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

PT1.10

PT1.30

PT1.31

PT1.39

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenityand
the character of the area.

To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in
particular women, elderly people, people with disabilities and ethnic minorities.

To encourage the development and support the retention of a wide range of local
services, including shops and community facilities, which are easily accessible to
all, including people with disabilities or other mobility handicaps.

To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

OL5

BE13

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

BE38

OE1

R5

R10

R16

R17

AM2

AM7

Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Proposals that involve the loss of sports, leisure, community, religious, cultural or
entertainment facilities

Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social, community
and health services

Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Part 2 Policies:

Page 149
Page 152



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

AM14

AM15

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Not applicable22nd April 2009

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

HIGHWAY ENGINEER
To be reported at committee.  It should be noted that the submitted plans conform to pre-
application advice given by the highway engineer.

TREES/LANDSCAPING OFFICER

- The site
The site is a vacant plot, running north-south, situated at the east endof  Pi ne Pl ace.   Ac cess from
the cul de sac / end of Pine Place and the houses and gardens of house numbers 4 and 9, either
side of Pine Place, line the west boundary. Public open space and allotments lie to the north and
east of the site, and there is the rear garden of a clinic to the south of the site.

The submission includes a Topographical & Tree Survey (ref. 20080017/A/02) which confirms that
the site is generally flat averaging approximately 50.0 metres above Ordnance Datum.  This plan
also shows that there are no trees on the site.  There is a group of mature (4.0 metre high)
Hawthorn, off-site, along the northern boundary and an Oak tree and a line of conifers 6.0 metres
high, also off-site, along the southern boundary.  None of these trees are protected by Tree
Preservation Order or Conservation Area designation and they do not constitute a constraint on
development of the site.

- The proposal
The proposal is to build a Community Centre with car parking in the centre of the site, opposite the
site entrance.  At the north end of the site a terrace of 4 houses is proposed together with parking
and gardens.  To the south of the Community Centre, 5 flats with parkingand commu nal  ame ni ty
space are proposed.

The Design & Access Statement refers to the landscape objectives (Section 3.5) for the site, which
will include hard and soft landscaping.  It notes the need to screen thebi n st or es.   At  3. 5. 5 t he
statement assesses the size and condition of the offsite trees, which influence the site.  At 3.5.3 the

External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 98 local owner/occupiers and the Grange Residents' Association.
The application was also advertised by means of site notice.  To date nolet ter s of  obj ect ion have
been received.

CRIME PREVENTION DESIGN ADVISOR
Verbally confirmed no objections subject to the standard condition requiring that security measures
are implemented sufficient to achieve the 'Secured by Design' accreditation award.

Page 150
Page 153



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

report proposes that landscape conditions be dealt with by condition.   The Ener gy St at eme nt
indicates, at 3.7.4, that the scheme may include a Living Roof.   If this is for habitat creation and
energy conservation, as opposed to being accessible amenity space for use by people, it will be
classified as an 'extensive' roof.  - A commitment to a green roof will be required at the initial design
stage in order to allow for loading requirements, waterproofing and other specific construction
details/cost implications associated with green roof construction.

Drawing No. 20080017/A/03 provides a layout drawing and indicative areasof  har d and sof t
landscaping. The bin stores next to the flats could be more sympathetically sited.  They appear to
be in front of a wall, which is likely to have a window.  The narrow strip of grass between the wall
and the store will be impossible to maintain - and there is little scopefor  ' scr eeni ng'  the st or e.   The
other stores also require re-siting or screening (soft landscape/hedging) to the sides.

Opportunities for tree planting should be taken, where space permits, possibly within the paving
near the bin stores of the houses and the Community Centre.  The frontage to all of the buildings is
very 'hard'.  This could be marginally reduced by re-aligning the parking bays for the flats.  Spaces
6 and 7 (for the flats) would be better aligned at right angles / opposite spaces 1 and 2.  If there is
any opportunity to lose any of the 10No. car spaces outside the Community Centre further
opportunities would be created for landscape enhancement.

The rear garden of the Community Centre is extremely limited in size andi ndi cat ed t o be a
soft/grassed area.  If there is any likelihood that a (modest) usable outdoor area may be required, it
would be more practical to provide some paving in this area.

- Recommendation
No objections are raised in principle subject to the above observations (which could be amended
through conditions) and conditions TL5, TL6 and TL7 and details of the 'green roof'.

ACCESS OFFICER
It is noted from the Design & Access Statement that only one Lifetime Home Unit is proposed. This
would be contrary to London Plan Policy 3A.5 (Housing Choice) and the Council's Supplementary
Planning Documents "Accessible Hillingdon", adopted July 2006.  All units should demonstrate
compliance with Lifetime Home standards.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT
No former uses of concern were identified at the site or in the immediate vicinity of the site. The
ground conditions at the site are unknown, but there is a possibility ofma de gr ound bel ow t he
areas of hard standing containing material which may be contaminated. Iti s st rongl y advi sed that
the developer undertake contamination testing as part of any geotechnical investigation, and
submit the information to the LPA.

The proposed use may be considered sensitive as it includes residential housing with gardens.
Therefore as a minimum a condition to ensure that the soils in the areasof  sof t l andscapi ng ar e
tested to ensure that they are suitable for use, should be added to any permission granted.

S106 OFFICER
In line with the SPD a contribution or S278 agreement may be sought to address the transport
matters arising from this proposal.

In line with the SPD a contribution towards education places and/or facilities is likely to be sought.

Page 151
Page 154



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The site is located within the Developed Area as shown on the Unitary Development Plan
Proposals Map.  Furthermore, the site does not fall in a conservation area or Area of
Special Local Character.  As such, there is no objection in principle tot he pr ovi si on of
residential units on the site.  Policy R5 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007 resists
the loss of community facilities unless adequate alterative facilities are available.  Policy
R10 supports the development of new community facilities.  The site is currently vacant,
however, it used to house a youth club.  It is proposed to provide a replacement
community facility comprising a 344m² community centre.  As such, thepr oposal  i s
considered to be in accordance with these policies, subject to meeting other relevant
planning criteria.

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 2. The London Plan 2008
range for sites with a PTAL of 2-3 in a suburban area is 150-250 habitable rooms per
hectare (hrph) and 50-95 units per hectare. As such, based on a total site area of 2,500m²
the site would have a density of 36 units per hectare and 92 hrph.  Whilst this falls below
London Plan standards, given that part of the site would be used to provide a community
centre, this is considered to be totally acceptable.

N/A. The site does not fall within an Archaeological Priority Area and is not located within
or near a Conservation Area or Listed Building.

N/A.  There was no requirement to consult the airport safeguarding authorities on this
application.

Policy OL5 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007 seeks to protect theGr een Bel t
from nearby developments which may prejudice its visual amenity.  The public open space
to the north east is designated as Green Belt land, however, the proposed development
would be well screened from here by existing approximately 4m high mature vegetation
which provides a boundary between the application site and adjoining land.  The rear
gardens of the proposed bungalows would back onto this part of the GreenBel t, as do the
rear gardens and outbuildings of properties all along this part of Pine Close.  Given the
significant amount of screening provided by vegetation around the edge of the open
space, and single-storey height of the proposed bungalows, it is not considered that the
proposed development would have any detrimental impact upon the open character or
appearance of the adjacent Green Belt.

With the exception of the Green Belt land and allotments to the north east, and south east
of the site, the surrounding area is largely characterised by residential development,

In line with the SPD a contribution towards library facilities is likelyto be sought .

EDUCATION
A contribution of £21,527 is sought towards school places in the borough.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 152
Page 155



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

mainly comprising two-storey terraced properties.  The application site previously housed
a youth centre and associated parking, however, this has been demolishedand the si te
has been vacant for some time and is currently secured by hoardings around its western
boundary, fronting Pine Place.  Existing fencing provides the northern and southern
boundaries, and a brick wall provides the northern boundary.  There are limited views of
the site from the north, east and west, due to vegetation and, as such, the development
will have the most significant impact when viewed from Pine Place.

The proposed community centre would comprise a roughly rectangular two-storey
building. It would have a pitched roof, which combined with the fenestration, much smaller
subordinate wings and gable end, reflects elements of the residential nature of the area.
Car parking for 10 cars would be provided directly in front of the centre and soft
landscaping would be provided around its other boundaries.

A row of four terraced chalet style bungalows would be located towards the north east
side of the site, each with a private garden to the rear.  Each bungalowwo ul d me asur e
approximately 10.4m by 4.8m by 6.4m high.  Dormer windows would be provided in the
rear and rooflights in the front elevation.  Parking for six cars would be provided in front of
the bungalows.

To the south east of the site a part two-storey part single-storey residential block
comprising five flats would be provided.  The two-storey element would be roughly square
in shape, measuring approximately 10.5m by 13.2m by 9.5m high.  This would step down
to a single-storey element at the southerly end of the plot, which wouldme asur e
approximately 8m by 9m by 6.3m high.  Amenity space would be provided around the
block and 7 car parking spaces provided at the south of the site.

When viewed from Pine Close the community centre building would be clearly visible, with
the proposed residential blocks largely obscured by existing residentialpr oper ties al ong
the road.  However, it would be set back in the site, and the development is of a size and
scale that would not appear as incongruous and over dominant in this location, or out of
keeping with the character and appearance of the surrounding area.

The residential block to the south of the site and bungalows to the north would be largely
obscured from view by existing residential properties, when viewed from Pine Place.
However, the step down in height from the two-storey community centre tot he si ngl e-
storey bungalows is considered to be appropriate, especially given the more sensitive
Green Belt boundary to the north.  The flatted block to the south of thepr oposed
community centre also steps down in height to single storey.  This helpsto ensur e that  the
block does not appear as over dominant or out of keeping with the character and
appearance of the area.

Whilst views of the proposed buildings would be available from the allotments to the east,
it is not considered that they would have any significant detrimental impact on the visual
amenity of users of these allotments, particularly given that a larger youth centre building
used to exist on the plot, and that the residential units are of a relatively low height and
scale.

Overall, it is considered that the size, scale and layout of the proposed development is
visually acceptable and that it would not be out of keeping with the character or
appearance of the surrounding area.  The development is consistent with Policies BE13
and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

Page 153
Page 156



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

The nearest residential properties to the application site are 4 and 6 Pine Place, both of
which front the road and, as such, do not directly overlook, and would not be directly
overlooked by the proposed new development.  The nearest proposed building to no.4 is
the community centre, which is approximately 14m away.  The nearest bungalow would
be approximately 18.5m away.  No direct overlooking would occur as a result of the
development, particularly as there are no habitable room windows in the side elevation of
no.4.  The proposed block of flats would only be approximately 4.5m fromthe near est  par t
of no.6 Pine Place.  However again, there are no habitable room windows in the side
elevation of this property, and an attached garage is located on the boundary.  The
proposed development would not encroach on the 45 degree angle from the centre of
front or rear facing windows of existing properties in Pine Place and iti s not  consi der ed
that it would have any significant detrimental impact on residential amenity in terms of
overlooking, loss of light or loss of privacy.

Whilst access to 7 parking spaces, provided for the proposed flats, would be located
immediately adjacent to the site boundary of no.6 Pine Place, an existing attached garage
would provide a significant barrier between this access and the house itself.  Access to 6
car parking spaces for the proposed bungalows would also be located close to the
boundary with no.4.  However, it is not considered that the traffic movements generated
from this relatively small number of parking spaces would create significant disturbance to
occupiers of 4 and 6 Pine Close sufficient to justify refusal.  Notably no objections have
been received from occupiers of these properties.  It should also be noted that the former
youth club on the site allowed significantly more parking towards both the north east and
south west of the site, the access to which was also very close to the boundaries of these
properties.

The Council's Supplementary Planning Document on Residential Layouts states that 50m²
internal floor space should be provided for one-bedroom flats and 63m²i nt er nal  f loor
space should be provided for two bedroom flats and bungalows. Whilst thei nt er nal  f loor
plans are indicative only at this stage, the present layout shows that each unit would meet
the minimum requirements.  The applicant also confirms this within the Design and
Access Statement.  All windows would receive adequate daylight and the amenities of
future occupiers would not be prejudiced by the position of adjoining buildings. As such, it
is considered that the proposed units would adequately serve the needs of future
occupiers in terms of internal space.

It is noted that the location of the bin stores for the block of flats may block light to a
ground floor window in the proposed 2-bedroom flat.  However, details ofbi n st or es wo ul d
be required by way of condition and there is considered to be sufficientspace on si te to
relocate this bin store if necessary.

The plans show a total of 600m² private amenity space.  210m² would be provided to the
rear of the proposed bungalows to form private gardens for each property.  In addition
70m² of communal amenity space would be provided in front of the bungalows, adjacent
to the site's eastern boundary.  This equates to an average of 70m² per bungalow which is
in excess of the Council's standards which require a minimum of 60m² each for 2
bedroom houses.  165m² communal amenity space would be provided for the proposed
flats towards the south of the site.  This exceeds the Council's standards which require
20m² for one-bedroom flats and 25m² for two-bedroom flats.

Page 154
Page 157



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10

7.11

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

In addition to the amenity space provided for the proposed residential units, it is also
proposed to provide 155m² of communal amenity space around the community centre.

Overall, the development is provided with an appropriate level of usableame ni ty space to
meet the needs of future occupiers, consistent with Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

7 car parking spaces, including one disability standard space, would be provided for the
proposed block of flats, and 6 car parking spaces, including one disability standard space,
would be provided for the proposed bungalows.  Whilst this is below the Council's
maximum Car Parking Standards, which require provision of 1.5 spaces perdwe l ling for
flats and houses without individual curtilages, and 2 spaces per dwelling for houses with
individual curtilages, it exceeds London Plan standards of one space or less for 1-2
bedroom units.  These spaces would be specifically for the use of occupiers of the
residential units, and gates would be provided to ensure they are not abused by other
users of the site.

10 parking spaces, including two disability standard spaces would be provided for the
community centre.  The local area is served by buses, which provide regular services to
Uxbridge, Northolt and Hayes.  Given the site's moderate accessibility to public transport,
and that the community centre would attract many people from the local area, mostly of
which would live within walking distance of the site, the proposed parking provision is
considered to be acceptable.

The plans indicate that cycle parking would be provided for the community centre,
although no detail is provided.  The Council's standards require provision of 1 space per
20m² of floorspace.  As such 17 spaces should be provided.  Spaces should also be
provided for the residential units at a ratio of one space per dwelling.Whi l st no det ail s of
this have been provided at this stage, it is considered that this could be easily
accommodated within the site and, as such, should approval be granted, this could be
required by way of condition.

URBAN DESIGN
Issues relating to urban design have been largely discussed above.  The size, scale and
siting of the proposed buildings is considered to be appropriate in thisl ocat ion,  and
elements of the design, such as the use of pitched roofs and gable ends to the community
centre and block of flats, are sympathetic to the more residential nature of the area.
Further details relating to appearance are reserved for future consideration and will be
required by way of condition should approval be granted.

ACCESS
Pedestrian and vehicular access to the site would be via Pine Place, andis si mi lar  to that
which was in existence for the former youth centre which was located on the site.  A
pedestrian access link would be reinstated to allow access to the adjacent allotments.
However, as the main access is from Burns Close to the east it is not anticipated that this
would be heavily used.

SECURITY
It is understood that the applicant has met with the Council's Crime Prevention Design
Officer at pre-application stage and a number of points surrounding security were

Page 155
Page 158



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

discussed.  It is considered that this could be affectively addressed bywa y of  condi tion,
requiring the applicant to submit further details in this respect.

The applicant has confirmed that 10% of the proposed units would be built to Lifetime
Homes' standards and that the development as a whole would fully comply with Part M of
the Building Regulations.  The Council's Access Officer has raised concerns over the lack
of information provided regarding this.  However, the applicant confirmsthat  fur ther  det ai ls
will be provided at the detailed design stage, and these can be requiredby wa y of
condition should approval be granted.

There are no requirements for a scheme of this size to contribute towards the borough's
affordable or special housing needs.

The developer has stated that in addition to the garden/amenity areas provided,
landscaping would also be provided across the site, including around thesi te per ime t er ,
through a combination of grassed areas, footpaths, trees and shrubs.

The Council's Trees and Landscape Officer has raised no objections in principle to the
proposed scheme, subject to further details being submitted.  It is considered that the
location of the bin stores, and potentially a couple of the parking spaces for the flats, could
be relocated/realigned to maximise the opportunity for landscaping on the site.  It is also
considered that there are a couple of areas where further landscaping could be provided,
albeit minimal due to space constraints, which would further enhance thefront age of  the
site as seen from Pine Place.  Further details relating to the provisionof  a sust ai nabl e
green roof for the community centre would also need to be provided.

Full details would be required by way of reserved matters and conditionsshoul d pl anni ng
permission be granted. 

The plans indicate that bin stores would be provided for the residentialuni ts.   As
discussed above in the report there is scope for slightly amending the location of some of
the bin stores to enhance residential amenity and opportunities for landscaping.  Further
details can be requested by way of condition should approval be granted.

The applicant has submitted an Energy Report with the application which looks at ways of
reducing the site's energy demands, with specific reference to the proposed community
centre.  In addition to looking at ways of reducing energy demand through using energy
efficient lighting, water conservation systems and green roofs, the report also investigates
the use of various renewable energies to meet part of the centre's energy requirements.
The report concludes that given the site constraints, and viability of various technologies,
that the use of photovoltaics would be most suitable, and could provide a 15% reduction in
the site's carbon emissions.  It would be possible to provide this in combination with the
green roof, which would itself improve the thermal performance of the building both during
summer and winter months.  Given the relatively small nature of the site, and constraints
associated with the use of other renewable technologies this is considered to be
acceptable.  Should approval be granted, appropriate conditions can be added to ensure

Page 156
Page 159



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Flooding or Drainage Isssues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

a sustainable design approach is adopted and maximum use of renewable energies
achieved.

N/A.  The site does not fall within a flood zone.  However, building regulations on this
matter will need to be complied with.

AIR QUALITY
Given the relatively small nature of the scheme, and the previous use and associated
parking on the site, the development does not raise any issues in respect of air quality.

NOISE
Events held at the community centre may potentially generate loud noise.As such,
should approval be granted, conditions should be attached to ensure the building is
appropriately sound insulated and noise is not an issue.

N/A - No responses have been received.

Policy R17 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007st at es that
the Local Planning Authority will, where appropriate, seek to supplementthe pr ovi si on of
recreation open space, facilities to support arts, culture and entertainment activities and
other community, social and education facilities through planning obligations in
conjunction with other development proposals.

The Director of Education has advised that a contribution of £21,527 towards educational
facilities in this part of the borough is required.  The Council's S106 Officer has also
advised that in accordance with the Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning
Document a contribution of £392 towards library facilities in this part of the borough is
required.  The applicant has indicated that they would be willing to make this contribution,
which can be secured by an appropriate planning condition.

N/A.

CONTAMINATION
Officer's in the Council's Environmental Protection Unit have advised that there may be
contaminated soil present on the site.  Accordingly, should approval be granted, a
condition would be added requiring the applicant to test any soils used on the site to
ensure they are suitable for use.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

Page 157
Page 160



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need tobe awa r e
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and thepr ivat e i nt er est
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendationshave no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council.  The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed
by the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being
made at a later stage.  Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

In conclusion, the principle of providing residential units and a new community centre on
the site is considered to be acceptable and is supported by planning policy.  It is not
considered that the proposed development would be out of keeping with the character or
appearance of the surrounding area and the impact on the amenity of adjoining properties
is considered to be acceptable.  Car parking provision complies with theCo unci l's Ca r
Parking standards and there are not considered to be any significant adverse impact
associated with the development.  Notably no objections have been received from local
residents.  As such, it is considered that the proposed development complies with the
relevant UDP and London Plan policies and approval is recommended subject to
conditions.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007
London Plan 2008
Planning Policy Statement 1 (Delivering Sustainable Development)

Page 158
Page 161



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Planning Policy Statement 3 (Housing)
Planning Policy Guidance 13 (Transport)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement "Accessible Hillingdon"
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement "Residential Layouts"
Council's Car Parking Standards (UDP Saved Policies, September 2007)
Council's supplementary Planning Guidance - Planning Obligations
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design

Johanna Harfoot 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 159
Page 162



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

E

E

UU

U

U

U

U

U

UU

U

31
.1
m

PINE PLACE

FA
IR
H
O
LM
E
C
R
E
S
C
E
N
T

FF

20a

Merrifield

House

31.7m

19

22

NUE

5

W
ar
d
B
d
y

42

FF

Allotment Gardens

House

170

32

2

12

3
4

56

FF

Infant and Junior School

1

2a

20

21

FF

FW

Ward Bdy

17

Grange Park

14

1

16

2

School

24

Clinic

13

23

33

9

Children's Home

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

The Grange
Pine Place
Hayes

51065/APP/2009/546

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 160

Page 163



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



Central & South Planning Committee – 12 May 2009 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

Item No. 9 Report of the Corporate Director of Planning and 
Community Services  

Address:  6 HILLMAN CLOSE, UXBRIDGE 

Development: INSTALLATION OF A FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION, FRONT 
AND REAR GABLES, FRONT PORCH  AND THE ERECTION 
OF A PITCHED ROOF OVER THE EXISTING DETACHED 
GARAGE 

LBH Ref Nos:  22424/APP/2008/2100 

Drawing Nos: 0005 Sheet 05 of 12, 0007 Sheet 07 of 12 and 0012 Sheet 12 of 
12, received 09/07/08 
Design & Access Statement, 0101 Sheet 01 of 08,  0110 Sheet 
07 of 08 & 0111 Sheet 08 of 08 received 21/10/08 as amended 
by 0302 Sheet 01 of 6, 0306 Sheet 02 of 6, 0308 Sheet 03 of 6, 
0309 Sheet 04 of 6, 0320 Sheet 05 of 6 and 0304 Sheet 06 of 6 
received 09/03/2009  

Date of receipt: 09/07/08 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 21/10/08,  
12/11/08 and 
09/03/09 

Variation Report 

Members will recall that this application was presented to the Central and South 
Planning Committee meeting on the 25th November 2008, where it was deferred in 
order to enable further information to be provided on overlooking, site levels and an 
amended plan being submitted showing the removal of rooflights/dormers.  The 
original report is attached as Appendix A. 

Amended plans have been received which omits all the rooflights from the proposed 
new roof and no permanent access is shown to the loft space.  A condition removing 
permitted development rights for the insertion of additional windows is recommended 
to allow the Local Planning Authority to maintain control over any additional 
windows, including in the loft space.  As such, there would be no potential for 
overlooking from the loft space. 

A first floor en-suite bathroom has been omitted, with the space incorporate into the 
adjoining bedrooms and the side en-suite window facing No. 7 Hillman Close has 
been replaced with two side secondary bedroom windows.  These have been 
conditioned to be obscure glazed and non-opening. 
   
The plans also show site levels and depict a fall of the land across the site to the 
south west and south east.  The ground level reduces by approximately 1m from the 
north east corner at the front of the site to the rear and south side boundaries, with 
much of this change in ground levels occurring in the rear and side garden.  The land 

Page 161

Agenda Item 14

Page 165



Central & South Planning Committee – 12 May 2009 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

continues to fall to the south east so that the rear elevation of No. 178a Harefield 
Road is approximately 1m below the level of the rear boundary. 

The rear elevation of No. 178a is sited approximately 19m from the rear elevation of 
the application property.  Whilst this distance satisfies the minimum 15m distance 
recommended by design guidance, the difference in levels does add to the overall 
bulk of the proposed development and it would not satisfy the 21m distance to 
ensure adequate privacy to the property and a 3m deep patio area.  However, as 
stated in the original report to committee, there is existing mature planting along the 
rear boundary to the site which does provide an effective screen.  Given the short 
depth of the rear garden of No. 178a, the change in ground levels serves to make 
this screen more effective.  The Tree Officer has visited the site and confirms that 
the mix of shrubs and trees forming the boundary planting would provide screening 
all year round.  This planting has been conditioned to be maintained at a height of 
3.5 to 4m, with any gaps to be filled.   No. 176a would also be overlooked within a 
45º line of sight from first floor windows, but this would be on the edge of the 45º line 
of sight so that the potential for overlooking would not be direct and the boundary 
planting would again provide an effective screen to mitigate any impact.    

In terms of the impact of potential overlooking upon No. 23 Water Tower Close, 3 
secondary first floor bedroom windows are proposed in the side elevation facing this 
property, the rear elevation of which is approximately 19m from the side elevation of 
the application property.  The side window to the front bedroom would replace an 
existing clear glazed side bedroom window in this position, albeit it would now be 
smaller in size so that there would be no additional overlooking as compared to the 
existing situation.   The two other first floor side secondary bedroom windows 
represent new windows in new positions and these have been conditioned to be 
obscure glazed.  A first floor side en-suite window facing No. 7 Hilman Close has 
been replaced with two secondary bedroom windows.  These have been conditioned 
to be obscure glazed. 

The proposal is considered to accord with policy BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon 
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007). 

The plans also show 3 indicative parking spaces on the existing gravelled area at the 
front of the site. 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL, subject to the following conditions:  

1) (T8)  Time Limit (Full) 1) (T8) Standard 
2) (M2) External surfaces to match 

existing building 
2) (M2) Standard 

3) (OM1) Development in accordance 
with Approval Plans  

3) (OM1) Standard 
(REASON:  “… policies 
BE13 and BE15”) 

4) (RPD1) No additional windows or 
doors – 'all elevations' 

4) (RPD1) Standard 

5) (RPD2) Obscured Glazing and Non-
Opening Windows ‘first floor 
secondary bedroom windows 

5) (RPD2) Standard 

Page 162
Page 166



Central & South Planning Committee – 12 May 2009 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

facing No. 7 Hillman Close, the 2 
rearmost secondary side bedroom 
windows facing No. 23 Water Tower 
Close and the rear en-suite 
bathroom windows facing No. 178a 
Harefield Road’ 

6) (TL2) Trees to be retained 6) (TL2) Standard 

7) (TL3) Protection of trees and plants 
during site clearance and 
development 

7) (TL3) Standard 

8) (TL3) Protection of trees and plants 
during site clearance and 
development 

8) (TL3) Standard 

9) (TL5) Landscaping scheme 9) (TL5) Standard 
10) (TL6) Landscaping scheme - 

implementation 
10) (TL6) Standard 

11) (TL7) Maintenance of Landscaped 
Areas 

11) (TL7) Standard 

12) The existing screen planting and 
hedging on the boundary with 176A 
and 178A Harefield Road shall be 
allowed to grow / maintained at a 
height of 3.5 to 4m.  Any gaps 
which may occur shall be filled with 
replacement planting of a similar 
size and species within the next 
planting season or such other 
period as may be agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

12) (M7) Standard 

INFORMATIVES 

1) The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having 
regard to all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, 
circulars and Council policies, including The Human Rights Act 1998 
(HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act 
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a 
fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); 
Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 
(prohibition of discrimination). 

2) The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having 
regard to the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary 
Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and London Plan 
2004 set out below, and to all relevant material considerations, 
including Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
BE13 – new development to harmonise with the existing street 
scene. 
BE15 – extensions to harmonise with the scale, form, architectural 

Page 163
Page 167



Central & South Planning Committee – 12 May 2009 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

composition and proportions of the original building. 
BE19 – new development to complement and improve the amenity 
and character of the area. 
BE20 – ensure adequate daylight and sunlight can penetrate into and 
between buildings and the amenities of existing houses are 
safeguarded. 
BE21 –  siting, bulk and proximity of extensions not to result in a 
significant loss of residential amenity. 
BE22 - Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys 
BE23 – sufficient external amenity space 
BE24 – design to protect privacy of occupiers and neighbours 
BE38  - Retention of topographical and landscape features, and 
provision of new planting and landscaping in developments 
proposals 
AM14 – Car parking standards 
London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction 

Hillingdon Design  & Accessibility Statement (HDAS): Residential 
Extensions (adopted in August 2006 and to form part of the 
emerging Local Development Framework documents): 
5.0 – Side and First Floor Side Extension: Two Storey 
6.0 – Rear and First Floor Rear Extensions: Two Storey 
7.0 – Loft Conversions and Roof Alterations 
8.0 – Front Extensions, Porches and Bay Windows 

3) (1) – Building to Approved Drawing 
4) (2) – Encroachment  
5) (3) – Building Regulations 
6) (5) – Party Walls 
7) (6) – Property Rights/Rights of Light 
8) (15) Environmental considerations with construction/demolition 

work 
9) (43) - Dirt on highway 

10) (46) – Sustainable resources 
11) (47) – Damage to verge 

  

     

    

Page 164
Page 168



Central & South Planning Committee – 12 May 2009 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

APPENDIX A 

B 
Item No.  Report of the Corporate Director of Planning and 

Community Services  

Address:  6 HILLMAN CLOSE, UXBRIDGE 

Development: INSTALLATION OF A FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION, FRONT 
AND REAR GABLES, FRONT PORCH, CONVERSION OF 
NEW LOFT SPACE TO HABITABLE ACCOMMODATION 
INVOLVING THE INSTALLATION OF ROOFLIGHTS AND THE 
ERECTION OF A PITCHED ROOF OVER THE EXISTING 
DETACHED GARAGE 

LBH Ref Nos:  22424/APP/2008/2100 

Drawing Nos: 0005 Sheet 05 of 12, 0007 Sheet 07 of 12 and 0012 Sheet 12 of 
12, received 09/07/08 
Design & Access Statement, 0101 Sheet 01 of 08, 0102 Sheet 
02 of 08, 0104 Sheet 03 of 08, 0106 Sheet 04 of 08, 0108 Sheet 
05 of 08, 0109 Sheet 06 of 08, 0110 Sheet 07 of 08 & 0111 
Sheet 08 of 08 received 21/10/08  
0202 Sheet 01 of 1 received 12/11/08 

Date of receipt: 09/07/08 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 21/10/08 and 
12/11/08 

CONSULTATIONS 

8 adjoining owner/occupiers have been consulted. 6 letters of objection (2 from the 
same neighbour) have been received making the following comments: 

(i) Overlooking and loss of privacy to properties in Hillman Close, 176a and 
178a Harefield Road and 23 Water Tower Close 

(ii) Loss of sunlight to 5 Hillman Close 
(iii) Overdominant in relation to other properties in the street 
(iv) Neighbouring properties have not been consulted 
(v) Conditions attached to the planning permission for the original house 

prevented windows facing 176a and 178a Harefield Road 

External Consultees 

North Uxbridge 
Residents’ Association 

No comments received 

Ickenham Residents’ 
Association 

No comments received 

Page 165
Page 169



Central & South Planning Committee – 12 May 2009 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

Internal Consultees  

Trees/Landscape The vegetation on the site comprises relatively small 
trees and mature hedges, which are not covered by 
TPO 96, in the rear/side garden. The trees and hedges 
should be retained as part of the development of the 
site. 

The application includes a tree survey plan. The 
scheme makes provision for the retention of all of the 
trees and hedges (subject to adequate protection 
during the construction period) and reserves space for 
supplementary landscaping. 

Subject to conditions TL2, TL3, TL5, TL6 and TL7, the 
proposed development is acceptable in terms of saved 
policy BE38 of the UDP. 

Further Comments following a site visit 

The vegetation along the rear boundary (on and off 
site) is a mixture of deciduous, evergreen and semi-
evergreen trees, shrubs and climbers, which form a 
continuous low-mid level screen between the 
properties on either side of the site boundary. There is 
also a row of conifers along the side boundary. 

The vegetation does not comprise a high hedge as 
defined under the Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003, but 
the row of conifers along the side boundary does. 

The species mix and form of the trees and shrubs is
such that it will be possible to maintain a 3.5 - 4m high 
semi-evergreen screen along the rear boundary of the 
site in the future. If necessary the retention of the 
screen and its management, as part of the 
development, could be secured by the imposition of 
condition TL8 (modified). 

Urban 
Design/Conservation  

This is modern dormer bungalow located directly to the 
north of the North Uxbridge Area of Special Local 
Character.  Adjacent to the property are modern two
storey houses with gables directly fronting the street. 

Whilst it may be possible in design terms to extend the 
bungalow upwards, as proposed, the property would 
present a wide and rather bland frontage to the street. 
Photos of some of the surrounding properties within the 
area have been provided by the applicant. These show 

Page 166
Page 170



Central & South Planning Committee – 12 May 2009 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

houses that have a degree of architectural “modelling” 
to their principal elevation. Particular features are 
forward projecting gables, catslide type roofs and 
dormers of different size/design - these features help 
break up the bulk of the elevations and provide visual 
interest within the street scene.  
                                                                                                      
The elevational design needs revision in order to break 
up the bulk and width of the frontage, so that it reflects 
the appearance of the surrounding buildings within the 
area.  

Update: the application has been amended to accord 
with the above comments. 

Councillor Cooper 
(Ward Councillor) 

Requests that this application is determined by the
Planning Committee 

KEY PLANNING ISSUES 

1. The application site is located on the west side of Hillman Close at the bottom 
of the cul de sac and comprises a modern dormer bungalow and a detached 
garage along the shared side boundary with No. 5 Hillman Close. The 
property was subject to fire damage in June 2006 and has since been 
deemed uninhabitable. To the north lies No. 7 Hillman Close, a detached two 
storey house, to the west and south west lie Nos. 176a and 178a Harefield 
Road, a detached house and bungalow respectively and to the south east lies 
No. 23 Water Tower Close, also a detached house. The land slopes to the 
west so that the properties to the south west are approximately 0.5m to 1.0m 
lower than the application property.  The street scene is residential in 
character and appearance, mainly comprising two storey detached houses.  
The application site lies within the ‘developed area’ as identified in the 
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 
2007), with the North Uxbridge Area of Special Local Character immediately 
adjoining the site to the south. The application site is also covered by TPO 96. 

2. It is proposed to retain the building footprint and construct a first floor addition 
with centrally positioned front and rear gable ends, and finished with a hipped 
roof, increasing the height of the property from 6.4m high at ridge level to 
5.4m high at eaves level and 8.4m high at ridge level.  It is intended to retain 
the roof as loft space, with no permanent staircase access. 

3. The centrally positioned front gable would measure 6.2m wide, with the rear 
gable 5.8m wide, 0.8m deep and finished with a ridged roof set 0.65m below 
the new roof ridge. The front porch would be centrally positioned on the new 
front gable measuring 1.8m wide, 0.4m deep, and finished with a hipped roof 
0.45m deep and 3.15m high. 10 rooflights are proposed in the new roof, two 
each in the side roof slopes of the front and rear gables, two each in the front 
and rear and one each on the side roof slopes of the house.  

Page 167
Page 171



Central & South Planning Committee – 12 May 2009 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

4. The existing flat roof above the detached garage would be replaced with a 
gable end pitched roof measuring 2.6m high at eaves level and 3.6m high at 
its ridge. 

5. The proposed first floor addition would represent a significant increase in the 
bulk and scale of the original property.  However, this is not considered to be 
to its detriment. The proposed additional storey by reason of its size, siting 
and design would still maintain the detached character of the surrounding 
area. The proposed front porch and new first floor windows would relate 
satisfactorily with the proportions of the enlarged house and the front and rear 
gables would break up the bulk and width of the frontages, reflecting the 
character and appearance of surrounding properties.

6. The proposed increase in the overall height of the application property would 
match the height of other properties in the street, notably at Nos. 7 and 8 
Hillman Close. The rooflights are satisfactory, and overall, the proposal is not 
considered to detract from the character and appearance of the street scene 
and surrounding area generally, in accordance with Policies BE13, BE15 and 
BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, 
September 2007) and Section 7.0 of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility 
Statement: Residential Extensions. 

7. The new hipped roof over the existing flat roof detached garage represents an 
improvement upon the existing flat roofed structure and would not detract 
from the character and appearance of the street scene, in accordance with 
Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary 
Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007). 

8. Although the two storey proposal would only be set back from the side 
boundary adjoining No. 7 Hillman Close by approximately 150mm, the 
proposed first floor would not result in any closure of the existing gap between 
this and the adjoining property, given the bungalow’s existing gable end roof.  
As such, it is considered that a reason for refusal could not be justified on this 
ground and the proposal accords with Policy BE22 of the adopted Hillingdon 
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and Section 5.0 
of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement: ‘Residential Extensions’.   

9. The proposal would only project approximately 1m beyond the rear elevation 
of No. 7 Hillman Close which is set back from the side boundary by some 
2.5m so that a 45° line of sight taken from its rea r facing windows would not 
be breached.  No. 7 Hillman Close does have first floor side windows facing 
the application property, but only the forwardmost of these windows serves a 
habitable room, the outlook from which would only partially be obstructed by 
the new first floor.  A large side dormer has also been installed at No. 7 that 
contains second floor side windows, but given their relative height as 
compared to the proposal, they would not be adversely affected by undue 
dominance and/or loss of sunlight.  Furthermore, it is only the rearmost of 
these windows which serves a habitable room (a bedroom), the view from 
which would only partially be obstructed by the proposal.  As such, the 
proposal would not result in a visually intrusive and overdominant form of 

Page 168
Page 172



Central & South Planning Committee – 12 May 2009 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

development when viewed from the adjoining property, in accordance with 
Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Adopted Unitary Development Plan (Saved 
Policies, September 2007). 

10. As 176a Harefield Road lies to the south west and 5 Hillman Close lies to the 
south east, no overshadowing would result to these properties. 

11. The proposed front windows would overlook the street.  The only property 
sited within a 21m distance would be 5 Hillman Close, but only the garage 
doors and a non-habitable room window would be within the 45° line of sight, 
at a distance of approximately 20m.  The proposed first floor bathroom 
window facing 7 Hillman Close, the secondary bedroom room windows facing 
23 Water Tower Close and the first floor rear en-suite bathroom windows 
facing 178a Harefield Road and the side and rear facing rooflights can be 
fitted with obscure glass and made to be non-opening to prevent overlooking. 

12. The application property is on higher ground and is sited some 19m from the 
rear wall of 178a Harefield Road.  This distance is sufficient to ensure that the 
proposed development would not represent a visually intrusive and 
overdominant form of development or a significant increase in overshadowing.  
Although the proposal would not meet the recommended 21m overlooking 
distance, and the change in levels has the potential to increase the overall 
bulk of the proposal from adjoining properties to the south west, the change in 
site levels also makes the existing 3 to 5m high trees and shrubs on the rear 
boundary of the site more effective in providing screening to the rear 
elevations and gardens of Nos. 176A and 178A from the impact of the views 
from the proposed first and second floor windows.  Furthermore, the Council’s 
Tree/Landscape Officer has inspected the site and confirms that the existing 
mix of shrubs and trees would provide an adequate all year round screen.  As 
such, it is considered that the proposal would not harm the residential 
amenities of adjoining occupiers, in accordance with policies BE20, BE21 and 
BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, 
September 2007), subject to a condition requiring the maintenance of the 
boundary trees and shrubs. 

13. No objections are raised to the new garage roof on residential amenity 
grounds, which is sufficiently remote from adjoining residential properties. 

14.  The new windows would provide an adequate outlook and natural light to the 
rooms they would serve, in accordance with London Plan Policy 4A.3 and 
BE20 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, 
September 2007).  Private amenity space in excess of 250m² and off-street 
parking would not be affected by the proposed development and the proposal 
makes adequate provision for the retention of all of the trees and hedges on 
the site, in accordance with policies BE23, BE38 and AM14 of the adopted 
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007). 

15. With regards to the third party comments, points (i) to (iii) have been 
addressed in the report. On point (iv), further consultation was carried out. On 
point (v), the conditions relating to the original planning permission are noted 

Page 169
Page 173



Central & South Planning Committee – 12 May 2009 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

however, planning applications have to be determined on their own merit, 
having regard to existing site conditions. 

16. For the reasons outlined above and that the proposal would comply with the 
aforementioned policies of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan 
(Saved Policies, September 2007), this application is recommended for 
approval. 

OBSERVATIONS OF BOROUGH SOLICITOR 

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning 
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable 
them to make an informed decision in respect of an application. 

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) 
makes it unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  
Decisions by the Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, 
Members need to be aware of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European 
Convention on Human Rights (the Convention) directly applicable to the actions of 
public bodies in England and Wales.  The specific parts of the Convention relevant to 
planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for 
private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and 
Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination). 

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are 
followed, it is unlikely that this article will be breached. Article 1 of the First Protocol 
and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of these rights protected 
under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for example where 
required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which means it 
must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest 
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective. 
Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without 
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other 
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth 
or other status'. 

OBSERVATIONS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendations have no 
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council.  The officer 
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if 
agreed by the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful 
challenge being made.  Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the 
possibility of unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the 
associated financial risk to the Council. 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL, SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS: 
- 

1) (T8)  Time Limit (Full) 1) (T8) Standard 

Page 170
Page 174



Central & South Planning Committee – 12 May 2009 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

2) (M2) External surfaces to match 
existing building 

2) (M2) Standard 

3) (OM1) Development in accordance 
with Approval Plans  

3) (OM1) Standard 
(REASON:  “… policies 
BE13 and BE15”) 

4) (RPD1) No additional windows or 
doors – facing ‘7 Hillman Close, 25 
Water Tower Close and 176a and 
178a Harefield Road’ 

4) (RPD1) Standard 

5) (RPD2) Obscured Glazing and Non-
Opening Windows ‘first floor en-
suite bathroom window facing No. 
7 Hillman Close, the secondary side 
bedroom windows facing No. 25 
Water Tower Close and the rear en-
suite bathroom windows facing No. 
178a Harefield Road and all side 
and rear facing rooflight windows’ 

5) (RPD2) Standard 

6) (TL2) Trees to be retained 6) (TL2) Standard 

7) (TL3) Protection of trees and plants 
during site clearance and 
development 

7) (TL3) Standard 

8) (TL3) Protection of trees and plants 
during site clearance and 
development 

8) (TL3) Standard 

9) (TL5) Landscaping scheme 9) (TL5) Standard 
10) (TL6) Landscaping scheme - 

implementation 
10) (TL6) Standard 

11) (TL7) Maintenance of Landscaped 
Areas 

11) (TL7) Standard 

12) The existing screen planting and 
hedging on the boundary with 176A 
and 178A Harefield Road shall be 
allowed to grow / maintained at a 
height of 3.5 to 4m.  Any gaps 
which may occur shall be filled with 
replacement planting of a similar 
size and species within the next 
planting season or such other 
period as may be agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

12) (M7) Standard 

INFORMATIVES 

1) The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having 
regard to all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, 
circulars and Council policies, including The Human Rights Act 1998 
(HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act 
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a 

Page 171
Page 175



Central & South Planning Committee – 12 May 2009 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); 
Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 
(prohibition of discrimination). 

2) The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having 
regard to the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary 
Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and London Plan 
2004 set out below, and to all relevant material considerations, 
including Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
BE13 – new development to harmonise with the existing street 
scene. 
BE15 – extensions to harmonise with the scale, form, architectural 
composition and proportions of the original building. 
BE19 – new development to complement and improve the amenity 
and character of the area. 
BE20 – ensure adequate daylight and sunlight can penetrate into and 
between buildings and the amenities of existing houses are 
safeguarded. 
BE21 –  siting, bulk and proximity of extensions not to result in a 
significant loss of residential amenity. 
BE22 - Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys 
BE23 – sufficient external amenity space 
BE24 – design to protect privacy of occupiers and neighbours 
BE38  - Retention of topographical and landscape features, and 
provision of new planting and landscaping in developments 
proposals 
AM14 – Car parking standards 
London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction 

Hillingdon Design  & Accessibility Statement (HDAS): Residential 
Extensions (adopted in August 2006 and to form part of the 
emerging Local Development Framework documents): 
5.0 – Side and First Floor Side Extension: Two Storey 
6.0 – Rear and First Floor Rear Extensions: Two Storey 
7.0 – Loft Conversions and Roof Alterations 
8.0 – Front Extensions, Porches and Bay Windows 

3) (1) – Building to Approved Drawing 
4) (2) – Encroachment  
5) (3) – Building Regulations 
6) (5) – Party Walls 
7) (6) – Property Rights/Rights of Light 
8) (15) Environmental considerations with construction/demolition 

work 
9) (43) - Dirt on highway 
10) (46) – Sustainable resources 
11) (47) – Damage to verge 

Contact Officer: SONIA BOWEN  Telephone No: 01895 250230 

Page 172
Page 176



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

E

R

E

12 3

186

7

196

21
5

57.0m 178

Water

9

26
24

21
3

172

172a

21
9

13a

(Nursing Home)

178e

SAL
T HI

LL

2f

7

W
A
T
E
R
T
O
W
E
R
C
L
O
S
E

62.2m

Sub Sta

192

HAREFIE
LD ROAD

178a

CLO
SE

14

1

4
23
9

1

22
5

178b

Clare House

180a

El

20

1

174

Ponds

LB

13

2e

176a

11
H
ILL
M
A
N
C
L
O
S
E

13

2

5

25

174a

21
7

21
7a

5

180b

6

El Sub Sta

15

12

170a

180

Tower

8

T
O
W
E
R
G
A
T
E
C
L
O
S
E

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

6 Hillman Close
Uxbridge

22424/APP/2008/2100

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 173
Page 177



Page 178

This page is intentionally left blank



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

REDFORD HOUSE REDFORD WAY UXBRIDGE 

Change of use from Class A1 Shops (Pet shop suppliers) to Class D2
Assembly and Leisure (for use as women's health and fitness centre).

06/02/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 46340/APP/2009/250

Drawing Nos: Un-numbered
Design and Access Statement
040209

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The proposal site is within Uxbridge Town Centre but outside the primaryand secondar y
shopping areas. There is no specific protection for A1 uses outside the designated
shopping areas in town centres. The site is in an area of low footfall, has no frontage
onto a main road, and there is currently a noticeable supply of vacant retail units in the
designated frontages. Therefore there would be no objection to the loss of retail. In terms
of the proposed community use Saved Policy R10 supports such uses and the increased
employment is welcomed. The site has very good public transport access which would
provide a sustainable transport option for users of the proposal. 

The application is recommended for approval.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

T8

HLC5

HLC7

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Industrial and Commercial Development

Music

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration ofthr ee year s
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The premises shall not be used except between 0800 hours and 1930 hours Mondays to
Fridays, between 0900 hours and 1600 hours on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays
and Bank Holidays.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties
in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development PlanSaved
Policies (September 2007).

No amplified or other music shall be played in the premises between 08:00 hours and

1

2

3

2. RECOMMENDATION

06/02/2009Date Application Valid:

Item No.10

Page 174

Agenda Item 15

Page 179



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

MCD10

DIS2

DIS3

Refuse Facilities

Access to Buildings for People with Disabilities

Parking for Wheelchair Disabled People

19:30 hours Mondays to Fridays, between 09:00 hours and 16:00 hours on Saturdays
and at no time on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties
in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development PlanSaved
Policies (September 2007).

No development shall take place until details of facilities to be provided for the screened
storage of refuse at the premises have been submitted to and approved inwr i ting by the
Local Planning Authority. No part of the development shall be occupied until the facilities
have been provided in accordance with the approved details and thereafter the facilities
shall be permanently retained. 

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan
(February 2008) Policy 4B.1.

Development shall not commence until details of access to building entrances (to include
ramped/level approaches, signposting, types and dimensions of door widthand l obby
openings) to meet the needs of people with disabilities have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved facilities should be
provided prior to the occupation of the development and shall be permanently retained
thereafter.

REASON
To ensure that people with disabilities have adequate access to the development in
accordance with Policies AM13 and R16 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan Policies (February 2008) Policies
3A.13, 3A.17 and 4B.5.

Development shall not commence until details of the provision of one parking space for
wheelchair disabled people, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall not be occupied until all the approved details
have been implemented and thereafter these facilities shall be permanently retained.

REASON
To ensure that people in wheelchairs are provided with adequate car parking and
convenient access to building entrances in accordance with Policy AM5 ofthe Hi llingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Note: wheelchair users are not the only category of people who require a' di sabl ed'
parking space. A Blue Badge parking space can also be used by people whohave a
mobility impairment (full-time wheelchair users account for only a small percentage of
this category) including elderly people, visually impaired people having a sighted driver,
children having bulky equipment such as oxygen cylinders that have to bet ranspor ted
with them, etc.

4

5

6

Page 175
Page 180



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

H6

NONSC

Car parking provision - submission of details

Non Standard Condition

The development hereby approved shall not be commenced until details of the parking
arrangements have been submitted to and approved in writing by the LocalPl anni ng
Authority; and the development shall not be occupied until the approved arrangements
have been implemented.  Disabled parking bays shall be a minimum of 4.8ml ong by
3.6m wide, or at least 3.0m wide where two adjacent bays may share an unloading area.

REASON
To ensure that adequate facilities are provided in accordance with Policies AM14, AM15
and the parking standards as set out in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

The proposed use of the building shall only be as a women's health and fitness centre.

REASON
To enable the Local Planning Authority to retain control over the use soas to ensur e that
it complies with policy  OE1  of the Hillingdon Unitary Development PlanSaved Pol ici es
(September 2007).

7

8

I52

I53

I1

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

Building to Approved Drawing

1

2

3

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to afai r hear ing) ; Ar ticl e 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the FirstPr ot ocol  (pr ot ect ion of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

BE1
BE13
R10

OE3

AM7
AM14
LPP 3D.1
LPP 3D.3

LPP 3D.2

Development within archaeological priority areas
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social,
community and health services
Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
New development and car parking standards.
London Plan Policy 3D.1 - Supporting Town Centres.
London Plan Policy 3D.3 - Maintaining and Improving Retail
Facilities.
Town Centre Development

Page 176
Page 181



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I5

I6

I15

Party Walls

Property Rights/Rights of Light

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

4

5

6

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
 carry out work to an existing party wall;
 build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
 in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of thebui ldi ng own er
and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building
Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessaryagr eeme nt s
with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as
removing the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act.
Further information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 -
explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning
& Community Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation.In par ticul ar , you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out betweenthe hour s of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays orBank
Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create apubl ic heal th
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 177
Page 182



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is situated within Uxbridge Town Centre on the south side of Redford
Way. The site comprises a vacant single storey brick built building originally used for B8
storage/warehouse and then for retail sale of food and accessories for pets. There is an
area of off street parking to the front of the site. The site is situated within `Uxbridge Town
Centre as identified in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (Saved Polices
September 2007).

None

4. Planning Policies and Standards

None

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal involves the change of use of the building from a retail unit (A1) to Assembly
and Leisure (Class D2). No external alterations are proposed as part of this application.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

46340/APP/2004/1391

46340/APP/2004/2726

46340/APP/2009/336

46340/C/92/0195

Redford House Redford Way Uxbridge 

Redford House Redford Way Uxbridge 

Redford House Redford Way Uxbridge 

Former Chorley Floral Products Redford Way Uxbridge 

CHANGE OF USE TO CLASS A1: USE FOR SALE OF FOOD AND ACCESSORIES FOR
PETS AND ALTERATIONS TO THE FRONT ELEVATIONS

CHANGE OF USE TO CLASS A1 USE FOR SALE OF FOOD & ACCESSORIES FOR PETS
WITH OPERATION HOURS 0800 TO 1830 MONDAY-FRIDAY (EXCLUDING THURSDAY),
0800 TO 2000 THURSDAY AND SATURDAY (LATE OPENING) AND 1000 TO 1600 SUNDAY
AND BANK HOLIDAYS

Change of use from Class A1 (Shops) to Class D1 (Non-residential institutions) with ancillary
office accommodation.

Removal of conditions 3 and 4 of planning permission ref. 8923C/6228 dated 15.5.69 relating to
Industrial Development Certificate and the displacement of premises; Erection of factory
building and offices

03-09-2004

21-04-2005

27-02-1992

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

Approved

Approved

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 178
Page 183



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE1

BE13

R10

OE3

AM7

AM14

LPP 3D.1

LPP 3D.3

LPP 3D.2

Development within archaeological priority areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social, community
and health services

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

London Plan Policy 3D.1 - Supporting Town Centres.

London Plan Policy 3D.3 - Maintaining and Improving Retail Facilities.

Town Centre Development

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

7.01

7.02

7.03

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

There are no specific policies for the protection of A1 uses outside thepr ima r y and
secondary shopping areas of the Town Centre. However the London Plan (2008), Policy
3D.1, states boroughs should enhance access to goods and services, and strengthen the
wider role of town centres, and policies should encourage retail, leisure and other related
uses in town centres. In addition to this, policies should support a wide role for town
centres as locations for leisure and cultural activities, as well as business and housing,
and require the location of appropriate health, education and other public and community
services in town centres. The principle of the development is therefore considered
acceptable.

Not applicable - No housing is proposed

The application site is within an Archaeological Priority Area, however there are no
groundworks proposed aas part of this application and therefore the proposal would

Internal Consultees

Policy  - Provided site specific issues are adequately addressed policy would support this
application.
Access Officer - No objection subject to conditions
Highways Engineer - No objection

External Consultees

42 neighbours were consulted. 1 objection received concerning difficulties with client parking.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 179
Page 184



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Isssues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

comply with Policy BE1 of the UDP (Saved Polices September 2007).

Not applicable  - the application is not within a safeguarding area

Not applicable  - the application is not within the Green Belt

There are no external alterations proposed as part of this application and the existing
frontage will be retained. Therefore the proposal would comply with Policy BE13 of the
UDP (Saved Polices September 2007).

Policy OE1 states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become
detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding properties and policy OE3 states
buildings or uses which have the potential to cause noise annoyance willonl y be per mi tted
if the impact can be mitigated. The proposed use is not considered to result in any
additional noise and disturbance, over and above the current authorised use of the site.
However, in order to safeguard the amenities of the surrounding occupiers it is suggested
a condition could be applied relating to the hours of operation. Therefore subject to this
condition the proposal is considered to accord with policies OE1 and OE3of  t he UDP
(Saved Polices September 2007).

Not applicable  - No housing is proposed

The site is situated at the end of Redford Way, and a limited amount of off-street parking
is provided to the front of the site. The site is within close walking distance on the town
centre and has good public transport access. It is not considered the traffic generation
between A1 and D1 would be significantly worsened if the proposal received permission.
The proposal would therefore comply with AM7 and AM14 of the UDP (SavedPol ices
September 2007).

Not applicable  - the application is for change of use only and does noti nvol ve any
alterations to the building

The proposed floor plans show the provision of WC facilities for the disabled, and access
doors and corridor widths all comply with standards. A condition requiring the marking out
of a disabled parking bay is proposed.

Not applicable - No housing is proposed

Not applicable  - the application is for change of use only

Not applicable - The application is for change of use only and it is notconsi der ed t he
proposed use would have an adverse affect on waste management issues.

Not applicable  - the application is for change of use only and does noti nvol ve any
alterations to the building

The site is not within a flood zone, and no other drainage issues have arisen.

Page 180
Page 185



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Not applicable  - The application is for change of use only

Not applicable

Not applicable

Policy R10 of the UPD (Saved Polices September 2007) states new meeting halls,
buildings for education, social, community and health services, etc, will be considered
acceptable in principle subject to the other policies in the plan.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need tobe awa r e
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and thepr ivat e i nt er est
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendationshave no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council.  The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed
by the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being
made at a later stage.  Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

Page 181
Page 186



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

It is considered the application site is outside the primary and secondary areas of the
Town Centre, and comprises a vacant unit. There are no policy objectionsto the pr oposed
change of use and the site has good links to public transport.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices September 2007 
The London Plan (2008)

Catherine Hems 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 182
Page 187



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

R

R

E

E

R

120

Ar
ms
tro
ng
Ho
us
e

TCB

Bea
sle
ys
Yar
d

138
137

54

1
3

5

Hall

150

Re
dfo
rd

Ho
us
e

Ben
net
t's

RE
DF
OR
D
WA
Y

House

Re
dfo
rd

Church

REDFO
RD
W
AY

15

20

Re
df
or
d
St
ud
io
s

S
helters

33

41

qu
ers
Sq
ua
re

63

62

C
R

40.2m

M
ercer W

alk
W
ard

B
dy

126
a

132

139

us
e

148

53

Cu
lha
m
Co
urt

132a

to

22

24

Bank

66

H
IG
H
S
TR
E
E
T

124
125

W
A
R
W
IC
K
P
LA
C
E

PH

b

PH

PH

Hall

156
157

Ho
us
e

32

155
Christ

27

30

1 to
4

Shelter

31

35

to

Ch
ild
Gu
ida
nc
e

4

tistorey)

PH

129

59
to
61

58

PH

Bank

9

Be
nn
ett
's Y
ard

21
to
27

25

3

2

133
a

LB
141

142

Joh
nso

n's
Yar
d

U
nd

1 t
o 2
0

PO
151

Yar
d

BEL
MO
NT

RO
AD

28 29

1

1a

12

1

W
IL
MA
R
CL
OS
E

1

5
4
to
8

s Car Park

GP

4

1
to
17

126

133

Mi
dd
les
ex
Ho
us
e

135

140

133

148

Aston

Coc
k's
Yar
d

29

Or
ch
ard
Pl
ac
e

Ce
nt
re

Be
n

118

3

6

El Sub Sta

42.4m

11

26
to
38

122
123

130
131

134

136

55
to
57

H
igh

Street

Be
as
ley
Ho
us
e

9

152

154
132a

Jo
hn
so
n's
Ya
rd

26

15

SheltersBAKER'S
RO
AD

37

49

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Redford House
Redford Way
Uxbridge

46340/APP/2009/250

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 183

Page 188



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

REDFORD HOUSE REDFORD WAY UXBRIDGE 

Change of use from Class A1 (Shops) to Class D1 (Non-residential
institutions) with ancillary office accommodation.

19/02/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 46340/APP/2009/336

Drawing Nos: 100/01
Un-numbered
Un-numbered

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The proposal site is within Uxbridge Town Centre but outside the primaryand secondar y
shopping areas. There is no specific protection for A1 uses outside the designated
shopping areas in town centres. The site is in an area of low footfall, has no frontage
onto a main road, and there is currently a noticeable supply of vacant retail units in the
near vicinity. Therefore there would be no objection to the loss of the retail use. With
regard to the proposed community use, Saved Policies R9 and R10 supportssuch uses
and the increased employment would be welcomed. The site is served by good public
transport access and this would provide a sustainable transport option for users of the
proposal.

The application is recommended for approval

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

T8

HLC5

HLC7

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Industrial and Commercial Development

Music

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration ofthr ee year s
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The premises shall not be used except between 0830 hours and 1030 hours Mondays to
Saturdays, and between 1000 hours and 2000 hours on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties
in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development PlanSaved
Policies (September 2007).

No amplified or other music shall be played in the premises between 08:30 hours and

1

2

3

2. RECOMMENDATION

25/02/2009Date Application Valid:

Item No.11

Page 184

Agenda Item 16

Page 189



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

MCD10

DIS2

DIS3

Refuse Facilities

Access to Buildings for People with Disabilities

Parking for Wheelchair Disabled People

09:30 hours Mondays to Fridays, between 10:00 hours and 18:00 hours Saturdays to
Sundays and at no time on Bank Holidays.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties
in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development PlanSaved
Policies (September 2007).

No development shall take place until details of facilities to be provided for the screened
storage of refuse at the premises have been submitted to and approved inwr i ting by the
Local Planning Authority. No part of the development shall be occupied until the facilities
have been provided in accordance with the approved details and thereafter the facilities
shall be permanently retained. 

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan
(February 2008) Policy 4B.1.

Development shall not commence until details of access to building entrances (to include
ramped/level approaches, signposting, types and dimensions of door widthand l obby
openings) to meet the needs of people with disabilities have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved facilities should be
provided prior to the occupation of the development and shall be permanently retained
thereafter.

REASON
To ensure that people with disabilities have adequate access to the development in
accordance with Policies AM13 andR16 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan Policies (February 2008) Policies
3A.13, 3A.17 and 4B.5.

Development shall not commence until details of the provision of one parking space for
wheelchair disabled people, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall not be occupied until all the approved details
have been implemented and thereafter these facilities shall be permanently retained.

REASON
To ensure that people in wheelchairs are provided with adequate car parking and
convenient access to building entrances in accordance with Policy AM5 ofthe Hi llingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Note: wheelchair users are not the only category of people who require a' di sabl ed'
parking space. A Blue Badge parking space can also be used by people whohave a
mobility impairment (full-time wheelchair users account for only a small percentage of
this category) including elderly people, visually impaired people having a sighted driver,
children having bulky equipment such as oxygen cylinders that have to bet ranspor ted
with them, etc.

4

5

6

Page 185
Page 190



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

H6

NONSC

Car parking provision - submission of details

Non Standard Condition

The development hereby approved shall not be commenced until details of the parking
arrangements have been submitted to and approved in writing by the LocalPl anni ng
Authority; and the development shall not be occupied until the approved arrangements
have been implemented.  Disabled parking bays shall be a minimum of 4.8ml ong by
3.6m wide, or at least 3.0m wide where two adjacent bays may share an unloading area.

REASON
To ensure that adequate facilities are provided in accordance with Policies AM14, AM15
and the parking standards as set out in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

The proposed use of the building shall only be as a non-residential institution with
ancillary office accommodation.

REASON
To enable the Local Planning Authority to retain control over the use soas to ensur e that
it complies with policy  OE1  of the Hillingdon Unitary Development PlanSaved Pol ici es
(September 2007).

7

8

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to afai r hear ing) ; Ar ticl e 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the FirstPr ot ocol  (pr ot ect ion of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

BE1
BE13
R9
R10

OE3

AM7
AM14
LPP 3D.1
LPP 3D.3

Development within archaeological priority areas
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Proposals for the use of buildings for religious and cultural purposes
Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social,
community and health services
Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
New development and car parking standards.
London Plan Policy 3D.1 - Supporting Town Centres.
London Plan Policy 3D.3 - Maintaining and Improving Retail
Facilities.

Page 186
Page 191



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I1

I3

I5

I6

I15

Building to Approved Drawing

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Party Walls

Property Rights/Rights of Light

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

3

4

5

6

7

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
 carry out work to an existing party wall;
 build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
 in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of thebui ldi ng own er
and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building
Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessaryagr eeme nt s
with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as
removing the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act.
Further information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 -
explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning
& Community Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation.In par ticul ar , you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out betweenthe hour s of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays orBank
Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British

LPP 3D.2 Town Centre Development

Page 187
Page 192



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

8

9

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is situated within Uxbridge Town Centre on the south side of Redford
Way. The site comprises a vacant single storey brick built building originally used for B8
storage/warehouse and then for retail sale of food and accessories for pets. There is an
area of off street parking to the front of the site. The site is situated within `Uxbridge Town
Centre   as identified in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP)(Saved Pol ices
September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal involves the change of use of the building from a retail unit (A1) to Non-
residential institutions with ancillary office accommodation (Class D1). No external
alterations are proposed as part of this application.

Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create apubl ic heal th
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

The applicant needs to ensure that they register with the Council¿s Food and Health, and
Safety Team, and complete and return the Application Form for the Registration of Food
Business Establishment which is available from the Civic Centre or by Telephoning
01895 250190. 

You are advised that this permission is for D1 use only. Any alternativeuse,  or  mi xed
use, would require the submission of a separate planning application.

46340/APP/2004/1391

46340/APP/2004/2726

Redford House Redford Way Uxbridge 

Redford House Redford Way Uxbridge 

CHANGE OF USE TO CLASS A1: USE FOR SALE OF FOOD AND ACCESSORIES FOR
PETS AND ALTERATIONS TO THE FRONT ELEVATIONS

03-09-2004Decision: Approved

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Page 188
Page 193



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

There is a current undetermined application (46340/APP/2009/250), for the change of use
of this building to a women¿fs health and fitness centre. This application is reported
elsewhere on this agenda.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE1

BE13

R9

R10

OE3

AM7

AM14

LPP 3D.1

LPP 3D.3

LPP 3D.2

Development within archaeological priority areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Proposals for the use of buildings for religious and cultural purposes

Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social, community
and health services

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

London Plan Policy 3D.1 - Supporting Town Centres.

London Plan Policy 3D.3 - Maintaining and Improving Retail Facilities.

Town Centre Development

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

46340/APP/2009/250 Redford House Redford Way Uxbridge 

CHANGE OF USE TO CLASS A1 USE FOR SALE OF FOOD & ACCESSORIES FOR PETS
WITH OPERATION HOURS 0800 TO 1830 MONDAY-FRIDAY (EXCLUDING THURSDAY),
0800 TO 2000 THURSDAY AND SATURDAY (LATE OPENING) AND 1000 TO 1600 SUNDAY
AND BANK HOLIDAYS

Change of use from Class A1 Shops (Pet shop suppliers) to Class D2 Assembly and Leisure
(for use as women's health and fitness centre).

21-04-2005Decision:

Decision:

Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 189
Page 194



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

There are no specific policies for the protection of A1 uses outside thepr ima r y and
secondary shopping areas of the Town Centre. However the London Plan (2008), Policy
3D.1, states boroughs should enhance access to goods and services, and strengthen the
wider role of town centres, and policies should encourage retail, leisure and other related
uses in town centres. In addition to this, policies should support a wide role for town
centres as locations for leisure and cultural activities, as well as business and housing,
and require the location of appropriate health, education and other public and community
services in town centres

Policy R10 of the UPD (Saved Polices September 2007) states new meeting halls,
buildings for education, social, community and health services, etc, will be considered
acceptable in principle subject to the other policies in the plan.

The proposed use, therefore, is considered appropriate in principle, subject to the detailed
considerations below.

Not applicable -  No housing is proposed

The application site is within an Archaeological Priority Area, however there are no ground
works proposed as part of this application and therefore the proposal would comply with

Internal Consultees

Policy  - Application is acceptable with conditions - The proposal site is within Uxbridge Town
Centre but outside the primary and secondary shopping areas. There is nospeci fic pr ot ect ion for
A1 uses outside the designated shopping areas in town centres. The site is in an area of low
footfall, has no frontage onto a main road, and there is currently a noticeable supply of vacant retail
units in the near vicinity. Therefore there would be no objection to thel oss of  the ret ai l use.  Wi th
regard to the re-use of part of the site for offices, whilst there is a strong supply of office space in
Uxbridge at the present time, in the longer term there will be a need for further space. Moreover
this scheme would provide local employment which is to be welcomed.  With regard to the
proposed community use Saved Policy R10 supports such uses. The site hasver y good publ ic
transport access which would provide a sustainable transport option for users of the proposal.
Provided site specific issues are adequately addressed policy would support this application.
Officer comment    The Policy team was re-consulted following the amended description for the
proposal, and did not wish to make any further comments. 

Highways Engineer -   No objection.

Access Officer - No objection 

EPU -  Recommends the following is included  - The applicant needs to ensure that they register
with the Council's Food and Health, and Safety Team, and complete and return the Application
Form for the Registration of Food Business Establishment which is available from the Civic Centre
or by Telephoning 01895 250190.

External Consultees

42 neighbours were consulted and 2 responses in support of the application have been received,
which make the following comments:
1. I think this is a breath of fresh life into the community.
2. They are contributing in teaching good values to residents in this community.
3. They provide practical services to people to help them live more effectively

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 190
Page 195



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Isssues

Policy BE1 of the UDP (Saved Polices September 2007).

Not applicable - the application is not within a safeguarding area

Not applicable - the application is not within the Green Belt

There are no external alterations proposed as part of this application and the existing
frontage will be retained. Therefore the proposal would comply with Policy BE13 of the
UDP (Saved Polices September 2007).

Policy OE1 states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become
detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding properties and policy OE3 states
buildings or uses which have the potential to cause noise annoyance willonl y be per mi tted
if the impact can be mitigated. The proposed use is not considered to result in any
additional noise and disturbance, over and above the current authorised use of the site.
However, in order to safeguard the amenities of the surrounding occupiers it is suggested
a condition could be applied relating to the hours of operation. Therefore, subject to this
condition, the proposal is considered to accord with policies OE1 and OE3 of the UDP
(Saved Polices September 2007).

Not applicable - No housing is proposed

The site is situated at the end of Redford Way, and a limited amount of off-street parking
is provided to the front of the site. The site is within close walking distance on the town
centre and has good public transport access. It is not considered the traffic generation
between A1 and D1 would be significantly worsened if the proposal received permission.
The proposal would therefore comply with AM7 and AM14 of the UDP (SavedPol ices
September 2007).

Not applicable as the application is for change of use only and does noti nvol ve any
alterations to the building

The plans indicate that toilet facilities will be upgraded to meet accessibility standards,
and the existing access doors and corridor widths all comply with AccessSt andar ds.  A
condition requiring the marking of one disabled parking bay is proposed.Ther ef or e t he
proposal would comply with Policy 3A.4 of the London Plan and the Council¿s HDAS:
Accessible Hillingdon

Not applicable - No housing is proposed

Not applicable - the application is for change of use only

Not applicable - The application is for change of use only and it is notconsi der ed t he
proposed use would have an adverse affect on waste management issues.

Not applicable - the application is for change of use only and does not involve any
alterations to the building

Page 191
Page 196



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

The site is not within a flood zone, and no other drainage issues have arisen.

Not applicable - The application is for change of use only

Not required for this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Policy R9 of the UPD (Saved Polices September 2007) states proposals for buildings to
be used for religious and cultural purposes if: they can provide adequate parking; any new
buildings or extensions would harmonise with their surroundings; they donot  pr ej udi ce the
amenities of surrounding properties; access arrangements are satisfactory; and the
proposal would not conflict with other policies in the plan. 

The proposal is considered to comply with this policy as although the site has limited
parking provision, it is situated in an area with good public transport links; there are no
extensions or new buildings proposed as part of this application; the site is situated
adjacent to an existing church, and to the rear of various commercial units, and whilst
there are residential properties in the vicinity, subject to condition regarding opening times
of the building, it is not considered the use would prejudice their residential amenities; and
the access requirements would comply with the Council's HDAS:   Accessible Hillingdon

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need tobe awa r e
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and thepr ivat e i nt er est
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or

Page 192
Page 197



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendationshave no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council.  The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed
by the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being
made at a later stage.  Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

The application site is outside the primary and secondary areas of the Town Centre, and
comprises a vacant unit. There are no policy objections to the proposed change of use,
the site has good links to public transport, and therefore the application is recommended
for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices September 2007
The London Plan (2008)

Catherine Hems 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 193
Page 198



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

R

R

E

E

R

120

Ar
ms
tro
ng
Ho
us
e

TCB

Bea
sle
ys
Yar
d

138
137

54

1
3

5

Hall

150

Re
dfo
rd

Ho
us
e

Ben
net
t's

RE
DF
OR
D
WA
Y

House

Re
dfo
rd

Church

REDFO
RD
W
AY

15

20

Re
df
or
d
St
ud
io
s

S
helters

33

41

qu
ers
Sq
ua
re

63

62

C
R

40.2m

M
ercer W

alk
W
ard

B
dy

126
a

132

139

us
e

148

53

Cu
lha
m
Co
urt

132a

to

22

24

Bank

66

H
IG
H
S
TR
E
E
T

124
125

W
A
R
W
IC
K
P
LA
C
E

PH

b

PH

PH

Hall

156
157

Ho
us
e

32

155
Christ

27

30

1 to
4

Shelter

31

35

to

Ch
ild
Gu
ida
nc
e

4

tistorey)

PH

129

59
to
61

58

PH

Bank

9

Be
nn
ett
's Y
ard

21
to
27

25

3

2

133
a

LB
141

142

Joh
nso

n's
Yar
d

U
nd

1 t
o 2
0

PO
151

Yar
d

BEL
MO
NT

RO
AD

28 29

1

1a

12

1

W
IL
MA
R
CL
OS
E

1

5
4
to
8

s Car Park

GP

4

1
to
17

126

133

Mi
dd
les
ex
Ho
us
e

135

140

133

148

Aston

Coc
k's
Yar
d

29

Or
ch
ard
Pl
ac
e

Ce
nt
re

Be
n

118

3

6

El Sub Sta

42.4m

11

26
to
38

122
123

130
131

134

136

55
to
57

H
igh

Street

Be
as
ley
Ho
us
e

9

152

154
132a

Jo
hn
so
n's
Ya
rd

26

15

SheltersBAKER'S
RO
AD

37

49

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Redford House
Redford Way
Uxbridge

46340/APP/2009/336

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 194

Page 199



Page 200

This page is intentionally left blank



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

FORMER CAPE BOARDS SITE  IVER LANE COWLEY 

Temporary change of use to provide cleaning/servicing yard for bins/ skips
(sui-generis), together with temporary skip holding area (B8), ancillary
workshop and portacabin.

27/02/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 751/APP/2009/402

Drawing Nos: Proposed site layout - Amended
TS/51177/bs
Flood Risk Assessment
Planning Drawings x4
Baseline Transport Assessment
Design and Access
Noise Assessment Report

Date Plans Received: 02/03/2009
04/03/2009
21/04/2009

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The current planning application which is similar to the previously refused scheme is for
the temporary change of use to provide cleaning/ servicing yard for bins/skips (sui
generis), together with temporary ancillary workshop and office buildings. It is proposed
to erect a portable building for use as an office and a miracle span building for use as
workshop on the site.

The proposed operational works are considered to be acceptable in terms of the visual
appearance of the site and appropriate to the temporary use of the site for the cleaning
and servicing of bins skips. The use of the site for the stated purposesis consi st ent  wi th
the designation of the Industrial Business Area. However, a temporary permission of 1
year has been recommended in order to enable the Council to effectively assess its
impact and the cumulative effects of other uses existing within the overall site, on the
wider locality.

For the above reason, and subject to conditions, the scheme is recommended for
approval.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

ST1 Standard Condition

The use hereby permitted shall be discontinued and the portable buildinga nd
workshop and any other ancillary equipment associated with the use removed from the
site on or before 1 year from the date of this decision notice.

REASON
To ensure that the long term redevelopment of the site is not prejudicedand to assess
the impact of the use on the highway network in order to comply with Policies BE25, LE2

1

2. RECOMMENDATION

04/03/2009Date Application Valid:

Item No.12

Page 195

Agenda Item 17

Page 201



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

ST1

ST1

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Standard Condition

Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

and AM7 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007.

No repair or replacement of the existing fencing around the perimeter ofthe si te shal l be
carried out unless it is of a height, design and accommodates materials to match the
existing fencing.
 
REASON
In the interests of the appearance of the site when viewed from the adjacent Grand
Union Canal, Green Belt and Cowley Lock Conservation Area in accordance with Policies
BE32 and OL5 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

Within three months of the date of this decision a scheme to control ther un- of f of
pollutants from the site shall be implemented in accordance with detailssubmi tted to,  and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.
 
REASON
To prevent pollution of the adjacent watercourse and groundwater in accordance with
Policy OE6 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

There shall be no stacking of bins/skips above 2m height within 4m of the western side
boundary fencing, which abuts the bank of the River Colne.
 
REASON
In the interests of the appearance of the site when viewed from the adjacent River Colne,
Green Belt and Cowley Lock Conservation Area in accordance with PoliciesBE32 and
OL5 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

No raw materials, finished or unfinished products, parts, crates, packing materials or
waste shall be handled on the development site. 
REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of the area in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan
(February 2008) Policy 4B.1.

No more than 12 two-way HGV movements per day shall operate from the site.

2

3

4

5

6

Page 196
Page 202



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

H10

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Non Standard Condition

Parking/Turning/Loading Arrangements  - Commercial Devs.

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

REASON

In the interests of highway safety and on the amenities of neighbouring properties in
accordance with Policies AM7 and OE1 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London Plan(Febr uar y
2008).

Means of vehicular access to the approved development shall be from IverLane onl y.

REASON

In light of the nearby weight restriction on bridges over the Grand Union Canal and to
ensure that pedestrian and vehicular safety is not prejudiced in accordance with Policy
AM7 of the Hillingdon UDP Saved Policies (September 2007).

The roads/turning/loading facilities/sight lines and parking areas (including the marking
out of parking spaces) shown on the approved plans shall be constructedpr ior  t o
occupation of the development, thereafter permanently retained and used for no other
purpose.

REASON
To ensure that the loading, roads, turning facilities and parking areas are satisfactorily
laid out on site in accordance with Policies AM3 and AM14 of the adoptedHi llingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the
London Plan. (February 2008).

All Heavy Good Vehicles using this site must be Low Emission Level (LEZ) compliant.

REASON

To protect the local air quality and to safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in
accordance with Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and Policy 4A.20 of the London Plan (February 2008).

There shall be no more than 4 lorry movements entering and leaving the site between
11pm and 7am.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policy 4A.20
of the London Plan (February 2008).

To ensure the outcomes specified in condition 6 and 10 are complied with, the operators
shall keep a log of all lorry movements to and from this site over the duration that the
development hereby approved remains on site.

7

8

9

10

11

Page 197
Page 203



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

REASON

In order to safeguard pedestrian and highway safety including vehicular traffic flow and to
safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with Policies AM7 and OE1
of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policy
4A.20 of the London Plan (February 2008).

The site shall not be used outside the hours of 07:00 and 22:00, Monday to Friday, and
between the hours of 07:00 and 12:00 on Saturdays. The site shall not beused on
Sundays or Bank Holidays.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policy 4A.20
of the London Plan (February 2008).

The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until such time as details
specifying that the finished floor levels of all temporary buildings areset  no l owe r
than 29.06m above Ordnance Datum (AOD) have been submitted to, and approved in
writing by, the local planning authority.

Once approved, the scheme shall be fully implemented and subsequently maintained, in
accordance with the timing / phasing arrangements embodied within the approved
details, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the local
planning authority.

REASON

To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants in
compliance with policies OE7 and OE8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

Any walls or fencing constructed within or around the site shall be designed to be
permeable to flood water, details of which shall be submitted to, and approved in writing
by, the local planning authority. 

REASON

To prevent obstruction to the flow and storage of flood water, with a consequent
increased risk of flooding in accordance with policies OE7 and OE8 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Prior to the commencement of development approved by this planning permission (or
such other date or stage in development as may be agreed in writing witht he Local
Planning Authority), the following components of a scheme to deal with the risks
associated with contamination of the site shall each be submitted to andappr oved,  i n
writing, by the local planning authority:

12

13

14

15

Page 198
Page 204



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OM1 Development in accordance with Approved Plans

1) A preliminary risk assessment which has identified: 
 
*       all previous uses
*       potential contaminants associated with those uses
*       a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors
*       potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site.

2) A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for a detailed
assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site.

3) The site investigation results and the detailed risk assessment (2)and,  based on
these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full detailsof  the reme di at ion
measures required and how they are to be undertaken.
 
4) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in (3) are complete and identifyingany requi reme nt s
for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for
contingency action.

Any changes to these components require the express consent of the localpl anni ng
authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.

REASON

In general the Environment Agency agree with the conceptual site model, but since the
site is on a major aquifer adjacent to the River Colne, we would like tosee:
- details to demonstrate that the hardstanding to be used on site will be impermeable;
- clarification as to the what type of potentially contaminative activities will be carried out,
at the moment it is unclear what 'servicing' or 'wash-down' will involve, and what
measures will be taken to prevent potential contamination;
- confirmation that there are no underground storage tanks on site, as it is unclear how
this conclusion was reached; and
- confirmation that the pipework for the drainage system to be used (described as all
going to mains) is in good working order without leaks.
These measures should then form part of the risk assessment to demonstrate that the
temporary use will not pose a risk to controlled waters in accordance with Policies OE7,
OE8 and OE10 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007)

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policies BE13 and OL5 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

16

I52 Compulsory Informative (1)1

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant

Page 199
Page 205



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I53

I3

I6

Compulsory Informative (2)

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Property Rights/Rights of Light

2

3

4

planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to afai r hear ing) ; Ar ticl e 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the FirstPr ot ocol  (pr ot ect ion of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

BE13
BE25
BE38

OE1

OE6
OE7

OE8

OE11

OL11
EC1

EC3

LE2
AM2

AM7
PPS25
LPP 2A.10
LPP 3B.4

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Proposals likely to result in pollution
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures
Green Chains
Protection of sites of special scientific interest, nature conservation
importance and nature reserves
Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation
importance
Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Development & Flood Risk
London Plan Policy 2A.10 - Strategic Industrial Locations
London Plan Policy 3B.4 - Industrial Locations

Page 200
Page 206



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

5

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

Special statutory provisions for the control of noise from construction sites are contained
in the Control of Pollution Act 1974.

Section 60 of the Act enables local authorities to serve a notice imposing requirements
as to the way in which the works are to be carried out.  The notice may in particular:
(a) specify the plant or machinery which is, or is not, to be used;
(b) specify the hours during which the works may be carried out;
(c) specify the level of noise which may be emitted from the premises in question or at
any specified point on those premises in question or which may be so emitted during
specified hours; and
(d) provide for any change of circumstances.

Alternatively, an application for prior consent can be made under Section 61 of the Act.
The application should contain particulars of:
(a) the works, and the method by which they are to be carried out; and
(b) the steps proposed to be taken to minimise noise resulting from the works.

The British Standard 5228 (Part 1) states that the aim at each stage of a project is to
minimise levels of site noise whilst having regard to the practicabilityand economi c
implications of any measures. The standard provides a clear message thatthe me asur es
should be fully considered before the works are carried out. It recommends that
potentially excessive noise and vibration levels should be avoided and that this can be
achieved by giving careful consideration to the design of a proposed project, the
processes and equipment implied by the design and the phasing of operations. It goes
on to add that a project design should be so arranged that the number ofoper at ions
likely to be particularly disturbing be kept to a minimum.

During the execution of the works, the standard advises that all available techniques
should be used to minimise, as far as is necessary, the level of noise to which operators
and others in the neighbourhood of the start operations will be exposed.A numb er  of
measures are given for the protection of neighbouring areas, which are briefly
summarised below:

planning the hours of work,

where reasonably practicable, ensuring the use of quiet working methods,the use of  the
most suitable plant, reasonable hours of working for noisy operations, and economy of
speed of operations,

controlling noise and vibration at source and limiting the spread of noise. The standard
goes on to provide further guidance on the control of noise. The controlme asur es ar e:  1)
the substitution of noisy plant and processes by less noisy alternatives, 2) reducing noise
from existing plant and equipment by modification or by the application of improved
sound production methods, 3) enclosure of significant sources of noise,4)  s i ting

Page 201
Page 207



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

6

7

equipment away from noise sensitive areas or directed away from sensitive areas,
shutting down of equipment when not used, and the proper use of equipment and
handling of materials, 5) proper maintenance of plant and equipment.

Setting noise limits and monitoring noise levels may also be appropriate.  The Council¿s
Environmental Protection Unit should be consulted at an early stage in order to discuss
whether noise limits and other measures are likely to be required.

The following measures illustrate the typical measures required within Hillingdon:
no activities with the potential to cause disturbance would be permittedat  ni ght  or  dur ing
the evening, unless it can be demonstrated that the said activities are essential and
unavoidable or, alternatively, particular circumstances exist e.g. the site will
predominantly affect commercial interests.  It is the normal policy to permit working
Monday to Friday between 08.00 and 18.00 hours and Saturday between 08.00 and
13.00 hours.  No working will be allowed on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.  The
Environmental Protection Unit should be consulted at an early stage if work is intended
outside those working hours;
no potentially disturbing vehicle movements would be permitted at sensitive periods
unless it can be demonstrated that such activities are essential and unavoidable.  In
general haulage vehicles should not enter or leave the site between 1800and 0800
hours;
access to construction vehicles to the site and on local roads should becont rol led so as
to protect noise sensitive receiver locations.  Wherever practical, construction vehicle
movements through or close to sensitive  locations should be avoided;
sites likely to adversely affect dwellings, schools or hospitals and other sensitive
locations will be required to provide a method statement and predicted noise levels.  The
method statement should describe the works, plant, phasing and the stepsto be taken to
minimise levels of noise and vibration.  The British Standard 5228 provides a prediction
method;
noise limits may be set which reflect standards of best practice;
best practicable means should be used at all times so as to minimise theemi ssi on of
noise;
adequate measures for the supervision of noise generating activities andmo ni tor ing of
noise levels, if necessary, should be adopted.  All steps should be taken at each phase
of the works to minimise disturbance form noise and vibration.  The guidance given in the
British Standard 5228 (Part 1) Code of Practice should be followed;
adequate arrangements are made for liaison and consultation with officers of the Council
and the public should be put in place; and
adequate arrangements should be made for the investigation of complaints.

Sustainable Development:

Where relevant, developers should follow guidance in the Mayor¿s Sustainable Design
and Construction SPG, which can be found at;
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor/strategies/sds/sustainable_design.jsp

As the proposals include a temporary porta cabin and ancillary workshop within flood
zone 1 of the site the Environment Agency are satisfied with aspects of flood risk.
However, should permanent permission be sought for the whole site, a full FRA will be
required. Modelled flood levels obtained from our external relations team should be

Page 202
Page 208



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

8

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site has an area of approximately 0.61 hectares and comprises the mid-
northern portion of the former Cape Boards site, which is located on thenor th si de of  Iver
Lane. The overall site was used from 1948 by Cape Boards for the manufacture of
insulation boards with associated storage, distribution and office functions. Operations
have ceased for several years and the site has subsequently been cleared, including the
demolition of buildings. Three portable buildings have been installed atthe front  of  the si te
in connection with the current temporary use for the storage and distribution of motor
vehicles by a car rental firm and a warehouse structure used for waste paper depot is
located at the northern part of the former Cape Board Site. There are other uses within
the site, mainly for storage purpose operating from the site albeit unauthorised.  The
unauthorised uses are currently under investigation with regard to the expediency of
enforcement action. The site has been subdivided into at least 11 plots of various sizes.

The application site is bounded to the south by the remainder of the former Cape Boards
site, to the west by allotment gardens and to the east by the Grand Union Canal. Main
vehicular access/egress to the site is from the Iver Lane frontage of the main site. The site
falls within the Uxbridge Industrial Estate, which is identified as an Industrial Business
Area in the Hillingdon UDP Saved Policies (September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

mapped onto a topographical survey of the site. Once the applicant has submitted a
topographical survey we will be in a position to make an informed decision on flood risk
at the site.

There is a possibility there may be some contaminating substances present in the ground
under the hard standing. The environment Agency have some information onthe gr ound
conditions (see below). We would advise persons working on site to take precautions in
relation to any contamination they may find. Please contact the Environmental Protection
Unit on 01895 250155 if you require any advice.

You are advised this development is on a former Cape Board site based onrecor ds hel d
by the Environmental Protection Unit, which historically produced asbestos containing
products. The Environment Agency have a number of site investigation reports for the
site from 2002 which suggests localised areas of metal, hydrocarbon and asbestos
contamination at the site. There is also evidence of some areas of elevated carbon
dioxide at the site. There are both natural ground conditions, and conditions as a result of
organic contamination which could result in the generation of ground gas. At the time of
the 2002 investigation a number of shallow concrete obstructions were also noted. The
exact nature of the ground conditions in the area covered by the application is unknown.
The advice is provided primarily on the grounds of Health and Safety of the workers on
site and to ensure the appropriate restoration of the site once works are complete to
minimise risk to the site users. Due consideration also needs to be given to the potential
affects of contamination during construction on neighbouring sites. The suitability of
building materials and building techniques may also need to be considered under the
Building Regulations, due to both contamination and natural ground conditions and the
potential at the site for gas generation.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 203
Page 209



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The Cape Boards site has a long history of industrial use dating back to1948.  Si nce 1979
there have been various permissions granted for industrial buildings, minor extensions
and alterations. Since the cessation of the manufacturing use by Cape Boards, which is
considered to have been a B2 (General Industrial) use, there have beendi scussi ons wi th
officers regarding the future redevelopment of the site. On 23 February 2004 an outline
planning application for the redevelopment of the site for Class B1 (b)(Re sear ch and
Development), Class B1(c) (Light Industrial), Class B2 (General Industrial) and Class B8
(Storage and Distribution) uses totalling 34,878 sq metres was withdrawn (Ref.
751/APP/2002/2222). Demolition works commenced in 2003. The bulk of thesi te wa s
apparently cleared and additional hardstanding provided by late 2004. The most recent
demolition consisted of the removal of the ancillary offices fronting onto Iver Lane in
January 2006.

At the meeting of the Central & South Planning Committee on 30 May 2006 a report was
considered regarding the expediency of enforcement action in respect of the unauthorised
change of use of the site for car storage & distribution; airport related car parking;
ancillary development including hard surfacing and fencing above 2 metres. It was
resolved that the Borough Solicitor be authorised to issue an appropriate enforcement
notice in respect of the unauthorised uses and ancillary development (Ref.
ENF/2003/2641 & 04/3147).

On 18 October 2006 planning permission was granted for the retention of 2.44 metre high
fencing along the Iver Lane frontage from the site entrance to the RiverCo l ne ( Re f .

The current planning application which is similar to the previously refused scheme is for
the temporary change of use to provide cleaning/ servicing yard for bins/skips (sui
generis), together with temporary ancillary workshop and office buildings. 

At current the application site is vacant and unoccupied by buildings.  It is proposed that a
portable building for use as an office and a miracle span building for use as workshop is to
be erected on the site. The portable building would measure 3.6m deep, 12.2m wide and
3m high, while the workshop would be 12.23m deep, 12.45m wide with an overall height
of 6.45m.

The application site has been divided into two with the cleaning/servicing yard for
bins/skips occupying 48% of the site. 10 parking spaces including 1 disabled parking
space are to be provided to the front of the site. A fuel tank, bin washing area and bin
storage area occupy the rest of the this area.

The remaining 52% of the site is to be used for storage of bins and skips. This area is
shown as bin/skip holding area on the submitted site layout plan. The use of this are will
be connected to the proposed bin/skip cleaning and servicing business. 

The applicants have described the proposed use of the application site as follows:

"This facility is to provide cleaning services for waste management and recycling vehicles.
The core operating hours are likely to be between 06:00-22:00. The site is to
accommodate 4 on-site staff, with 6 drivers also based at this facility.Inf or ma t ion suppl ied
by the potential operator of this facility indicates that vehicle movements owing to this
operation are likely to be in the region of 12 two-way HGV movements and10 two - wa y car
movements per day"

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 204
Page 210



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

751/APP/2006/1077).

On 14th November 2006 the South and Central Planning Committee resolved to grant
planning permission for the retention of use of part of the site for thest or age and
distribution of motor vehicles (Class B8) by a car rental firm (ref: 751/APP/2006/2225).

(751/APP/2006/2225) Retention of use of site for the storage and distribution of motor
vehicles (Class B8) by car rental firm, Approved 16/11/2006

(751/APP/2007/3244) Permanent positioning of four portacabins, and cladding and netting
of existing building, erection of 7m high chain link fencing and associated works,
Approved 22/01/2008.

(751/APP/2008/745) A retrospective application for use of land for thepar ki ng (st or age)  of
heavy/light goods vehicles for a truck rental firm (not visited by customers) and siting of
operations portacabin, Refusal 01/07/2008.

Planning application (ref: 751/APP/2008/3436) was refused for a similar scheme as the
current proposal in February 2009 for the following reasons: 

1.     The proposed development lies within a risk flood zone. No flood risk assessment
(FRA) has been submitted with the application as required by PPG25. The proposed
development by reason of its location within a Flood Zone could potentially prejudice flood
defence interest. The proposal would therefore, be contrary to Policies OE7 and OE8 of
the Hillingdon UDP Saved Policies (September 2007) and PPS25.

2.     The application site is located on a major aquifer and close to a surface water course
- the river Colne. The previous site history indicates the use of the site for vehicle storage
and lorry car parking could potentially have led to contamination. Therefore a preliminary
risk assessment should be carried out. The application fails to provide sufficient
information to demonstrate that the risk of pollution to controlled waters is acceptable. The
proposal would therefore, be contrary to Policies OE7, OE8 and OE11 of the Hillingdon
UDP Saved Policies (September 2007) and PPS25.

3.     The applicants have failed to satisfactorily demonstrate that the proposal will not
have a detrimental impact on nearby residents by way of noise and that the air quality of
the surrounding area will not suffer as result of the proposed development. The proposal
is therefore contrary to Policies OE1 and OE6 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies September 2007).

4.     The applicants have failed to satisfactorily demonstrate that traffic associated with
the development can be adequately accommodated on the adjoining highway network. As
such, the development may be prejudicial to the free flow of traffic andcondi tions of
general highway safety, contrary to the aims of Policies AM7 and AM14 ofthe Hi llingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

Page 205
Page 211



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE25

BE38

OE1

OE6

OE7

OE8

OE11

OL11

EC1

EC3

LE2

AM2

AM7

PPS25

LPP 2A.10

LPP 3B.4

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Proposals likely to result in pollution

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection
measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

Green Chains

Protection of sites of special scientific interest, nature conservation importance
and nature reserves

Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation importance

Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Development & Flood Risk

London Plan Policy 2A.10 - Strategic Industrial Locations

London Plan Policy 3B.4 - Industrial Locations

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

The application was advertised as a minor development and 18 adjoining owner/occupiers were
condulted. No response has been received with the following comments:

No reason to oppose the application, providing that the main entrance/exit in Iver Lane, Cowley is
used and not the emergency exit into Waterloo Road, Uxbridge.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY

Page 206
Page 212



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

HIGHWAYS ENGINEER

The applicant and their TA state that there will be only 12 two way HGV movements daily. On this
basis no objections are raised on traffic grounds subject to Conditions:
 
1. The site usage is restricted to no more than 12 two way HGV movementsdai ly.
2. Vehicular access to the site would be from Iver Lane only.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT (EPU)
Contamination Matter:

Previous applications at this site have been conditioned for land contamination. As a minimum, a
contamination informative is required for the site as ground conditions vary and contamination is

Having reviewed the submitted information, including the 'Phase 1 Environmental Study - Former
Cape Board Works, Iver Lane, Cowley' Report No. 36828-01 (dated March 2009) as subsequently
submitted, we withdraw our objection to the proposed development, subject to the imposition of the
following conditions on any planning permission granted.

SOUTH BUCKS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Objections - The proposal would result in an increase in vehicular movements on the B470 Iver
Lane and adjacent highway network, including Iver Village, as this will be the main route HGV's will
take to the site. These roads would be unable to cope with the additional traffic, which would be
generated by this development, thereby adversely affecting road safety. In addition such heavy
good vehicles trips would adversely affect the character and amenities of properties in the locality
through noise, vibration, disturbance and visual intrusion. The rural lanes of South Bucks are not
considered suitable for significant increase in heavy goods vehicle movements since such traffic
would have an adverse impact on the quality and character of these lanes. Given the weight
restriction on the bridge to the east of the site the traffic generated by the proposed use would be
forced to travel into the South Bucks District where lorry traffic already has a severe affect on the
local environment. In these circumstances it is essential that the London Borough of Hillingdon
seek the views of Bucks County Council as Highway Authority.

IVER PARISH COUNCIL

Object - Increase of commercial traffic through Iver.

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL - HIGHWAYS

The proposal seeks to increase the numbers of LGV using the site by 12. Given the nature of the
proposal, traffic will be generated outside peak hours thereby causing distress and inconvenience
to the residents of Iver and the County Council, as local Highway Authority, wishes to formally
object to the proposal.

BRITISH WATERWAYS
No objection to the proposed development.

HEALTH AND SAFETY EXECUTIVE

No response received

Page 207
Page 213



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

probably still present at depth in some areas.

There is a reference made to drawings related to the foundation design for the light weight
structure, but the drawing was not available.

Concern regarding any potential contamination centres around possible exposure during any
construction works where the ground is disturbed and points of entry forany ut ilities i nt o
buildings/portacabins on site, which need to be suitably sealed to prevent any gas ingress. Any
waste soils etc. produced as a result of construction will also need to be tested and disposed of at a
suitably licensed facility.

Noise Matter:
 
With regards to air quality the applicants have not yet submitted an airqual ity repor t for  the wh ol e
of the Cape boards site and this area of the site should be included when this is produced. In order
to limit the air quality impact of this area of the site I have recommended a condition limiting the
number of lorry movements and also a condition requiring that HGVs accessing this site are LEZ
compliant.

With regards to noise, again a report has not yet been submitted covering the whole site and this
area should be included when this is produced. 

Noise sources would include noise from skip and bin repair and cleaning on site, noise from Lorry
movements and noise from loading and unloading operations. The other important factor with
regards to noise is the hours of operation. The applicants have submitted noise reports for this area
of the site dated the 2nd and 17th of April and a letter from the acoustic consultants dated the 21
April.

The applicants are proposing core hours of 6am to 10pm Monday - Friday and 6am -12noon
Saturdays but want access for HGVs at any time. 6-7 am is considered night time and is therefore
particularly sensitive. The email from the noise consultants dated 21/4/09 indicates that the
buildings on site including those proposed as part of this application should provide shielding giving
a reduction of 5dB. This would bring the daytime levels for the site 5dBbel ow backgr ound as
required in our SPD but night time levels would still only be approximately 1dB below background,
the Environmental Protection Unit therefore recommend that the night time hours of 6-7 are
excluded from the core hours and have recommended a condition restricting hours to 7am to 10
pm Monday - Friday and 7am to 12 noon on Saturdays with no work on Sundays or bank holidays.

With regards to the noise from night time HGV movements there are already some noise events at
similar levels occurring during the night on Iver Lane. To avoid significantly increasing the
disturbance to residents, the Environmental Protection Unit suggest a condition limiting access to
the site during the night time hours of 11pm to 7 am to 4 lorry movements i.e. 2 lorries.

The Environmental Protection Unit have also recommended a condition limiting the number of lorry
movements in 24h to those identified in the traffic assessment, as thesear e wh at  the noi se repor t
is based on.

POLICY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING

Site
The site is located within the Uxbridge Industrial Estate Industrial Business Area which is also
identified as a Strategic Industrial Location - Preferred Industrial Location in the London Plan 2008.
To the west is Green Belt, the Colne River a nature conservation site ofBor ough Gr ade 1

Page 208
Page 214



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Importance. To the east is the Grand Union Canal, a Nature Conservation Area of Metropolitan
Importance. Part of the site is within Flood Risk Zone 2 and there are land contamination issues.
The site has a PTAL of 1a.

The London Plan Consolidated with Alterations since 2004 (2008)

Policy 3B.1 Developing London's Economy considers the strategic role of the Mayor to support and
develop London's economy including seeking a range of premises of different types, sizes and
costs to meet the needs of different sectors of the economy and firms ofdi ffer ent  types and si zes
and to remove supply side blockages. 

Policies 2A.10 and 3B.4 Strategic Industrial Locations sets out London'sst rat egi c r eser voi r of
industrial capacity and the requirements of employment site provision inDe vel opme nt  Pl an
Documents. Indicative boundaries (albeit under the 2004 title StrategicEmp l oyme nt  Locat ions)
have been identified in the Sub Regional Development Framework - West London (2005).

Policy 3B.11 Improving employment opportunities for Londoners provides the spatial context to
coordinate the range of initiatives necessary to improve employment opportunities for Londoners,
to remove barriers to employment and tackle low participation in the labour market.

Policy 3D.14 seeks a proactive approach to the protection, promotion andma nageme nt  of
biodiversity in accordance with the Mayor's Biodiversity Strategy.

Policy 4A.17 Water Quality seeks to ensure that water quality and the attractiveness is protected or
improved and encourages the use of sustainable urban drainage systems.

 Hillingdon UDP Saved Policy Issues

In establishing the principle for a cleaning/servicing yard for bins andski ps,  t he f ol lowi ng pol icy
issues need to be addressed: 
*The suitability of a use in a designated industrial business area
*Flood impact
*Impact on nature conservation
*Impact on the Green Belt 

 Suitability of the Cleaning/Servicing Yard in an Industrial Business Area

Policy LE2 identifies the types of uses considered appropriate in an Industrial Business Area
including equivalent sui generis uses where it is desirable to locate such activities on amenity
grounds. The Service Yard will provide employment (4 on site jobs and 10 part time jobs), and
provide a useful service. It also provides the opportunity to bring an underutilised site back into
productive use. The activity, noise and vehicle movements would make this an acceptable use in
an IBA.

 Flooding

Policy OE7 provides the policy context for areas liable to flooding. Thesi te is adj acent  to the Co l ne
River. The EA have assessed part of the site as being located in Zone 2 flood risk area with a low
to moderate risk of flooding. Officers would need to be satisfied that such a site would be safe. 

 Impact on the Nature Conservation Area

Policies EC1and EC3 seek to protect nature conservation areas. Officers will need to be satisfied

Page 209
Page 215



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

The site is located in an Industrial and Business Area (IBA). Policy LE2 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Polices 2007) states that such areas are designated for
business, industrial and warehousing purposes (Use Classes B1-B8) and for sui generis
uses appropriate in an industrial area. The policy states that the LocalPl anni ng Aut hor i ty
will not permit development for other uses in such areas unless certain criteria are met.
The proposed use for the cleaning and services of bins/skip is considered to be a sui
generis use and appropriate to an industrial area. As the proposal fallswi thi n the or igi nal
approved use of the site, this use would be considered acceptable and accords with Policy
LE2 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development plan Saved Polices (September2007) .

Not relevant to the proposal.

Refer to section 7.05.

Not relevant to the application.

On the opposite side of Iver Lane to the site is open land within the Green Belt and
Cowley Lock Conservation Area. Policy OL5 of the Unitary Development Plan states that
the Local Planning Authority will normally only permit proposals for development adjacent
to or conspicuous from the Green Belt if they would not injure the visual amenities of the
Green Belt by reason of siting, materials, design, traffic or activitiesgener at ed.  Wh i lst  the
site can be readily viewed when crossing the bridge over the Grand UnionCa nal  to the
east, views into the site from the Green Belt land and Cowley Lock Conservation Area on
the opposite side of Iver Lane to the south are restricted by the existing security fencing
which has been provided on the site frontage preventing views of parked vehicles.  It is
therefore considered that, given the distance between the site and the Iver Lane frontage,
the development would not have a detrimental visual impact on the adjoining Green Belt

that the scheme will not harm the environmental conditions of the neighbouring nature conservation
areas. In particular and in accordance with London Plan Policy 4A.17 water quality should not be
adversely affected by the scheme through inappropriate runoff.

4. Impact on the Green Belt

The scheme would be visible from the Green Belt. In accordance with Policy OL5, officers would
need to be satisfied that the proposal would not harm the visual amenities of the Green Belt.

 Conclusion 

PEP have no objection to the scheme for a temporary permission subject to site specific
considerations.

WASTE MANAGEMENT

The application is for a commercial development. The business that occupies these premises
ultimately has discretion over the waste management methods they intend to use. However, as a
minimum, planning approval should require that the redevelopment of the site includes room to
locate recycling facilities for all grades of paper and cardboard, cans,pl ast ic bot tles,  and al so gl ass
bottles and jars.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 210
Page 216



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.07

7.08

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Cowley Lock Conservation Area.

The Grand Union Canal is to the east of the site, and forms part of a Green Chain, which
is protected by Policy OL11 of the Hillingdon UDP Saved Policies (September 2007). One
of the key criteria of Policy OL11 in respect of this application is criteria 3, which seeks to
conserve and enhance the visual amenity and nature conservation value ofthe landscape.
This area also forms part of a site of Nature Conservation Interest. Saved Policies EC1
and EC3 state the Local Planning Authority will not permit development which would
adversely affect the integrity of these sites, and furthermore, will require proposals for
developments within the vicinity of these sites to have regard to the potential effects on
such sites, of changes in the water table and of air, water, soil and other effects which
may arise from the development. 

The application site boundary is situated over 90m away from the Grand Union Canal tow
path (to the east), and the banks of the river Colne are 8m from the western site
boundary. With regard to visual impact, the application site is well screened by palisade
fencing together with the green netting that has been applied to the same, and due to the
other uses on the site it is not considered that the proposed use would have an adverse
impact on the surrounding area. However, concerns have been raised by officers about
the proposed stacking height of 4m for the bins/skips to be stored in bin/skip holding area
which is just 8m away from the banks of the river Colne. It is considered that the siting of
stacked bins/skips against the west side boundary fence at 4m high wouldbe l ikel y t o
harm the visual amenities of the adjoining river and Green Belt due to their height and
type of material and because no screening of landscaping measures to mitigate such
impact have been proposed by the applicant. Notwithstanding this, it is considered that
the proposed storage area can be used as such if adequate measures to minimise its
impact on the adjoining river Colne and the Green Belt can be found. In view of this, a
condition restricting the siting of the stacked bins/skips to a minimum distance from this
side of the application boundary has been recommended. In addition, a temporary
permission of 1 year has been recommended. This is in order to afford the Council the
benefit of monitoring and controlling the effects of the proposed use onits sur roundi ngs.  

The site lies within Flood Zone 2 as defined by Planning Policy Statement 25 as having
a medium probability of flooding. Paragraph E9 of PPS25 requires applicants for planning
permission to submit a flood risk assessment (FRA) when development ispr oposed i n
such locations. The Environment Agency states that the site is located on a major aquifer
and close to a surface water course - the river Colne. The previous site history indicates
the use of the site for vehicle storage and lorry car parking; this could potentially have led
to contamination, and as such, considers that a preliminary risk assessment should be
carried out. The applicants have on this occasion provided the agency with the necessary
flood risk assessment and environmental study.  The Environment Agency has now
withdrawn its objection to the proposal subject to a recommended condition. Therefore,
the proposal accords with Policies OE7, OE8 and OE11 of the Hillingdon UDP (Saved
Policies 2007) and PPS25. The proposal has therefore overcome reasons 1and 2 of  the
previously refused scheme.

Policy BE13 states that development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail
to harmonise with its surroundings. Policy BE25 of the UDP (Saved Policies 2007) states
that the Local Planning Authority will seek to ensure modernisation and improvement of
industrial and business areas through careful attention to the design and landscaping of
buildings and external spaces. It also states that where appropriate, itwi ll seek imp r oved

Page 211
Page 217



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Isssues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

vehicular and pedestrian access and circulation routes through the area and
environmental improvements. The two proposed buildings would be sited some 165m
away from Iver Lane and over 85m away from the western boundary of the site. There are
other existing portable buildings on the Cape Board site of a comparablesi ze and i n the
vicinity of the application site and it is therefore considered that thepr oposal  wo ul d be i n
keeping with its surroundings. The materials used are also comparable tot hose f ound
within an industrial area. It is therefore considered the proposal wouldbe appr opr iat e i n
this location and would not have any negative visual impact on the surrounding area. The
proposal would therefore accord with Policies BE13 and BE25 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies 2007)

Not applicable to the application.

The Highways Engineer has commented that the application forms state 10 vehicular car
movements in and out of the site and 12 HGV's in and out. The application has been
supported by a transport assessment setting out the anticipated trip rate generation of the
development and associated impact on the highway network.  The submittedinf or ma t ion
is considered to indicate that the proposed development would have an acceptable impact
on the existing highway network, both within the London Borough of Hillingdon and across
the borough boundary in Iver.

In order to ensure the level of use and associated highways impacts do not exceed those
which have been considered by officers conditions are necessary to ensure that no more
than 12 two-way HGV movements per day take place in association with theuse and that
a log book be kept to ensure that the vehicle movements can be monitored.

Vehicular access to the site will be via Iver Lane. The Council's Highway Engineer has
raised no objection to the scheme on traffic grounds subject to condition on the basis of
the statement of the applicants and that contained in the supporting transport assessment
that state that there will be only 12 two way HGV movements daily. As such, the proposal
is considered to accord with Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan (Saved Polices 2007). The proposal as overcome the 4tth reason for refusal of the
previous scheme.

See section 7.07.

Not applicable to the application.

Not applicable to the application.

Refer to section 7.07.

Refer to section 7.07.

Not relevant to the proposal.

Refer to section 7.07.

Page 212
Page 218



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Refer to section 7.08.

None

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

None

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need tobe awa r e
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and thepr ivat e i nt er est
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendationshave no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council.  The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed
by the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being
made at a later stage.  Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

The current planning application which is similar to the previously refused scheme is for
the temporary change of use to provide cleaning/ servicing yard for bins/skips (sui

Page 213
Page 219



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

generis), together with temporary ancillary workshop and office buildings. It is proposed
to erect a portable building for use as an office and a miracle span building for use as
workshop on the site.

The proposed operational works are considered to be acceptable in terms of the visual
appearance of the site and appropriate to the temporary use of the site for the cleaning
and servicing of bins skips. The use of the site for the stated purposesis consi st ent  wi th
the designation of the Industrial Business Area. However, a temporary permission of 1
year has been recommended in order to enable the Council to effectively assess its
impact and the cumulative effects of other uses existing within the overall site, on the
wider locality.

For the above reason, and subject to conditions, the scheme is recommended for
approval.

11. Reference Documents

Refer to section 4.0.

Raphael Adenegan 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 214
Page 220



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

R

E

E

R

L

E
R
R

E

E

E

R
R

E

R

R

R

R

U U

U

U

A

U

U

U

U

U

G

U

U

U

G

U U

ET
L

Allotment

Mast

29.0m

Depot

Waterside House

D
ef

P
a
th
(u
m
)

El Sub Sta

Depot

Depot

G
ran

d
U
nion

C
anal

Sub Sta

Dra
in

Sho

ET
L

D
ef

L
C
R

31.7m

4

(PH

Wo

C
R

C
o
C
on
st B

dy

Bridge

Airport car parking

O
L
D
M
IL
L
L
A
N
E

31.7m

FB

29.9m

To
w
in
g

El Sub Sta

ET
L

CR

C
ol
ne

CR
Dam

Tank

Tank

1

Clisby's 29.9m

To
w
in
g
P
a
th

34.7m

G
ra
n
d
U
n
io
n
C
an
al

ET
L

Ri
ve
r

EE
R
, B
o
ro
C
onst, G

L
A
sly
C
onst &

LB
B
dy

El Sub Sta

Tanks

Depot

Ponderosa

LB

El

P
a
th

C
o
w
ley

69

Co
Co
ns
t B
dy

ET
L

Gardens

R
iver

C
olne

Mast

31.7m

Ma

EE
R,
Bo
ro
C
on
st
, G
L
A
sl
y
C
on
st
&
LB
Bd
y

Und

Ponderosa

5

B
rid
g
e

C
o
w

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Former Cape Boards Site
Iver Lane
Cowley

751/APP/2009/402

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:2,500

Page 215

Page 221



Page 222

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 18

Page 223

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Page 231



Contents Page
Item No.1 Page 1 - 24

22 plans and Site Location Plan
Item No.2 Page 25 - 31

5 plans and Site Location Plan
Item No.3 Page 32 - 40

7 plans and Site Location Plan
Item No.4 Page 41 - 45

3 plans and Site Location Plan
Item No.5 Page 46 - 51

4 plans and Site Location Plan
Item No.6 Page 52 - 54

1 plan and Site Location Plan
Item No.7 Page 55 - 64

8 plans and Site Location Plan
Item No.8 Page 65 - 69

3 plans and Site Location Plan
Item No.9 Page 70 - 77

6 plans and Site Location Plan
Item No.10 Page 78 - 80

1 plan and Site Location Plan
Item No.11 Page 81 - 83

1 plan and Site Location Plan
Item No.12 Page 84 - 89

4 plans and Site Location Plan
Page 232



Item No.1

Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 HEATHROW PARK THISTLE HOTEL  BATH ROAD LONGFORD  

Demolition of existing hotel and erection of two hotels: one 4-star hotel with 
250 bedrooms, and one budget hotel with 353 bedrooms, together with 
associated parking and landscaping. 

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services   

Address 

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 3063/APP/2009/415 

Date Plans Received: 27/02/2009

Date Application Valid: 27/02/2009

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

Page 1
Page 233



Page 2
Page 234



Page 3
Page 235



Page 4
Page 236



Page 5
Page 237



Page 6
Page 238



Page 7
Page 239



Page 8
Page 240



Page 9
Page 241



Page 10
Page 242



Page 11
Page 243



Page 12
Page 244



Page 13
Page 245



Page 14
Page 246



Page 15
Page 247



Page 16
Page 248



Page 17
Page 249



Page 18
Page 250



Page 19
Page 251



Page 20
Page 252



Page 21
Page 253



Page 22
Page 254



Page 23
Page 255



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

E
R

R

E
E R

E

ER ROAD

460

(WE
ST)

El Sub

B
A
Y
S
F
A
R
M
C
O
U
R
T

Longford

476

468

BATH ROAD

NORTHER
N PERIME

TER ROAD

a

Cottage
Longford

485

Hotel

24.1m

Pump

BATH R
OAD472

Lorcan

470

24.4m

Mast

65

OK BY-PASS

5 to 9

Court

24.1m

s River

501

El Sub Sta

Club

MS

418

Sta

64

476

24.1m

1to4

Longford Bridge Shelter

420

El Sub Sta

1

COLNBROOK BY-PASS

B
A
Y
S
FA
R
M
C
O
U
R
T

Heathrow Airport - London

456

420

Shelter

400

450

420

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Heathrow Park Thistle Hotel
Bath Road
Longford

3063/APP/2009/415

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:2,500

Page 24
Page 256



Item No.2

Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

LAND AT SIPSON FARM  SIPSON ROAD SIPSON  

Extraction of sand and gravel as an extension to existing quarry at Wall 
Garden Farm backfilling with inert waste and restoration to agricultural land. 

19/02/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services   

Address 

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 45408/APP/2009/340 

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

19/02/2009Date Application Valid:

Page 25
Page 257



Page 26
Page 258



Page 27
Page 259



Page 28
Page 260



Page 29

Page 261



Page 30
Page 262



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Land at Sipson Farm
Sipson Road
Sipson

45408/APP/2009/340

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:5,000

Page 31
Page 263



Item No.3

Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

UNIT B, PROLOGIS PARK  STOCKLEY ROAD WEST DRAYTON  

RESERVED MATTERS (DETAILS OF SITING, DESIGN, EXTERNAL 
APPEARANCE AND LANDSCAPING) OF UNIT B (EMPLOYMENT 
COMPONENT) IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 3 OF PLANNING 
PERMISSION REF.18399/APP/2005/3415 DATED 27/01/2006: VARIATION 
OF CONDITIONS (TO ALLOW SEPARATE PHASED SUBMISSIONS OF 
DETAILS RELATING TO RESIDENTIAL AND EMPLOYMENT 
COMPONENTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT) OF OUTLINE PLANNING 
PERMISSION REF. 18399/APP/2004/2284 DATED 19/08/2005: 
REDEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE FOR A MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT 
COMPRISING USE CLASSES B1(a) & (c), B2 AND B8 EMPLOYMENT 
USES AND C3 RESIDENTIAL USE (UP TO A MAXIMUM OF 101 UNITS) 
WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING. 

03/03/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services   

Address 

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 18399/APP/2009/423 

Date Plans Received: 03/03/2009
11/03/2009

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

09/03/2009Date Application Valid:

Page 32
Page 264



Page 33Page 265



Page 34
Page 266



Page 35
Page 267



Page 36
Page 268



Page 37
Page 269



Page 38
Page 270



Page 39
Page 271



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

R

R

R

R

R

R

_

U

_ _

U

_

U

_

_

_

U

_

C
R

Mast

W
at
er

Heathrow Prologis Park

El Sub Sta

F

13

269

17

55

74

Und

365

Stockley Road Lake

36
2

36
3

Training Centre

7

Sub

291

18

70
71

Ward Bdy

House

53

36
0

STOCKLEY CLOSE

SL

El

to

CR

1 t
o 1
2

MP 1

S
T
O
C
K
L
E
Y
R
O
A
D

364

Stockley Road Lake

Water

E

Sta

255 247

Woolwich

Mast

36
1

El Sub Sta

Water

Path (um)

267

House

Ward Bdy

S
T
O
C
K
L
E
Y
R
O
A
D

A
ESS

Signal Gantry

to

279

29

20

W
ar
eh
o
us
e

CR

6

21

281

257

Sherman

2

65

1to6

Mast

B

W
ar
d
Bd
y

SL

Path (um
)

to

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Unit B, Prologis Park
Stockley Road
West Drayton

18399/APP/2009/423

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:2,500

Page 40
Page 272



Item No.4

Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

LAND ADJACENT AND FORMING PART OF 19 TANGLEWOOD CLOSE 
HILLINGDON  

Two storey attached one-bedroom dwelling. 

05/02/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services   

Address 

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 63470/APP/2009/238 

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

05/02/2009Date Application Valid:

Page 41
Page 273



Page 42
Page 274



Page 43
Page 275



Page 44
Page 276



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

7

12

Olive Tree

51

43

14

9

35

Prim
ary

53

73

1

21

1

O
S
E

1

NIC
HOL

LS A
VEN

UE

23

19

14

BR
AM
B
LE
S
FA
R
M
D
R
IV
E

63

FA
R
M

2

19

The

31

The

NIC
HOL

24

50

57

36

9

16

School House

11

Hillingdon

Sch
ool

House

2c
2a

2b

22

TA
N
G
LEW

O
O
D
C
LO
SE

2

18

School

Hilli
ngd

on

CR

36

33
2

58

32

5

31

4

26

20

4

B
R
A
M
B
LES

TA
N
G
L
E
W
O
O
D
C
L
O
S
E

DRIVE

Fire Station

48

13

27

School House Primary

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Land adjacent and forming part of
19 Tanglewood Close

Hillingdon

63470/APP/2009/238

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 45
Page 277



Item No.5

Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

134 SIPSON ROAD WEST DRAYTON   

Conversion of dwelling to 2x1 bed flats with elevational alterations at front 
and associated parking. 

19/02/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services   

Address 

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 64649/APP/2009/341 

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

02/03/2009Date Application Valid:

Page 46
Page 278



Page 47
Page 279



Page 48
Page 280



Page 49
Page 281



Page 50
Page 282



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

R
E

E

E

R

U

U

28

1

SCOTT CLO
SE

52

55

103

1

11

29.0m

20
a

10
6a

53

E
l S
u
b
S
ta

2

7

1

15

RO
AD

Boys Club

19

22

34

25

COL
ERI

DGE
WA
Y

18

10
4

10
6

41

13
2

14
4

13

CHERRY LANE

2

20
c

9

13

12
0

CR

TCB

SIPSO
N

139

2

50

K
E
A
TS

W
A
Y

10
4a

29.0m

Ward Bdy

20
b

28

16

11

81

23

1

36

10
8

17

Yiewsley and West Drayton

29.3m

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

134 Sipson Road
West Drayton

64649/APP/2009/341

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 51
Page 283



Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

8 PASTURES MEAD HILLINGDON   

Erection of a single storey rear extension (involving the replacement of a side
door with a window in main house). 

19/12/2008

Report of the Director of Planning & Community Services Group     

Address 

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 63559/APP/2008/3504 

Date Plans Received: 09/01/0009
03/02/0009

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

19/12/2008Date Application Valid:

Item No.6          

Page 52
Page 284



Page 53
Page 285



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

R

E

E

R

E

MP
5.7
5

50

8

M
E
A
D

18

14

60

70

4

14

D
R
IV
E

47
49
51

2

El

6
17

23

38

12

26

74
69

55

46

60

48

14

37.2m

41

65

68

61

17

36.3m

19

SB

S
T
U
A
R
T
C
L
O
S
E

1
5

27

Western House

53

Church

48

15
5

Sub Sta

3

13

20

37

1

71

58

57

Shelter

52

20 22 24

59

38.1m

2

55

36

6

17

59
62

67
63

72
75

54
56

13
3

21

P
A
S
T
U
R
E
S

1 to
21

Chestlands Court

26

66

A
U
R
IO
L

AU
RIO

LB

11

64

73

1

50

4

´

February 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

8 Pastures Mead
Hillingdon

63559/APP/2008/3504

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 54
Page 286



Item No.7

Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

BROOK HOUSE FOOTBALL CLUB KINGSHILL AVENUE HAYES  

Alterations and extension to existing football clubhouse to provide new youth
centre facilities. 

27/02/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services   

Address 

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 29439/APP/2009/411 

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

03/03/2009Date Application Valid:

Page 55
Page 287



Page 56
Page 288



Page 57
Page 289



Page 58
Page 290



Page 59
Page 291



Page 60
Page 292



Page 61
Page 293



Page 62
Page 294



Page 63
Page 295



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

E

L

L

L

E

EL
L

R

L

E

L

E

R

L

L LL
L

L

R

L
L

R

L

R

E

L
LL

L

R

L

A

G

G

G

31.7m

El

C
an
al
F
ee
d
er

RA
YN
TO
N
DR
IV
E

237

13
3

235

8

30.2m

11

152

Club

Sports Fields

30.5m

10

218

1

2

216

34

Posts

174
164

Sub Sta

1

Practice

9

30.5m

247

22

6

233

Clu
b

Grange Park

Cedar Brook

11
3

12
3

10

4

214

Grosvenor Playing Field

31.4m

KIN
GS
HIL

L C
LO
SE

8

37.1m

Issues

Clu
b

Surgery

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Brookhouse Football Club
Kingshill Avenue

Hayes

29439/APP/2009/411

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:2,000

Page 64
Page 296



Item No.8

Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

THE GRANGE  PINE PLACE HAYES  

CONSTRUCTION OF COMMUNITY CENTRE AND 9 RESIDENTIAL UNITS,
COMPRISING OF 5 FLATS AND 4 HOUSES. 

18/03/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services   

Address 

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 51065/APP/2009/546 

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

18/03/2009Date Application Valid:

Page 65
Page 297



Page 66Page 298



Page 67Page 299



Page 68Page 300



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

E

E

UU

U

U

U

U

U

UU

U
31
.1
m

PINE PLACE

FA
IR
H
O
LM
E
C
R
E
S
C
E
N
T

FF

20a

Merrifield

184

House

31.7m

19

22

NUE

5

W
ar
d
B
d
y

42

FF

Allotment Gardens

House

170

32

2

12

3
4

56

FF

Infant and Junior School

1

2a

20

21

FF

FW

Ward Bdy

17

Grange Park

14

1

16

2

School

24

Clinic

13

23

33

9

Children's Home

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

The Grange
Pine Place
Hayes

51065/APP/2009/546

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 69
Page 301



Central & South Planning Committee – 12 May 2009 
PART I – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

Item No. 9 Report of the Corporate Director of Planning and 
Community Services  

Address:  6 HILLMAN CLOSE, UXBRIDGE 

Development: INSTALLATION OF A FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION, FRONT 
AND REAR GABLES, FRONT PORCH  AND THE ERECTION 
OF A PITCHED ROOF OVER THE EXISTING DETACHED 
GARAGE 

LBH Ref Nos:  22424/APP/2008/2100 

Date of receipt: 09/07/08 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 21/10/08,  
12/11/08 and 
09/03/09 

Page 70
Page 302



Page 71
Page 303



Page 72
Page 304



Page 73
Page 305



Page 74
Page 306



Page 75
Page 307



Page 76
Page 308



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

E

R

E

12 3

186

7

196

21
5

57.0m 178

Water

9

26
24

21
3

172

172a

21
9

13a

(Nursing Home)

178e

SAL
T HI

LL

2f

7

W
A
T
E
R
T
O
W
E
R
C
L
O
S
E

62.2m

Sub Sta

192

HAREFIE
LD ROAD

178a

CLO
SE

14

1

4
23
9

1

22
5

178b

Clare House

180a

El

20

1

174

Ponds

LB

13

2e

176a

11
H
ILL
M
A
N
C
L
O
S
E

13

2

5

25

174a

21
7

21
7a

5

180b

6

El Sub Sta

15

12

170a

180

Tower

8

T
O
W
E
R
G
A
T
E
C
L
O
S
E

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

6 Hillman Close
Uxbridge

22424/APP/2008/2100

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 77
Page 309



Item No.10

Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

REDFORD HOUSE REDFORD WAY UXBRIDGE  

Change of use from Class A1 Shops (Pet shop suppliers) to Class D2 
Assembly and Leisure (for use as women's health and fitness centre). 

06/02/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services   

Address 

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 46340/APP/2009/250 

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

06/02/2009Date Application Valid:

Page 78
Page 310



Page 79
Page 311



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

R

R

E

E

R

120

Ar
ms
tro
ng
Ho
us
e

TCB

Bea
sle
ys
Yar
d

138
137

54

1
3

5

Hall

150
Re
dfo
rd

Ho
us
e

Ben
net
t's

RE
DF
OR
D
WA
Y

House

Re
dfo
rd

Church

REDFO
RD
W
AY

15

20

Re
df
or
d
St
ud
io
s

S
helters

33

41

qu
ers
Sq
ua
re

63

62

C
R

40.2m

M
ercer W

alk
W
ard

B
dy

126
a

132

139

us
e

148

53

Cu
lha
m
Co
urt

132a

to

22

24

Bank

66

H
IG
H
S
TR
E
E
T

124
125

W
A
R
W
IC
K
P
LA
C
E

PH

b

PH

PH

Hall

156
157

Ho
us
e

32

155

Christ

27

30

1 to
4

Shelter

31

35

to

Ch
ild
Gu
ida
nc
e

4

tistorey)

PH

129

59
to
61

58

PH

Bank

9

Be
nn
ett
's Y
ard

21
to
27

25

3

2

133
a

LB

141

142

Joh
nso

n's
Yar
d

U
nd

1 t
o 2
0

PO
151

Yar
d

BEL
MO
NT

RO
AD

28 29

1

1a

12

1

W
IL
MA
R
CL
OS
E

1

5
4
to
8

s Car Park

GP

4

1
to
17

126

133

Mi
dd
les
ex
Ho
us
e

135

140

133

148

Aston

Coc
k's
Yar
d

29

Or
ch
ard
Pl
ac
e

Ce
nt
re

Be
n

118

3

6

El Sub Sta

42.4m

11

2

26
to
38

122
123

130
131

134

136

55
to
57

H
igh

Street

Be
as
ley
Ho
us
e

9

152

154
132a

Jo
hn
so
n's
Ya
rd

26

15

SheltersBAKER'S
RO
AD

37

49

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Redford House
Redford Way
Uxbridge

46340/APP/2009/250

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 80
Page 312



Item No.11

Central & South Planning Committee - 12th May 2009 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

REDFORD HOUSE REDFORD WAY UXBRIDGE  

Change of use from Class A1 (Shops) to Class D1 (Non-residential 
institutions) with ancillary office accommodation. 

19/02/2009

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services   

Address 

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 46340/APP/2009/336 

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

25/02/2009Date Application Valid:

Page 81
Page 313



Page 82
Page 314



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

R

R

E

E

R

120

Ar
ms
tro
ng
Ho
us
e

TCB

Bea
sle
ys
Yar
d

138
137

54

1
3

5

Hall

150
Re
dfo
rd

Ho
us
e

Ben
net
t's

RE
DF
OR
D
WA
Y

House

Re
dfo
rd

Church

REDFO
RD
W
AY

15

20

Re
df
or
d
St
ud
io
s

S
helters

33

41

qu
ers
Sq
ua
re

63

62

C
R

40.2m

M
ercer W

alk
W
ard

B
dy

126
a

132

139

us
e

148

53

Cu
lha
m
Co
urt

132a

to

22

24

Bank

66

H
IG
H
S
TR
E
E
T

124
125

W
A
R
W
IC
K
P
LA
C
E

PH

b

PH

PH

Hall

156
157

Ho
us
e

32

155

Christ

27

30

1 to
4

Shelter

31

35

to

Ch
ild
Gu
ida
nc
e

4

tistorey)

PH

129

59
to
61

58

PH

Bank

9

Be
nn
ett
's Y
ard

21
to
27

25

3

2

133
a

LB

141

142

Joh
nso

n's
Yar
d

U
nd

1 t
o 2
0

PO
151

Yar
d

BEL
MO
NT

RO
AD

28 29

1

1a

12

1

W
IL
MA
R
CL
OS
E

1

5
4
to
8

s Car Park

GP

4

1
to
17

126

133

Mi
dd
les
ex
Ho
us
e

135

140

133

148

Aston

Coc
k's
Yar
d

29

Or
ch
ard
Pl
ac
e

Ce
nt
re

Be
n

118

3

6

El Sub Sta

42.4m

11

2

26
to
38

122
123

130
131

134

136

55
to
57

H
igh

Street

Be
as
ley
Ho
us
e

9

152

154
132a

Jo
hn
so
n's
Ya
rd

26

15

SheltersBAKER'S
RO
AD

37

49

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Redford House
Redford Way
Uxbridge

46340/APP/2009/336

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 83
Page 315



Page 84

Page 316



Page 85

Page 317



Page 86
Page 318



Page 87
Page 319



Page 88Page 320



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

R

E

E

R

L

E
R
R

E

E

E

R
R

E

R

R

R

R

UU

U U

U

U

A

U

U

U

U

U

G

U

U

U

G

U U

ET
L

Allotment

Mast

29.0m

Depot

Waterside House

D
ef

P
a
th
(u
m
)

El Sub Sta

Depot

Depot

G
ran

d
U
nion

C
anal

Sub Sta

Dra
in

Sho

ET
L

D
ef

ET
L

C
R

Works

31.7m

4

(PH

Wo
C
R

C
o
C
on
st B

dy

Bridge

Airport car parking

O
L
D
M
IL
L
L
A
N
E

31.7m

FB

29.9m

To
w
in
g

El Sub Sta

ET
L

CR

C
ol
ne

CR
Dam

Tank

Tank

1

Clisby's 29.9m

To
w
in
g
P
a
th

34.7m

G
ra
n
d
U
n
io
n
C
an
al

ET
L

Ri
ve
r

EE
R
, B
o
ro
C
onst, G

L
A
sly
C
onst &

LB
B
dy

El Sub Sta

Tanks

Depot

Ponderosa

LB

El

P
a
th

C
o
w
ley

69

Co
Co
ns
t B
dy

ET
L

Gardens

R
iver

C
olne

Mast

31.7m

Ma

EE
R,
Bo
ro
C
on
st
, G
L
A
sl
y
C
on
st
&
LB
Bd
y

Und

Ponderosa

5

B
rid
g
e

C
o
w

´

April 2009

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2008

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Former Cape Boards Site
Iver Lane
Cowley

751/APP/2009/402

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:2,500

Page 89
Page 321



Page 322

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Heathrow Park Thistle Hotel, Bath Road, Longford - 3063/APP/2009/415
	7 Land at Sipson Farm, Sipson Road, Sipson - 45408/APP/2009/340
	8 Unit B, Prologis Park, Stockley Road, West Drayton - 18399/APP/2009/423
	9 Land adjacent & forming part of 19 Tanglewood Close, Hillingdon - 63470/APP/2009/238
	10 134 Sipson Road, West Drayton - 64649/APP/2009/341
	11 8 Pastures Mead, Hillingdon - 63559/APP/2008/3504
	12 Brook House Football Club, Kingshill Avenue, Hayes - 29439/APP/2009/411
	13 The Grange, Pine Place, Hayes - 51065/APP/2009/546
	14 6 Hillman Close, Uxbridge - 22424/APP/2008/2100
	15 Redford House, Redford Way, Uxbridge - 46340/APP/2009/250
	16 Redford House, Redford Way, Uxbridge - 46340/APP/2009/336
	17 Former Cape Boards Site, Iver Lane, Cowley - 751/APP/2009/402
	18 103 Central Avenue, Hayes - ENF/64/09
	Plans for Central & South Planning Committee - 12 May 2009

